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STIPULATIONS

It is hereby stipulated by and between Plaintiff
and Defendants, by counsel, that the witness be examined
pursuant to and by virtue of the provisions of Sections
2016, 2018, 2019, and 2021 of the Code of Civil Procedure
of the State of California, subject to all legal objections
being reserved until the time of trial, save and except
objections as to the form of the question.

That all objections as to the qualifications of the
Notary and any and all irregularities in the manner of
administering the oath are waived.

That if the witness should be instructed mot to
answer questions propoun&ed by counsel, it shall be deemed
that the Notary Public has instructed the witness to
answer, and that the witness still refused to do so on
the instruction of counsel.

That deposition exhibits will be appended to the
depositions and that true copies may be so appended with
full force and effect as if they were the originals subject
to all rulings of the Court on admissibility.

That the deposition shall be read, corrected and
signed prior to the time of trial, and if not, it may
be used with the same force and effect as though it were

read and signed pursuant to the Code of Civil Procedure

-1-
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Section 2019(e) which is hereby waived. Said deposition
may be signed before any Notary Public and all objections
as to the qualifications of any such Notary are waived.
That this stipulation is deemed to be the written
stipulation required by Section 2019(a)(2) of the Code

of Civil Procedure.
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(A1l parties present, the following proceeings were had

at 9:10 a.m. )

HARVEY BANKS,
a witness herein, having been sworn by the Deposition

Officer, testitried as follows:

EXAMINATION
BY MR; NOMELLINI: Q. Could you state
for the record your full name?
A. My first name is Harvey, H-a-r-v-e-y, middle
initial 0, last name Banks, B-a-n-k-s.
Q. And your present address?
A, Number Three Rittie, K-i-t-t-i-e, Lane,

Belmont, California 94002,

Q. Have you ever had your deposition taken
before?

A, Yes.

Q. How many times?

A, I haven't counted them up but it must have

been at least six to eight.
Q. In terms of the last four or five years, had

you had your deposition taken during that period?

A, Yes.
Q. Okay. 2And what was the most resent occasion?
A, The most resent occasion that I recall, it
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was in connection with some work that I am doing for —-
in the state of New Mexico in connection with water
rights.

Q. And what was your most resent occasion in
California, if there was one?

A, I don't recall.

Q. I assume you understand the purpose of the
deposition, but let me just go through briefly.

What we aré going to do is ask you guestions,
and you are under oath, and if you testity at the time of
trial any differently than you've testitied today, and we
could use your deposition to attempt to question your
credibility and impeach you. So it's important that your
ansWwers be accurate, and if during the course of this
deposition I or any of the other attorneys questioning
you ask you a question that is ambiguous or compound in a
way that you don't understand the question, feel free to
ask us to clarify. Because it is important to get the
accurate answer. And you will have an opportunity to
review your deposition as to any errors, you know, prior
to its final form,

Okay. So you understand that?

A, I do.
Q. Are you familiar with this case, which I kind
of call the Drought Payment Case?

A, I believe so.
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Q. All right. You know that the State of
California has brought an action against a number of

Delta water users and Delta districts concerning

utilization of water in 1977, which the state claims was

their water?

A, I understand.

Q. Are you a professional engineer?

A, I am.

Q. Are you registered in Californiav?

A, I am.

Q. Is that in the civil field?

A, Yes.

Q. How long have you béen a registered engineer

in California?

A, Some forty-seven years.

0. And what has your educational background
been?

A, I have a Bachelor of Science Degree in Civil

Engineering from Syracuse University and a Master of

Science from Stanford University.

0. And your Masters from Stanford was in what
fieldz

A, HBydraulic and sanitary engineering.

Q. Did you get your Masters immediately atter

your Bachelors?

A, Ho.
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Q. And when did you get your Masters?

A, 1955.

0. You missed the campus and decided to return,
huh?

A. I had, to explain, I had done graduate work

e

at Stanford in the early thirties, but it did not
complete at that time, and it took me the next twenty-odd
years to complete the work and fulfill the requirements

on a part-time basis.

Q. And what is your current occupation?

A, I am a consulting civil engineer.

Q. Are you with a firm or are you independent?

A, I am my own firm.

0. And that is called what?

A, Harvey O. Banks Consulting Engineer,
Incorporated.

Q. When were you first engaged by the Department

of Water Resources with regard to the Drought Payment
Case?

A. I do not recall the exact date, but I believe
it was in 1983,

0. And what were you asked to do with regard to

this case?

A. To make investigations and to present
testimony.
Q. And what investigations were you asked to
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make?

A, Particularly, the investigations as to the
hydrology, stream flows in 1977.

0. Anything else?

A, I have been asked to be able to present
evidence and testlmony concerning the history, and
facxlitiesﬂof the Federal Central Valley Project and the
State Water Project and how those two projects
interrelate and interaét.

Q. In the listing of expert trial witnesses
submitted to us by the state the state says with regard
to you, "He may testiry regarding the Sacramento, San
Joaguin Rivers and Delta hydrology and the principai
facilities and operations of the State -- Federal and
State Water Projects, including their aftects on water
guantity and quality.®

Did you do any investigation as to'qnality
impacts for the projects?

A. Yes, I have.

0. Did you perform any investigation with regard
to the impact of the State Water Project alone on quality
in 19777

A, I have studied the water supplied by the
State Water Project to the Delta in 1977.

Q. Bave you determined in your investigations

what impact the State Water Project water has on water
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quality in the Delta?z

A, I have not completed my investigation of tnat
as yet.
0. Did you study the impact of the combined

operations of the State Water Project and Federal Central

Valley Project on water quality in the Delta in 197/?

A, I have made certain investigations which are
continuing.
Q. In the next sentence of this paragraph tnat I

referred to earlier they say, "He is expected to testiry
that more water was released from State and Federal Water
Project facilities than was expected due to project
operations and legal standards; that the amount diverted
by Delta farmers during July and August was about twice
the natural flow that reached the Delta, and the rest
from water stored by projects and that one quarter of tne
stored water taken by defendants was plaintirf's warcer.
Is that correct?

A, That is my general conclusion to date,
subject to change with further investigation and study.

. Have you testiried as an expert in a

California court before?

). Yes.
Q. End when was that?
A, In the early 1970's, I testiried as an expert

in the Superior Court of Alameda County in connection
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with ground water rights and management.

In the late 1970's, as I recali it, I
testified in the Superior Court of Imperial County
concerning alleged damage due to rising water levels in

Saltan Sea.

Q. What year was that again?

A, The late 1970's. I do not recall tne exact
date.

Q. Is that thé case that finally got up toc the

Appellate Court in the last year or so?

A. I believe it is pending in the Appeliate
Court, |

Q. Oh. Okay.

A, And in the early 1980's, I testiried in tne

Superior Court of Riverside County concerning flood
damage claims due to the breeching of levees on the San
Jacinto River in Riverside County.

Q. Have you ever testiried as an expert relating
to the Delta before?

A, HNo.

Q. Going back to your experience, once you
graduated with your Bachelor of Science in Civil
Engineering, what did you do after that? What has been
your work experience since that time?

A, Immediately after I left Stanford in 1933, I

worked with the City of Palo Alto as a sanitary engineer
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on sanitary sewage improvements that the city was making
at that time.

I then worked for Fred Tibbets Consulting
Engineer on the planning of conservation projects in
Santa Clara County.

Then in 1935, I was employed by the then U.S.
Soil Erosion Service, which is now the Soil Conservation
Service.

In 1938, I(was employed by the State
Engineer's Office in Los Angeles on ground water
investigations.

I continued with the State Engineer's Office
until June, 1946, except for two-and-a-haltr years,
approximately, spent in the military servlce;

In 19 —— July of 1946, I was engaged in
consulting practice as a partner in Harold Conkling,
C~o-n-k-1-i-n-g, Consulting Engineer.

In July, 1950, I went -- I was again employed
by the State Engineer's Office in connection with the
newly authorized statewide water guality investigations
and remained with the State Engineer's Office until July
5th, 1956, when the Department of Water Resocurces was
formed, at which time I was appointed as tne Director of
the new department.

I resigned as Director on the 2nd of January,

1961, to enter private practice as a Vice-President of
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-Leedshill=RBerkenh6ff, Incorporated Consulting Engineers

in San Francisco.

I resigned from that firm in November, 1969,
to form my own firm, which I operated until through 197Ji
at which time I was bought out by Camp, Dresser, and
McKee Consulting Engineers from Boston, Massachusetts.

I resigned from that firm in 1982, to again
form and operate my own firm, a situation which continues
to date.

0. With regard to your consulting work, since
you left the Department of Water Resources, have you been
engaged by the Department of Water Resources or some
other department of the State as a consultant in any
other case or situation other than the present one?

A, Not that I recall.

Q. So this is the first time since your
resignation as Director of the Department of Water

Resources that you've worked for the Department of Water

Resources?
A. Bs I recall, that is correct.
0. Okay. At the present time do you act as a

consultant to any Delta water users?

A, I am consultant to the Contra Costa Water
District.

Q. And how long have you served as a consultant
to them?
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A, Since about 1962,

0. Since leaving the Department of Water
Resources have you acted as a consultant to the Federal
Government in any respect?

A, I don't recall any such engagement.

May I correct that?

Q. Yeah. Sure.

A, I do recall serving as consultant to the
Bureau of Reclamation in connection with what is known as

the Westwide Study in the 1970's.

Q. Did that involve California?

A, Yes.,

Q. And what was involved generaliy in tnat
study?

A, To provide information to the Bureau on water

problems and to review their analyses and conclusions.

0. Do you consider yourself an expert on Delta
water quality?

A, I believe I have a reasonably good knowledge
of the problems.

G. Is there any reason you don't consider
yourself an expert on Delta water quality?

A, To be explicit, I consider myselr as
knowledgeable, and, as such, an expert.

Q. Okay.

MR. KLETZING: Modesty.
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MR. NOMELLINI: Q. Do you consider

yourself an expert on tributary flows into tne Delta?

A, Yes.

Q. Do you consider yourself an expert on State
Water Project operations?

A, Yes.

Q. Do you consider yourself an expert on Federal
Water Project operations in Califernia?

A, Yes. |

Q. Well, we must have the right guy then.

All right. Time --

A, Time will tell.

Q. With regard —-

A. May I ask, is it possible for a cup of
coffee?

MR, NOMELLINI: Sure. Let's take a

break.
Let's go oft the record a minute.
(Off-the~record discussion)
MR. NOMELLINI: Okay. Back on the
record.
Q. With regard to your tributary fiow analysis

or investigation in this case, have you given the results

of your analysis in writing to the department?
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A, No, I have not.

Q. Do you have any written documentation of your
results?

A, Ho.

My studies have been done in coordination
with the department staff, too.
Q. Do you know whether or not your work is
reflected in writing in any way?
A. I do not know. I'd have to refer to counsel
on that.

MR. NOMELLINI: Well, Counsel.

FR. KLETZING: Yeah, I think so.

MR. NOMELLINI: Do you have those with
you?

MR. KLETZING: Well, I think we are
talking about the forty-five tables in tne binder.

MR. NOMELLINI: Oh, the forty-five
tables in the blue binder?

MR. RKLETZING: Yeah.

MR. NOMELLINI: I'm going to hand you
this blue binder, Harvey, and you tell me ir you
recognize anything in there (indicating),
starting at the beginning.

THE WITNESS: I do.

MR. NOMELLINI: Q. All right. What do

you recognize? An index?
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A. I recognize the tables,

Q. Okay. And did you help prepare tnose tables?
A, I have reviewed them --

Q. Okay.

A, -- as they have progressed and made

suggestions and recommendations.

Q. What suggestions have you made witn regard to
the preparation of those tables?

A. With respect to methodology and the treatment
of various other projects than the State and Federal
Project.

Q. Do you believe that all water that flows incto
the Delta that is not natural flow is water tnat can be
properly characterized as project water?

A. No, I do not believe that.

Q. Do you know whether or not the department in
those calculations in that blue binder in any way
attempted to separate project water from other water,
other than natural flow, that fiowed into the Delta in
197772

A. We have tried to estimate the amount of
project water that flowed into the Delta as distinguished
from that flowing into the Delta from other sources.

Q. Calling your attention to July of 1877, what
is the estimated flow of project water into the Delta?

A. I would have to refer to the tabulations.
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Q. Could you refer to it and give me tnat
number?
A, The summary table is not in here.

I have a copy in my briefcase in my car.
0. Okay.

MR. NOMELLINI: Russ, do you know that
that summary table is somewhere else here in tne room?

MR. KLETZING: It should be in tnere.

THE WITNESS: It isn't.

MR. KLETZING: Well, I mean, we sent it
to you possibly at a later time.

MR. WHITRIDGE: The original book just
has a page that says "Summary table not complete,® but we
did get some stuff afterwards.

MR. KLETZING: We sent it to you in a
later letter.

MR. NOMELLINI: Okay.

Why don't we take a break. Harvey, maybe you
could go to your car and get that table and then we'll
run a copy of it and mark it as an exhibit unless we can
identify it somewhere here in the room.

Do you think it's in those boxes, Russ?

MR. KLETZING: No. ©No. It was a lercter
we sent you -- or we probably sent it to Baber very
shortly after the next week.

MR. RABER: Which one wasg the -——
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MR. KLETZING: The first week in
September.

MR. NOMELLINI: All right. Let's hold
it a minute.

MR. KLETZING: It attached several
tables that weren't included.

MR. NOMELLINI: All right. I'm going to
hand Harvey a pile of documents that maybe is tne table
(indicating).

THE WITNESS: Yes, I believe this is tne
summary table (indicating).

MR. NOMELLINI: Okay.

MR, WHITRIDGE: Will you identity the
title on that?

MR, NOMELLINI: Yeah.

The summary table is a composite of a number
of sheets. It says, "Table one, natural supply and
riparian use, Sacramento Valley and Delta, 1977, designed
R. H. Taylor, date, 8-29-86.

Q. Okay. Harvey, from that table could you tell
me what the July, 1977, project inflow to the Delta was?

A. This particular table deals only within the

~conclusion that the sunmary is only with respect to what

you have termed natural supply.
Let's see if I can find it in some of the

other -—-
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Q. You say I have termed it. They have termed

it natural supply as well, right?

A, This is correct. This is a term which has
been used.

Q. And I gather, you, like me, may not believe
that that is really natural supﬁly, is that what

you're trying to indicate to me?

A, I was not --
Q. We will go we'll get into.
A, I was not trying to indicate anything, if I

may correct you.

It's in here., I just have to...

May I suggest that I answer that question
after I've had a chance to look at thisg (indicating)?
The forty-five tables are complicated.

Q. All right. Well, that's why we've gotr an
expert here that can give us the answer. It's a
compl icated subject.

But the guestions that I would like the
answers to with regard to the calculations are tne
estimated flow of project water into the Delta for July

of 1977 and for August of 1977.

And then of that project infiow to the Delta

what part is State Water Project water and what part is

the Federal Central Valley Project water, if you've made

the calculation?

18
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A, With regard to your last question, the infiow
of project water has been allocated twenty-five percent
to the State Water Project, seventy-five percent to the
Federal Project’in accordance with the continuing
agreement between the two agencies, State and Federal, as
to the relative assigned responsibility for meeting
in—basfn needs.

Q. Okay. Then I would ask the question as to
what part of the project water entering the Delta in July
of 1977 and Augqust of 1977, came from releases of stored
water from the State Water Project?

A. I believe that can be obtained from the
studies made to date. I do not have those values

immediately at hand in my memory.

Q. Are you familiar with Bulletin 1687
A, I have studied it.
Q. Have you compared the calculations that are

represented by this document, this table that we just
referred to, with the representations and conclusions
contained in Bulletin 1687

A, Not specifically.

MR, NOMELLINI: All right. Let's go oft
the record so we can give you time to lock in those
tables to find my answers to the July and August project
inflow.
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(0Off-the-record discussion)

MR. NOMELLINI: Go back on the record.
THE WITNESS: These tabulations indicate

that -79.,608- acre feet of project water, that is, the

combined project water, entered the Delta in 1977, and
J6%, 500

237200 acre feet in August, 1977.
MR. NOMELLINI: Q. Okay. And that
would be project water’entering the Delta?

A, Yes.

Q. And how do you go about making that
calculation or that determination?

A, In that calculation we started at the
foothills, that is, at Keswick Reservoir on the
Sacramento, the Fair Oaks -- well, let me go back.

Keswick Dam and Reservolr on the Sacramento;
Oroville on the Feather and the Fair Oaks gauging station
on the American River, and the flow at Vernalis on thne
San Joaquin, and used other gauging stations on streams
tributary to the Delta and to the Sacramento River and

its tributaries.

0. Okay. And what are these athef gauging
stations?

A, Such as the Yuba River.

Q. At Smartville?

B, Yes.

20

BBID Exh. 294




O W W~ ey U e W ke

R R T T S T T N S T o L S = R U T & B S S S
B U1 e W OB B O @ o o~ T U d W R b

21

Q. What other ones?

A. Well, I will have to get the complete list.
They are all in the Bulletin 168.

Q. Okay. So if they are not in Bulletin 168,

they weren't included?

A, I did not mean to imply that.

Q. Do you know whether all tributaries were
included?

A, I believe they were.

Q. Did you make any review of that to make sure

they were included?

A, I have reviewed it.
0. Tell me what other tributaries were included.
A, Particularly the ones on the west side of

Sacramento Valley. I believe we have included ali
tributaries.
0. pid you include Little Johns Creek in San
Joaguin County?
A, Ho.
We used the measured flow in tne San Joaquin
River at Vernalis.

0. Do you know where Little Johns Creek is?

A, I cannot tell you exactly, no.
Q. How about Bear Creek?

A.. In the Sacramento --—

Q. In San Joaguin.
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A. I don't recall, frankly.

Q. 1s it possible that some of these minor
tributaries were not considered?

A, It is possible.

Our intent was to include ali for which we
had any data whatsoever. &nd even it we did, by any
chance, miss one or two, they were included in what we
have called the unmeasured accretions to the river, the
rivers, with which we ére principally concerned; notably,
the Sacramento, the Feather, and the American.

Q. What was your last measuring point, the
farthest downstream measuring point on the San Joaquin?

A. Vernalis.

Q. End what was your farthest downstream
measuring point on the Sacramento?

A. Sacramento.

0. So how do you account for unmeasured
accretions that occur from tributaries below those
points?

A, Where we had gauging stations downstream from
the foothill gauging station, which became tne principal
point of interest, we had the means and the data to
estimate unmeasured accretions and depletions, I might
add, also, by a mass balance technique.

Q. Okay. Okay. But I mean that's with regard —-

you've got two gauging stations.
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The difference of the number in between is an
unmeasured accretion, or however you want to detine it,
an unmeasured depletion, when it's a positive or a
negative nunber, I guess, right?

A, The difference in measured flow from an

upstream station and a downstream station corrected for

and vagacured eod o

measured diversions), that becomesﬂgﬁakﬁag have termed
unmeasured accretion or depletion, as the case may be.

Q. Okay. Now, my gqguestion is with regard -- you
said that you'‘ve accounted for these tributaries like
Duck Creek and Bear Creek in San Joaquin County in tne

term or in the figure unmeasured accretions,

Right?
A, To the extent we have the data we have done
that, ‘
Q. Okay. Well, I'm just trying to find out.

I don't think you could do it for anything
that entered into the Delta below the measuring points
that you described on the Sacramento and the Vernalis.

Now, if you can, then explain to me how you
did it. And if you can't, then I expect you to say,
"Yeah, you can't pick that up. We didn't pick it up.”
That's all.

A, If there were no downstream gauging station,
vyou are correct.

MR. KLETZING: Are those what they cali
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the eastside streams?

THE WITNESS: Yes,

MR, NOMELLINI: I don't know what's
termed eastside but they are on the east side of the
Delta. There are a number of little tributaries in San
Joagquin County that I'm familiar with. Whether there are
more elsewhere, I don't know. You know, that's a
guestion I was asking. I happen to be familiar with some
of them, that's all,

THE WITNESS: Well, the Calaveras River
for one.

MR. NOMELLINI: Right.

MR. HILDEBRAND: And the Mokelumne.

MR, NOMELLINI: Pardon me?

MR. HILDEBRAND: And the Mokelumne.

MR, NOMELLINI: Well, the Mokelumne is
probably measured in some respect.

THE WITNESS: I believe the HMokelumne is
measured at Lodi.

MR. NOMELLINI: Q. Okay. So it's
possible then that in these calculations that some of tne

tributary flow was not accounted for?

A, It is possible.
Q. Has anybody made a determination or study to
make —— to ascertain whether or not, in fact, ali these

tributaries were considered?
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A. To the best of my knowledge and belief, they
were,

Q. Okay. But you didn't make any such review?

A, I did review what the stafr has presented and

made some suggestions based upon my own personal
knowledge of other streams.

Q. Was Bear Creek in San Joaquin County
included?

A, I cannot séy ofrhand from memory.

Q. All right. And how would you go about making
that determination?

A, I would first determine is there a gauging
station at Bear Creek and where is the gauging station.

Q. How about if I told you there wasn't; would
that be helpful?

A. I would not say it would be helpful.

Q. If there was no —-- okay. We've devermined --
let's assume that we've determined that there is no
gauging station on Bear Creek.

Now what next would you do to determine
whether or not it was included?

A, If it were a significant contributor to the
Delta, I would make an attempt to estimate what the
runoff was during those two months.

0. Do you know whether Bear Creek was a

significant contributor to the Delta in July or August?
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A, I do not.
Q. Did you make any investigation to determine
whether or not minor tributaries were significant

contributors to the Delta in July and August of 197772

A, No, I have not.

Q. Did you ask the department it they had?
A, No, I did not.

Q. Okay. Getting back to how you made tne

determination or how the determination was made subject
to your review of the project infiow into the Delta in
July and August of 1977, you were explaining that you
started with —- at the foothilis and the various staging
points, Keswick Dam and Reservoir, Oroville on the
Feather, Fair Oaks on the American, Yuba River at
Smartville, Vernalis on the San Joaquin, and then some
other measurements from streams. Okay.

What did you do from there? Once you
establ ished those locations, then what did you do?

A. Corrected the flow -—- or adjusted is a better
word, adjusted the flow, measured flow, at those upstream
points for the affects of the operation of tne project
reservoirs and diversions from the projects, reservoirs
on the flow at the points I specified.

Q. So you measure the fiow in the river at that
point and then you adjust out the project affect?

A, That is correct.
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Q. With regard to Oroville, what does that
entail specifically?

A, It entails the change in storage in the
Oroville Reservoir,fkh;%flow[;;gé{tﬁérfish dive551on dam,
the change in storage in the various storage basins in
the Thermolito complex, releases back to the river from
Thermolito Afterbay and the evaporation in ali of tne
water bodies, Oroville and the Thermolito basins.

Q. How do you make sure that you remove the

project impact?

A. That is correct.
Q. I mean, how do you do that?
You just make the calculations of tne —— tne

change in storage, I guess, is measured, huh?

A, It is measured by virtue of tne fact tnat tne
elevations of the water surface are determined
periodically, and knowing the area<;é/capacity curve, you

can calculate the change in storage between two ditfferent

elevations.
Q. And what do you do with evaporation?
A, Evaporation is -- where seepage is a problem,

that is corrected, too.

0. Did you check those calculations of tne
department with regard to the project aftrects at
Oroville?

A, I have examined their calculations and

BBID Exh. 294




o WM s U e W N

BN N RN R R et b et e b et b fed et s
U e W R O 3 o = R ! e WM B

3%
o

28

satisfied myself that they are proper and reasonable
without having actually checked every figure.

0. How close do you think they are to being
accurate?

In other words, what would the range of error
be possible in this type of approach?

A, I would think that such adjustments can be
made within an accuracy of plus or minus ten percent.

Q. Is that fof the overall project aftect or is
that just for like measuring reduction in storage?

A, I believe that that is a reasonable range of
error. A possible inaccuracy is a better term in the
overall affect.

Q. How do you account for diversions that are
taking place by water users other than the projects that
may be above these reservoirs?

A, N In most cases those are already measured or
were'particular}y/measured in 1977. There are good
records where the actual diversion is not measured. The
&ep@rtment resorted to calculations based on the power
recorﬁs, pumpﬁ, p@f pumpingﬂfw“~**

Q. And how -- with regard to the estimating
diversions based on power records from pumps, how
accurate are those types of estimates?

A, Those are probably within the range of plus

or minus fifteen to twenty percent.
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Q. Now, you say “probably fifteen to twenty

percent. ®
What factors would you have to look at to
refine that estimate of potential variance or error?

A, You'd -- one would have to look at tneJﬁéégﬁ
curve for the pump and its efticiency and to estimate
that one would either need an actual efriciency test or
one could approximate the efficiency knowing the original
rating for the pump, head discharge rating, and the age.

Q. What kind of a range of actual pump == I
guess we should say actual pumping plant efriciencies
could one encounter?

A, As a matter of judgment one could encounter
ranges of an overall efficiency of a diversion pumping
plant from fifty-five percent to eighty percent.

Q. Okay. Focusing in on the low end of that, is
it possible to have as low as forty percent efriciency on

a pumping plant?

A. Yes.
Q. How low can you go?
A, You can go very low it the owner wishes to

pay the bill.
Q. So we can go all the way down to maybe ten or
twenty percent?
A, I would say twenty would be a very low value.
Q. Okay. Well, if twenty is the low value, then
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twenty to eighty is sixty percent, why wouldn't there be
a possible variation to fifteen percent as opposed to
fifteen to twenty percent?

A. Onevmust -— or we have assumed, of course,
that it is in the owner's interest to keep the efriciency
up and thus minimize its power bill.

Q. You have some sound foundation for that
assumption being applied in this case?

A. No, I have‘no sound foundation for tnat in
this particular instance.

Q. Do you know when the efriciency tests were
taken for ~- by the department or the Bureau of
Reclamation for their respective estimates of diversions?

A, No, I do not.

Q. Efficiencies could change from time to time,
could they not?

A, Yes.

0. So in order to make a proper estimate you
would want to take a test somewhere pretty close to when
you were making your calculation?

A, That is correct.

Q. Did you make any review of the Department of
Water Resources' calculations to determine whether or not
the pump efficiency measurements were made?

A, No, I have not.

Q. End I gquess you haven't really reviewed their

30
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calculations either?

A, Not to that detail.

Q. With regard to diversions above the
reservoirs, are there some diversions that have taken
place because of the project's construction -- I use the
term project induced diversions; are there any above the
dam that you think would not have taken place had the
project not come into being?

A, None that I know of above the dams.

Q. Are there any below the dam that you know
about that could be categorized as project inauced?

A, I don't know of any specitically.

I would say that there may weli have been.

Q. And what would the nature of tnose be? I
mean, how does it occur?

A. Well, in the Sacramento Valley there have
been in effect firm water supply made available by the
projects. It is quite possible that there have been
lands irrigated that might not have been irrigated

otherwise because of the variation in available warer

supply.
Q. Do you know what the extent of thnat could be?
A, As far as I know, there have been no stuaies

made of that.
Q. Could that involve as much as a couple

thousand acres in the Sacramento Valley?
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A, With the qualification that my answer is
purely speculative, I would have to admit, yes.

Q. It could be a lot more than that ir we are
going to speculate, huh?

A, Yes, I would say that's possible.

Q. With regard to the Feather River area, do you
have any feel for what that potential might be?

A. No, I do not.

Q. Do you kno& whether or not any adjustments
were made in the calculations of this project fiow to the
Delta to take into account water uses that would fali in
the category of project induced?

A. No. The actual records of water use were
used wherever available and to the extent available.

Q. But wouldn't that -- it you used the actual
record, that would be of a diversion by somebody who
would not have been diverting had the project not put

this continuous water supply in the stream.

A, That is possible.

Q. So he would be included as an actual
diversion?

A, Yes,

Q. Okay. So there is no adjustment, that you

know of, that®s been made to these calculations to sort
out the project induced possibility?

A, To the —— I am not aware of any studies that
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have been made of what the level of developmnent would
have been had the projects not been constructed and not
been in operation.

Q. Do you agree that that is a relevant
consideration when you start talking about project
benefits and payments for benefits?

A, No, I do not agree.

Q. Why isn't that a relevant consideration, in
your opinion? |

A, Those are -- for two reasons, in my opinion;
one, those are either contract commitments or those
diversions are made under state granted water rights or
made from ground water underground water rlghté.

Q. So the project -—- do you think it's right for
the projects to come in and claim benefits but disregard
burdens that came with them because there was a contract

or a water right?

A, May I ask for a repeat of the question?
Q. It was probably more in a statement than a
guestion.

But are you saying that it is your opinion
that it is proper for the water projects to seek
compensation for benefits while at the same time
disregarding burdens because there are contracts or warer
rights?

A, I believe it is my opinion that ali who
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benefit should reimburse the Federal or State agencies

where the benefit is obtained,

Q. I assume that's your personal feeling?
A, It is.
Q. Do you think they should compensate for tne

actual benefit which takes into account the balancing of
benefits and burdens to come down to a net benefit? Or
do you think they should just pay for benefit regardless
of detriment or burden caused by the project?

A, Well, when I said benefits, I meant net
benefits that have accrued because of the operation of
the projects.

Q. Okay. But net benefits, as you see them,
would not take into account project induced diversions?

A. Under my view, those who -- in the valley who
benefited from the projects should also pay for the
benefits obtained.

g. You are saying those people ought to be
paying for those benefits, the people up on the river who
took --

A. For such benefits as they have benefited ——
excuse my —- for such benefits as tney have obtained or
have received.

Q. Okay.

MR. FLETZING: HMost of them are.

THE WITNESS: That is true.
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MR. NOMELLINI: Q. In this particular
calculation where the project fiow has been calculated as
going to the Delta, do you agree there has been no
adjustment to take out the project induced flow with
regard to some diverters in the Sacramento. Valley and
along the Feather River, right?

A, Bgain, may I ask for a clarification?

Q. Okay. I think you stated earlier that you
know of no adjustment being made in terms of determining
the impact on the Delta?

A. That is correct.

Q. Okay. So we have —- we do have people who
divert from the stream under ah alleged raiparian right,
do we not, upstream of the Delta in tne Sacramento and
along the Feather?

A, That is correct.

Q. All right. Now, for those people it is
possible that they are benefiting from project fiow
because they are experiencing flows on a more regular
basis or whatever other possibility there is.

A, Well, the riparians along the Sacramento are
benefiting -- have entered into contracts with the Bureau
of Reclammation for Central Valley Project water to firm
up their riparian right or to expand it. And they are
paving in accordance with the terms of the contracts.

Q. Are you saying that all of these diverters
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along the Sacramento River have contracts for warter
delivery?

A, I did not use the term all.

I believe, as I remember it, the Bureau made
a very extensive efrort to identity all of the riparians
along the Sacramento River that were diverting from the
river under riparian right and to enter into contracts
with them to provide a firm water supply.

Q. All right.( In this analysis, let's assume a
riparian along the Sacramento River signed a contract
with the Bureau of Reclamation to firm up his riparian
right and pay an amount to firm it up.

How do we know whether we should classity
that as a contract delivery from the project or a
riparian use that should be charged against natural fiow?

A, The records of the Bureau of Reclamation,
together with the studies that were made in 1956, under
what at that time was called the Cooperative Stuay, and I
regret I do not have the exact date, but it was a very
extensive study --

MR. BABER: (Indicating)
MR, NOMELLINI: 1In the 1950's.
THE WITNESS: Thank you.
The report on the 1956 Cooperative Stuay
Program, entitled "Water Use and Water Rights Along The

Sacramento and In The Sacramento—San Joaguin Delta,® in
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March, 1957, is the reference.

I believe that we made a sincere and rather
comprehensive effort to identity all of the riparians
along the river and the extent of their riparian right.

Q. Do you know how that was used in this
particular calculation?

A, We used that so —- the Bureau records and
that source for identitication of riparian diverters.

0. What I'm c&ncerned about is the split of tnat
diverter's water use, again what should be termed as a
contract diversion and what is actually a riparian
diversion that would have been taken —-—- taking place
regardless of the projects and properly chargeable

against natural flow.

A. I believe the Bureau's records make that
split.

Q. Did these calculations make that split?

A, We have attempted to do so.

Q. Where in that blue binder do you do tnis
spl itting?

A, Well, I will have to refer to the other

tabulations table.
It is done in -- may I?
Q. Yeah.
A, It is to be found in the table labeled ®"D. S.

Sacramento Diversions By Reach,® ana it's numbered Rumber
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Q. All right. And that table refiects an

attempt to adjust out from the riparian diversion the
amount of water that should properly be characterized as
a project-related diversion, is that correct?

A. Yes.

0. And you oversaw that calculation? I haven't
looked at that but --

A, I have diséussed it with the department stafr
and believe it to have been properly derived.

Q. With regard to project related water uses,
the project itself by adding more water to the stream
than would occur naturally would, in fact, and I'm
talking about below the dams now, result in greater
evaporative losses and increased seepage or percolation
from the river, would it not?

A. It is correct that the augmented flows in tne
river could increase the consumptive use by riparian

vegetation, that is, natural riparian vegetation.

Q. And what about increased evaporative losses?
A. To some extent, yes.
g. End that would be by reason of an increased

water surface, if the stream bank was tapered or
something like that?
A, That is correct.

Q. What about increased percolation?
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A, That could occur. That could be a result.

0. In these calculations was there any attempt
to adjust for those factors down below the dams?

A, That is an element that enters into or is
accounted for by the term unmeasured accretions and
depletions by reach.

Q. Okay. But, I mean, how do you take it out as
a project affect?

A, We have not attempted to do that.

Q. Is there any reason why that shouldn't be
done?
A, In my personal opinion, it is not necessary

because we are here concerned with the amount of water
that actually reached the Delta in July and August of
1977.

Q. Okay. I don't understand that because we are
trying to characterize the amount of water that reached
the Delta that is project water.

A, That is correct.

Q. Okay. And why wouldn't you take that into
account in that calculation?

A, One could attempt to take it into account.
It could be an extremely complicated and lengthy job.

Q. Okay. 1It's a lengthy, complicated job, but
from a logical and fairness standpoint it should be
adjusted out, shouldn't it?
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A. May I answer in partial context to your
guestion?

Q. Yeah. I'1ll take your answer any way you want
to give it.

A, From a complete hydrologic analysis, yes, it

would be, possibly should be, taken out. Whether or not
it*s fair, I offer no opinion.
Q. That surprises me because I always viewed you
as a fair man.
Why would you think it's fair not to account
for it?
A. I didn't -— may I correct the statement?
I did not say it was not -- that it was

necessarily not fair. I don't believe that I did mean

that.
Q. Okay. Let me ask it simply.
Is it unfair not to make that adjustment?
A. Under the circumstances, I would say it is un --

it would be unfair and unnecessary to make the adjustment
because, as I've said, we are here concerned with the
amount of water that actually reached the Delta from
various sources,
Q. Okay. You say that and you fold your arms,
but I'm not understanding that part of your reasoning.
I thought we just went through that, and you

agreed that in determining the amount of water that
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actually reached the Delta, that to determine what part
of that water is project water, that this analysis should
be done, right?

A, /Fremwanfégéﬁtwﬁe'the best possible estimate
of the amount of project water that reached the Delta, if
that were relevant, those induced aftects would have to

be taken into account,

Q. Okay. HNow, you said if that were relevant.
A, Uh-huh (yes).
0. Don't you agree it is relevant how much

project water reached the Delta in July and Augqust of
19777
A, Not in the context of the issues in tnis
case, as I understand it, which, if I may ofrer my
opinion on that, we are here concerned, as I said betore,
with the amount of project water that actually reached
the Delta in those two years --
MR. BABER: Those two months, right?
THE WITNESS: Those two months. Excuse
me,
MR. NOMELLINI: Well, I agree with you.
I think you just explained that the amount of project
water that actually reached the Delta is a relevant
consideration in this lawsuit.
Q. Right?

A, As measured, yes, it is.
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Q. Okay. 2nd all we can measure is tne flow
that was actually in the river?

A, That is correct.

Q. Andvthat flow in the river at the measuring
stations where it came into the Delta was part natural
flow, part project flow, and probably part some other
flows, right?

A, It depends on how you define natural fiow.

We have attempted to separate out to'the best
we can the difference in the water that reached the Delta
between that which could be attributed to the operations
of the projects versus that which otherwise occurred, and
again this all depends on how you define the term
natural.

Q. Okay. But, in any event, we don't have any
problem determining the element that's attributed to
project £flow?

A, We have attempted to do so within reason.

Q. All right., And you agreed with me that in
determining project flow it was relevant to consider tne
additional evaporative losses and seepage losses that
came about by reason of the prcfect fiow over and above

all the other flows, right?

A, For an exact estimate, may I go a little
further?
Q. Sure.
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A, It would also be necessary to make the same
sort of determination with respect to the other sources
of water reaching the Delta, how much of tnat would be
lost and in what fashion.

Q. Sure, I would agree that it's relevant, but
we are looking at the project impact, and in this lawsuit
we are seeking compensation for the project impact.

A, As I understand the issues, the state is
seeking compensation for a quantity which is stated to be
the amount of State Water Project water that was diverted
in terms of guantity acre feet.

Q. We are going to get to that, and you are the
guy that's going to tell us how you get —-

MR. BABER: You mean divert by each of
the defendants?

THE WITNESS: I beg your pardon?

MR. BABER: You mean divert by each of
the defendants?

THE WITHESS: Yeah.

MR. NOMELLINI: Q. Back on the
calcul ations that were performed to determine project
inflow to the Delta in July and August of 1977.

You stated that you started at the dams, made

those calculations, or the department did under your
rough review. Then that was subtracted out from the

measured flow in the stream, and then diversions were
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accounted for in the stream.

Right?
A, Yes.
Q. And some of those were actualiy measured,

some were estimated from pump records and PG&E records,

and were any simply estimated without the use of pump

records?
A, I can't answer that from memory. I'd have to
check the -- again, go back to the original computations

to be able to answer that question speciticaliy.

Q. Now, with regard to unmeasured accretions,
you told us that that was the difference between the
gauging stations and that accounted for other fiows and

depletions in between the stations, right?

A, It was a mass balance between the gauging
stations.

Q. And how were return flows handled?

A, They were included in the balance wherever

known and wherever measured, and in the Sacramento Valliey
there are extensive measurements of the return flows.

Q. Is there any relevance to the estimates of
percentage return flow in Bulletin 132-78 to the
calculations that were performed under your supervision?

And I'1]1 show you the Bulletin 132-78, page
17 (indicating).
A, No, I do not believe that we used those
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percentages in this calculation because, as I stated,
most of the return flows are measured.

Q. And so they would end up between -- it they
were up above a measuring station, then they would end up
as an unmeasured accretion or as a measured return fiow?

A. That's right.

MR. KLETZING: Say, could we —- we

haven't had a really break. Could we have a ten-minute

break?
MR, HNOMELLINI: Sure.
(Brief recess)
MR. NOMELLINI: Okay. Back on the
record.
We just got finished talking about return
flows.

And you indicated that they were not, to your

knowledge, utilized in the calculations, is that correct?

A, Are you referring to the percentages?
0. Right.
A, To the best of my knowledge, those were not

used in this latest series of stucies.
Q. Okay. Do you think it's possible that
additional lands were devoted to agriculture within the

flood plane area because of the construction of tne
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various dams?

A, I think that is correct.

Q. Do you know in this stuay whether or not
those lands were categorized as a riparian use or as a
project-related diversion?

A, Unless they were actually riparian by some --
as a result of some study, they were not categorized as
riparian.

Q. If they wefe within the fiocod plane -- well,
do you know whether or not they were categorized as
riparian for the purpose of these calculations?

A. No, I do not. I have not looked at that nor
do I know at this point in time,

Q. Okay. So that if they were categorized as
riparian, then they would be charged against the natural
flow in these calculations, would they not?

A, That would have been the case.

Q. A1l right. And if they were project induced
riparian uses, then do you think it is fair to charge
them against the natural flow rather than a project fiow?

A, Well, to answer that, I'11 have to encroach
on the legal bit.

The riparian right existed whether the
project did or not.

Q. Okay. I asked you whether or not it was fair

to charge those against the natural flow as opposed to
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the project waters for the purpose of the calculations in
this action.

A, (Pause) I would have to answer that by
saying that that is basically a legal question, and I
doubt that I'm competent to answer it.

Q. With all those gray hairs you've got to be a
judge of fairness,

And that's all I ask is that do you think
it's fair?
MR, KLETZING: He answered you.
MR. NOMELLINI: I know you think it's
fair, Russ.
MR. KLETZING: No. No. He answered
you.
MR. NOMELLINI: Well, he didn't answer
the question.
MR. KLETZING: He said he thought it was
a legal guestion that he ——
MR. NOMELLINI: Well, ®"Do you think it's
fair® calls for an answer yes or no or an explanation.
MR, RLETZING: Well, it calis for
whatever he wants to say.
MR. NOMELLINI: Q. Well, is there
anything else you want to say on that question?
Do you think it's fair to charge those

against the natural flow rather than against the project-
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flow if, in fact, we've got some that fall in tnat
category?

A, If, in fact, those diversions were made under
a contract with‘the State or the United States, then I
would say it would not have been fair.

Not knowing the particular circumstances of a
particular piece of property, irrigated agricultural
land, I would not be able to answer it in specific terms.

Q. In calculating the amount of project water
that reached the Delta in July and August of 1977, how
were the return flows categorized?

What were they categorized as, natural fiow
or project flow?

A, We made an attempt to distinguish between
project water induced return flows versus those return
flows which had their origin in the use of riparian fiows
or other appropriative rights.

Q. Okay. And where is that determination
reflected in the document?

A, It is refilected in Table One entitled
*Natural Supply and Riparian Use, Sacramento Valley and
Delta, 1977," and, particularly, in line 27.

Q. - In line 27, as you referred, it says, "Total
Sacto Valley return flow claimed for project supply.”

And it's got fifteen point six million acre

feet for July --
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MR. WHITRIDGE: I think that's the wrong
one, Dan.
THE WITNESS: Thousand. Thousand.
MR. NOMELLINI: Oh, is that thousand?
THE WITNESS: ‘Yes.
MR, NOMELLINI: Q. Oh, okay. Fifteen
thousand six hundred for July, and 44,6u0 for August.
Is that correct?
A, That is correct.
MR. WHITRIDGE: Doesn't line seven have
fourteen point three and thirty-eight point six?
MR. NOMELLINI: Okay.
Q. Well, maybe you can explain that, Harveye.
Line 27 looks like it goes on across -- just
tell me what that project related return fiow is for July

and August.

A, For July it is 15,600.
And for August, 44,600. That's for -- I was --
yes.
Q. Are those the right numbers?
A, Yes.
0. Okay. All right., Now, how do you get the

15,600 return flow for July?
A. That is taking the total return fiows and
adjusting that by the ratio between project supplied

diversions versus total diversions. You take the total -—-
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in other words, we have a value for the total return
flows, most of which are major, like Colusa drain.

The total project supplied diversions were a
quantity, shall we say X.

The total use of water was Y.

So the project induced return fiow would be
the total return flow divided by Y and multiplied by X.

Q. So you just prorated them based on project

diversion versus natural flow or total flow?

A, Total diversion.

Q. Okay. Project diversion versus total
diversion?

A, Uh-huh (yes).

Q. So if our project diversions are ofr, so

would this ratio be oft?
A, Yes, that follows.
Q. How did you account for return fiows from

ground water pumps along the river?

A. We did not make a specific correction on that
basis,
Q. Wouldn't that create a distortion in tnis

logical and fair approach?

A, To some extent it could.

Q. How extensive is the ground water pumping in
the vicinity of the rivers in the Sacramento Valley?

A, I would have to go back and read the reports
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on that. I do not recall offhand.

Q. Do you have any feel to whether or not it was
higher in July and August of 1977, than it would have
been in a normal type of year?

A, I can only answer that that is a possibility.
It would be in accordance with normal experience.

0. Was this your recommendation to prorate the
return flow based on the diversions?

A, It is my view that that is as reasonable a
method of getting at the values as possible.

Q. Well, don't you agree it would be more
reasonable to take into consideration the possible impact
of the ground water pumping contribution?

A, One could do that, yes.

Q. Well, don't you think that's more reascnable
to include that than just take the total diversions from
the stream and prorate the return fiow?

A, If one, again, is to refine this to the —-
and take into account every possibility, yes, one should
do that.

0. Do you think it's insigniticant? I mean,
this factor of the ground water pumping, do you think
that's insignificant for July and August of 187772

A, Inasmuch as most of that ground water
pumping, which occurs along the river, and that is where

the affect is most pronounced, in fact, is supplied by
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recharge from the river. It tends to, I thaink, begin to
cancel out.

0. Well, let's assume it's supplied by recharge
from the river.

That in efrect would be a diversion of sorts,
would it not?

A, That is correct.

Q. And in this proration of return fiow, that
would be a diversion that would not be categorized as
project, correct?

A, One could so categorize it, yes.

0. Well, it just seems to me that it's obvious
if that is like a diversion, that it would increase the Y
in the calculation that you described, and, therefore,
the project share of that return flow would be diminished
and properly so.

Do you disagree with that?

A, Well, may I think it through for a moment?
Q. Sure,
A. It would also increase the X,

Now, that would not -=-
Q. Sure, the X is the project share?
A, You would not come out with the same
percentage, that's true.
Q. From my stanagpoint for my clients it would

look to me like we would definitely want to see that
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diversion accounted for in any probation because to do it
your way, you are going to end up with more return fiow
attributed to the project because you're giving tnem
their percentage share without adding in that diversion
from the river.

A, If you assume that -- it you assume that the
ground water pumped adjacent to the river is supplied by
recharge of project water, you might get more return fiow
because you would be ihcreasing the total project
diversions a much higher percentage than you would be
increasing the total diversions.

Q. That's fine. If you want to approach it tnat
way, that's okay with me, too.

You think that that ground water -- the
ground water basins were filled up with project water and
that constitutes the project diversion?

A, No. I did not refer to what the ground water --

What I said was that the pumping along the
river is in effect a draft on the river and on the fiow
in the river because of recharge.

Q. Eng --

A, It is true that the original amount of warter
in the ground water basins was not project water.

Q. Okay. But for the purpose of these
calculations that you oversaw, any losses from the

channel, the depletions between the stations constituted
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a reduction of the natural flow, did they not?

A, Yes, there would be -- they would constitute
a reduction of both, chargeable both to the project fiow
and to the naturai flow. A given molecule of water may
have been from that -- did recharge the gr\ound water
aquifer. It may have originated inw&§§§2§}fiaw. It may
have originated in project releases,

Q. Can you show me in these calculations where

you charge part of the channel depletion to project

water ?
A, I don't believe we did.
Q. Okay. 2And you told me earlier that you

didn't make any adjustment.

A, That's right.
Q. So, you know, you're not telling me the right
thing.

You are assuming in your own mind that it
would be fair to do this, but it wasn't done in tnat
calculation, was it?

A, No, it was not.

Q. Okay. So we started at the dams on the
various river points, and we calculated what we think was
natural flow, and we are going to put guotes around that.

Then as that water came down the river, we
measured and estimated diversions and we did this

estimate on return flows, and we charged alt the
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unmeasured accretions in the negative sense against the
project £low and the unmeasured accretions when they
added to the river.
Did we credit all of those to the natural
flow in your calculations? Do you know whether or not --
A, I will have to go back and make sure my
memory is good. V

Q. Okay.

A, As I recall it, the unmeasured accretions and
depletions were considered as part of the natural fiow.

I would like to say that I wiil attempt to
check that as I review nmy deposition, and if I was wrong,
I will note that that answer was wrong and where the
correct values may be found.

0. Okay.

So now as we go down the river and we get to
the point, the last measuring station near the Delta on
the various rivers, and I realize we already covered
these other little tributaries, I think we are going to
put those to the side, we then have project water and
other water, huh?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. Is the other water broken down between
natural flow and some other designation?

A, No.

Q. Okay. So we have project water and other
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water, and then what do we do with that at the Delta to
determine the benefits --

A. The first charge against the other natural
flow or other water, as it has been characterized. The
first charge against that is for the Delta -- riparian
Delta use after satisfying the ocutfiow requirements i%?
the channel depletions,

Q. All right. So we've got other water. Then
we take away outflow ahd then we have the -- take away

the channel depletions.,

A, Channel depletions.
0. Okay. Focusing first on outfiow, is it fair
to charge —— or did you charge ali of the outfliow to the

natural flow or this quote other water?

A. All of the outflow, which was aliowed to fiow
out of the Delta in order to meet the State Water
Resources Control Board objectives, was charged against
the other water as a first call.

0. Okay. Was there any outfiow not charged
against, and I'm talking about for July and August of
1977, was there any outflow not charged against the other

water ?

fie

~the-outflow project water.,

Q. Are there any beneficlaries of the Delta

outflow in July and August of 1877, other than the Delta
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riparian diverters?

A. The riparian diverters in tne uplands and the
Delta -- ecertain-of- the Delta appropriators.

Q. The Federal Central Valley Project benefited
from the outflow in July and August of 1977, did they
not?

A, Well, as —— the Delta outflow was necessary
to maintain the quality in accordance with the State
Water Resources Control Board water quality objectives
under the Delta water Quality Control Plan as moditied by
the Board under emergency conditions.

Q. Okay. I understand that statement, and I
understand what you're saying.

But, I mean, didn't the outfliow give a
benefit to the Federal Water Project insofar as they
divert from the Delta?

A, It assisted in maintaining at a proper
guality at the Delta pumping plant, yes. ’

0. Okay. And didn't the outflow benefit the

State Water Project in terms of their diversions?

A, My prior answer referred to the State Water
Project.
Q. Oh, okay.

What about the Federal Project?
A, The same is true,

Q. And what about the Contra Costa Water
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District?
A, It is probable that the quality at the Delta --

at the Rock Slough pumps would not have been -- would
have been much worse had it not been for the outfiow,

which is an indirect way of answering your question.

Q. The answer is yes, huh?
A, " Yes.
Q. Okay. Can you think of any other

beneficiaries of the Delta outfiow other than the Delta
riparians and then these three export projects that we
talked about?

A, Well, of cour se, the fish —= certain of the
State Water Control Board objectives have to do with the
protection of the fishery and wildlife resources, too.

Q. A1l right. How about recreation? Does
recreation benefit from Delta outfiow?

A, I suppose, yes, to the extent that boaters
and waterskiers prefer to --

Q. -— recreate where there are no sharks?

A, True,

MR. KLETZING: FKeep them out of
Stockton.

MR, NOMELLINI: We are talking about the
fish kind of sharks.

MR. KLETZING: Oh.

MR. NOMELLINI: Q. Bow about
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navigation; does navigation benefit from outfliow?

A, As a personal observation, I would have to
say I don't see how.

Q. Okay. With regard to charging ali of this
outflow to other water, is it fair, in your opinion, to
make that charge of all the outflow to the other water
without some kind of allocation to the other

beneficiaries of outflow in July and August of 197772

A, We made that charge on the direction of
counsel.

Q. Do you think it's fair?

A. I would have to say that I think in my own

personal opinion as distinguished from instructions, that
probably an allocation of the amount of outflow among the
wide variety of beneficiaries would be fair.

Q. Okay. You mentioned that you charged the
other water with outflow and channel depletion.

Now, how do you determine what the outfiow

is?

A, Because it is impossible to actualliy --
physically measure the outflow. It is a calculated value
from the total inflow adjusted for channel depletions and

Delta consumptive use.

Q. Okay.
A. May I add to that?
Q. Yeah.
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A, Part of the Delta consumptive use, of course,
is involved in the channel depletion that's evaporation
from the channel surfaces and the natural riparian
vegetation.

Q. So we take inflow and then we subtract
channel depletion --

A, You subtract the uses within the Delta.

Q. Okay. Channel depletion and other losses,
huh?
A, And Delta uses, consumptive uses, That is,

the consumptive use of applied water within the Delta.
Q. Okay. So we take inflow. You tell me what

you do with it to get outflow.

A, Inflow minus --
Q. Minus --
A, -— the channel depletions, which include some

consumptive use, minus the consumptive use within the
Delta of applied water. The residual is considered to be
the outflow.

Q. Okay. It appears to me that if you took
channel depletions and consumptive use, you'd be doubling
up on the deduction from inflow, wduld you not?

A. No, because channel depletion —— the
consumptive use considered there is only the evaporation
from the channel water surfaces and the consumptive use

of the natural riparian vegetation.

60
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Q. Okay. All right.

Now, how was channel depletion measured?

A, It also is calculated value from the area --
from the area of the water surface and the evaporation
rate as determined from available evaporation stations
and the extent of what I have termed natural riparian

vegetation and the consumptive use of that,

0. Okay. So it's not measured, it's calculated?

A, That is correct.

Q. And what about the consumptive use of applied
water?

A, That again --

Q. How do you get that?

A, That is based upon the best available

evidence we have, measurements of the actual amount of
water comsumptively used by transpiration of the various

crops and the acreages.

Q. And how did you participate in that
determination?
A, I did not. That is Doctors Henderson and

Pruitt that have done that work.
Q. Do you agree that were no measured depletions
or diversions into the Delta by the various Delta users?
A, Some of them were measured, I believe, I
believe Byron-Bethany diversions are measured, for one.

MR. BABER: By the District's own
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records?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

MR. BABER: And were supplied to you?

THE WITNESS: That is correct.

MR. NOMELLINI: Q. Okay. So with the
exception of Byron-Bethany, do you know of any others
that were measured?

A, I do not recall any others.
Most . . . (witness shrugs shoulders)
0. So you just depended on these other people;
you don't know whether that figure is right or wrong?

n P L

A, I have accepted their results and relied on

them for their statement,

Q. So if they are wrong, your further
conclusions are going to be wrong, which are based on
those then, huh?‘

A, That would be correct.

Q. Do you agree that the Delta channels, because
they are connected to the bay and the ocean, would always

have water in them absent inflow from the various

projects?

A. From a guantitative standpoint, that is
correct,

Q. So the project influence is really with

regard to the quality of the water then in the Delta?

A, That is the purpose of salinity control.

62

BBIDExi294




3 W00 =1 oy T b W N b

B BN ROR R ke b ed bl b et bt fed el el
o e W N @ @ o ™ R e W Ny

63

Q. In terms of this calculation of Delta
outflow, if there were other channel depletions that took
place that were not properly estimated below the
measuring points going into the Delta, then that cutfiow
figure could be high, could it not?

A. It could be. .

May I add to my prior testimonyjzﬁ the
calculation of outflow the exports must be deducted,
also., I failed to mention that,.

Q. So you have to take inflow and subtract tne
in-channel depletions, the consumptive use of a supplied
water within the Delta and the exports to reach the
calculation of outflow?

A. That is correct.

Q. Did you check the figures for the export
values for July and August of 197772

A. Ko, I have not.

0. Do you know whether or not the State figures
are the same as the Federal figures?

A, No, I do not.

I believe they are all published by the U. S.
Geological Survey in their reports.

MR. KLETZING: What do you mean the
State figures are the same as the Federal figures?
MR, NOMELLINI: The figures used by the

Department of Water Resources, I wanted to know whether
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they were the same as the Bureau's figures. The Bureau
puts out a daily report that has fiqures in it.
MR. KLETZING: Oh, okay.
MR. NOMELLINI: And I was just wondering
if he made a comparison.
He said he didn't.

Q. Do you know where the fiqures came from that
were used in this calculation for export?

A, It came from the operation -- as far as the
State Water Project is concerned, it came from the
operation reports of the State Water Project.

Q. Do you know where the Federal figures came
from?

A, From the -- where within the Bureau hierarchy
I do not know. But we used the Bureau values of the

amount exported through the Tracy pumps.

Q. But you didn't check it?

A, And the Contra Costa Water District, also.
Q. But you didn't review those figures?

A, No, I did not. I did not.

Q. Did you even ask these people where they got

the figures or are you just assuming where they got the

figures?
A, I have asked them where they got them.
g. Okay. BAnd you were told that the State Water

Project figures came from the State reports and the
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Bureau figures came from the Bureau?

A, That is correct.

Q. And where did the Contra Costa County Water
District -- ‘

A, The Contra Costa Water District diversion is

a Bureau diversion.

0. Do they -- does the Bureau measure it?

A, It is measured, yes.

Q. But does tﬁe Bureau measure it?

A, I cannot say whether it is Bureau personnel

that actually measured it or District personal. I do not

know.
Q. But the figures came from the Bureau?
A, Yes.
Q. Okay. So you took infiow, you subtract

in-channel depletions and consumptive use of applied
water in the Delta.

A. And exports.

0. Angd exports,

And you told me the consumptive use of
appl ied water in the Delta was calculated and given to
you by others,

Do you know whether or not the Delta was
treated in a consistent manner in that calculation?

A, Insofar as I am aware, Yyes.

Q. Are you aware of any distinction made in that
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calculation between Delta uplands and lowlands?

A, Yes, there was.

Q. And what distinction was made there as
relevant to the calculation?

A, The first distinction, of course, is the
geographic distinction that the Delta uplands or tnose
areas supplied from the Delta above five feet above mean
sea level.

We did, baéed on certain studies made by the
Bureau, use a value for riparian uses in the Delta
uplands of twenty percent of the total use because, in
our opinion and based on the available‘ev1dence, there
are some riparian lands in the —— what have been termed
the Delta uplands.

Q. And so the assumption was made that twenty
percent of the Delta uplands are riparian?

A, That is correct.

Q. Or twenty percent of the water use in thne
uplands was riparian?

A, Twenty percent of the water use is a better
way of putting it.

Q. Okay.

Did you check that calculation of the twenty
percent?

A, It has been checked against the available

studies that -- primarily those from the Bureau.
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Q. But did you check it?

A, No, I did not.

Q. Do you think it's right?

A, I have no -— at this point in time I have no

basis for an opinion on that.

0. Okay. Do you know whether or not urban use
in the Delta uplands was treated as just a wash?

A, No. We made a correction for the urban use.

Q. Okay. Tell me about that correction that we,
you and somebody else made.

A, Primarily these -- that estimate was made by
Doctors Henderson and Pruitt in estimating the
consumptive use factor to be applied.

Q. Okay. So Henderson and Pruitt estimated the
consumptive use factor to be applied, huh?

A. That is correct.

0. And you are about to point to that adjustment

in those tables some place, huh?

A, I believe I can £ind it ir you wish,
Q. Okay. If you could.
A, The summary of Delta consumptive uses is to

be found in Table Number 31.

Q. A1l right. What I'm concerned about is the
adjustment that you talked about with regard to the urban
use in the uplands.

A, Are you —-

BBID EXh. 294




O W O = U s W R

BN RO MR R b et e P el et ded bt peg e
o w -9 L 5] b [ ] B o o [+ [, T N (P8 (X [

68

Q. You told me that Henderson and Pruitt --
first you told me that you used the term "we made an
adjustment in the urban use for the uplands.”®

Then I asked you to explain that, and you
said, "Henderson and Pruitt estimated the consumptive use
factor to be applied,® and all I'm trying to do is
understand what the adjustment was that you're referring
to.

A, Well, theré was a ~— Henderson and Pruitt
estimated, on the basis of their experience and
information, what the net consumptive use of the urban
areas was.

I was incorrect when I said “we.”

0. Okay. And you think they made some kind of
adjustment in the urban area that changed the approach
from one of treating the urban area as a wash to some
other analysis?

Maybe you don't know. I'm just asking.

A, Well, I think one has to take into account
all those things. I don't believe that it would be
proper to regard it, if I understand your terminology
correctly, as a wash.

Q. Okay. I agree with you.

In previous depositions, if my recollection
is correct, that the State's people said that they

treated the urban use in the uplands as being a wash and
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that the return flow was ignored because they felt the
urban use from the channel was about the same and,
therefore, they just ignored it.

MR, EKLETZING: Oh, I don't think that's
what the testimony was before.

MR. NOMELLINI: Okay.

Q. Tell me how the urban return flows were
handled in your calculations, urban return flows below
the measuring points of inflow into the Delta.

MR. KLETZING: Well, let me tell you
what the testimony was before.

MR. NOMELLINI: Okay.

MR. KLETZING: Okay.

It was that —- the wash was that urban areas
receive their supplies from ground water or from outside
the Delta, and, therefore, their consumptive uses of
water from outside the Delta doesn't aftect the mass
balance in the Delta. That's what they are talking about
was a wash.

MR. NOMELLINI: Q. Do you understand

what Mr. Kletzing says?

A, Yes.

Q. Do yvou agree that that was done in your
calculation?

A, No. We actually used the consumptive use of

the urban areas.
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Q. Okay.

A, And included the supply from ground water as
well as import.

Q. Okay. So you went in, looked at the actual
consumptive use in these urban areas, looked at the
supply of water that came from the underground or

imported and took that into consideration?

A, That is correct.

Q. Okay. 2And what did you do with the return
flow?

A, In dealing with the Delta we have always used
the net effect of consumptive use —- consumptive demands.

Q. Okay. Let's take Stockton, for example.

What did you do with the return fiow from the
Stockton sewage treatment plant?
A, I do not recall.
0. . If I told you it was ignored in the

calculation, do you think that®*s possible?

A, I have no opinion.

Q. Okay. You don't know?

A, I don't know.

0. All right. 1In terms of the in-channel

depletions, you talked about riparian vegetation uses
and, I guess, evaporative losses from water surfaces.
All of those were charged against other fiow,

is that correct?
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A, Yes,

Q. Bll right, Don't those same losses apply
like outflow so that they should be charged against alil
the users of that particular waterway or channel system?

A. I suppose that that could be done, yes.

Q. But I mean shouldn't it be done? Isn't that
one of those same things where you were probably
instructed by counsel to do it one way where a fair
approach would have been another?

A, It is —- well, to put it simply, in my
personal opinion, yes.

Q. Did you arrive at any opinions as to what the
water guality would have been in the Delta absent the
State Water Project in July and Augqust of 197772

A, As regards the water gquality that would have
obtained in the Delta had the Federal Central Valley
Project and the State Water Project not been in
operation, I am depending on the work that has been done
and is being done by Dwight Russell of the department
staff in the utilization of the so~called.§;é%§} models.

Q. So you didn't formulate your own incependent
conclusion then?

A, HNo.

Q. So really what you did is you came in and
made some input as to how this various water balance

should be performed?
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A, Yes.

Q. Okay. Now, you indicated earlier that you
were working on some investigation or working on
determinations of what the resulting water quality would
have been absent the State Water Project in 1977, is that
correct?

A, It is correct that I have not formed a final
opinion on that and will, in that regard, as I have just

stated, depend upon the results of the use of the
1ol

{

so—called,ﬁi@ﬁém model s,

Q. So you are not doing any further work to come
to those --

A. I am not doing that.

g. Okay. Do you have any opinion formulated in

your in your mind as to whether or not the Delta warter
guality in July and August of 1977 would have been
suitable for agricultural purposes absent the State Water
Project alone?

A, No, I have no opinion on that.

Q. Do you have any opinion as to whether or not
the water gquality in the Delta in July and August of 1977
would have been suitable for agricultural purposes absent
the Federal Central Valley Project and State Water
Project?

A, I believe its use would have been severely

impaired.

BBID Exh. 294




© W O = o B W N

- SR T I S T T R R S e
(=3} [* 4] [-9 ta [+ L (= o o S o U e nd b bt

73

Q. Okay. Is that belief extended throughout the
Delta or limited geographically to particular areas?
A. It would, I think, depend upon the area

within the Delta --

Q. All right.

A. -- and the pattern of fiow through the Delta.

Q. Do you know where Venice Island is in the
Delta? |

A, Generally, yes.

Q. What do you think the -- what's your belief

with regard to the usability of water in that area absent
the Federal Central Valley Project and State Water

Project in 197772

A, I think it would have been very seriously
impaired.,

Q. And what about Mandeville Island?

A, Similarly, Mandeville Island.

Q. And how about Victoria Island?

A, Not -— let's see, Victoria Island is in the

south part of the Delta.
It would not have been as seriously impaired,
no, because -—-
Q. How about Union Island?
A, I have not looked at that one specifically,
but, again, I doubt that it would have been as severely

impaired as some of the more northerly islands.
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0. And what about the Palm Tract?
Do you know where Palm Tract is? 1It's right

by Rock Slough. R

A. Well, yes, it would have been seriously
impaired.
Q. Okay. And what about Coney Island?

Cone Coney Island is right across from
Clifton Court Forebay.
MR. BABER: Right here (indicating).
THE WITNESS: It would have been
seriously impaired.
MR, NOMELLINI: Q. It would have?

A, Yes, as I recall the results of the modeling
tests we've run to date.

0. What about -- I gqguess we've got -- what about
Byron-Bethany Irrigation District?

Do you know where that is?

A, Yes.

I think there would have been some
considerable impairment there,

0. Do you think that the state has the right to
claim compensation for a benefit yielded by the Federal
Water Project?

E. Ro, I do not believe they have.

In other words, the State's right to claim

benefits should, I think, be limited to those benefits

BBIDExh 294




W 0 =~ o oW W N e

oI R N R S N S e e T T ™ R
Y e W R M B g e W R T e W B R O

75

which accrue because of the operation of the State
project.

Q. Are you familiar with the Coordinated
Operations Agreement between the State and the Federal
Government ?

A, I read it several times, yes.

Q. End when you were a director, you worked with
the Federal Government, I guess, on an annual basis, at
least on coordinating the projects?

A, As a matter of fact, the first Coordinated
Operation Agreement or the predecessor agreement was one
that I signed.

Q. Is that the 19 -~ what is it, '717?

MR, WHITRIDGE: '60, wasn't it?

THE WITNESS: HMay 16th, I believe, is
the date, 1960.

MR. NOMELLINI: 190, That was the

first one,

Q. And you participated in that?
A, Yes. I was one of the signatories,
Q. Was there always an efrort to make sure that

the State project rights and Federal water rights were
not merged in any fashion in these agreements?

A, I think, yes.

Q. And that really these agreements were just to

coordinate operations as they impact the Delta?
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A. Yes. And the in-basin uses above.

Q. Okay.

A, Where they were common.

Q. The Federal Govermment has always had a

tendency to jealously guard their water rights as such,
is that true?

A. That is correct.

0. Do you know what the value of water was in

July and August of 19777

A, I have not been asked to study that question.

0. Do you know what it is, though?

A, No, I do not.

Q. Do you know what the state would have done
with water had the -~ in 1977, had the water not gone for

Delta outflow?

A. If one assumes that the export water would
have been useable, I'm sure that there were many
contractors in the San Joaquin Valley that would have
been very happy to have had it.

Q. Do you know anything about the Federal wacer
bank that was set up during 19777

A, No, I'm not aware of that,

Q. If I told you that the water bank could not
dispose of all the water it had available in 1977, do you
think that would be true?

A, If I knew what the values were and how they
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were arrived, I would be able to offer an opinion.

Q. How about sixty dollars an acre foot?
A, I presume that that could have been achieved.
Q. Do you mean that there could have been water

left over at sixty dollars an acre foot?

A, It is possible.

I have no firm opinion on that, however,
because I have not studied it.

Q. Is it possible, in your mind, that the State
Water Project had it had more water in 1977, as a savings
from Delta outflow or otherwise, would have simply kept
it in storage in 1977, for use or possible use in '78?

A, As I recall the records of the various public
hearings and conferences that were held in connection
with the actions of the State Water Resources Control
Board and the publications of the director, the
department was concerned of retaining enough warer in
storage to meet the demand in 1978, if 1978 had been a
succeeding dry year,

Q. End that would indicate that there is a good
possibility that if they had more water, they would have
tried to hold it for '78?

A, That is a possibility, and, in my opinion,
would have been a prudent action.

Q. &nd what kind of a year was 19782

A, As I recall it, it was fairly wet and fairly
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good run—-off.

0. And do you think the state could have spilied
the water that would have been saved in '77 in '78 andg
allowed it to flow out to the ocean?

A, I would have to go back and check the records
of the storage in Oroville to be able to answer that

guestion yes or no.

Q. But it is possible?
A, It might have been possible.
Q. Do you know what the total diversions were

from the Delta by the State in 19777

A, Again, they are to be found in one of tnese
tabul ations.
0. Okay. The gquestion I would have is did you

know whether or not the State in 197/, took more water
out of the Delta than they put in from their storage?
A, I haven't made that balance, but I do not
believe it to have been the case.
0. You wouldn't be ofr by nine hundred thousand
acre feet, would you?
A, I doubt it.
Q. How about 200,0007?
MR. ELETZING: How about a hundred and
fifty acre feet?
MR. NOMELLINI: What is that number,

Russ? Is it a2 hundred and £ifty thousand?
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MR, KLETZING: No. A hundred and fifty
acre feet,
MR, NOMELLINI: Oh, no.
MR, KLETZING: I don't think there is
any question pending right now, Harvey, s0 . . .
MR, NOMELLINI: Yes, there is a
guestion.
Q. How much did the State divert from the Delta
in 1977, over and abové their releases from storage?
A, I do not have that figqure value in my memory.
Q. Okay. But you can calculate it from those
pieces of paper, huh?
A, It can be calculated, vyes.
0. Maybe you can do that at on your noon break.
But let me show you Bulletin 132-78, page
three (indicating).
Does that tell us anything about the exports
from the Delta versus the releases into the Delta by the

State Water Project in 19777

A, Yes.

g. 211 right. What's that tell us? What's that
number ?

A. Speaking of the year as a whole, the exports

totaled eight hundred thousand acre feet.
MR. FLETZING: 1Is that the calendar year

or water year?
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THE WITNESS: Russ, to answer your

guestion, I have to go back to the tabulation.

MR, NOMELLINI: Well, maybe now would be

a good time to break for lunch. We are pretty close to
lunchtime,

MR. KRLETZING: That's true, Okay.

MR. NOMELLINI: Why don't we break for
lunch and, what, come back at one o'clock?

MR. KLETZING: Okay.

MR. NOMELLINI: And then maybe it you
get back early, you could look at those.

I would like to know what your determination
is from your calculations as to the exports from the
Delta versus the release of stored water into the Delta
by the State Water Project.

THE WITNESS: Are you referring to the
total year export or two months concerned?

MR. NOMELLINI: Yeah. No. The total
year.

THE WITNESS: Total year.

MR. NOMELLINI: And then later I'm going

to ask you about some of the impacts from month to month,
which I know you're an expert on.

Okay. Let's break for lunch.

(Whereupon the noon recess was taken at

80
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12:00 p.m., after which the foliowing

proceedings were had at 1:25 p.m. :)

MR. NOMELLINI: All right. Back on the
record.

MR. KLETZING: I think Harvey has a
correction.

MR. HNOMELLINI: Okay.

THE WITNESS: I gave you some figures on
the amount of the project water used in the Delta in July
and August --

MR. NOMELLINI: Okay.

MR. WHITRIDGE: Way back in the
beginning, I think.

MR. NOMELLINI: Yeah.

Q. It was project water supplied to the Delta in

July and August of 1977, huh?

A, Yeah. And those figures are incorrect.
Q. Okay.
A, I did not include the allocation of Delts

outflow, and there has been a correction made to the net
use to account for the return flow from the City of
Sacramento.

So the correct figures would be,ajﬁéﬁdgééwand»

fégéfé§:f§$e§égééséﬁémfivamhuﬁdreé in July --

0. A hundred and what?
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- B

A. A hundred and nd five

hundred in July.

4 m Y

And August would beél,ﬁweﬁu

Q. Okay. &And those are what now? Total project —-

A, Those are the net use of applied water on the
land, plus the allocation of the Delta outfiow,

Q. Net use of applied water on the land, plus
Delta outflow?

A. Plus Delta outflow.

Q. Okay. Did you have any changes with regard
to what the project water was supplied to the Delta in
July and August of 19777

A. NO. focrpd as stated ‘n apcumr 4o prewiows GuESL

Q. The two figures you gave me before wvere
15,600 —-

A, —Fifty-two-thousand-six ==T think.-

Q. Okay. Let's see. Oh, okay.

It was 7¢ ,6%3‘@ in July and %2; 200 in August.

A, Right.

Q. Of{ay. That's the total project inflow into
the Delta for those two months?

A. Pl usthe cortection ef 3(@9 0 in July and 2200
or-something like that -in August..

MR. KLETZING: No. That's what he said

that wasn't the right for total in --

MR. NOMELLINI: . Okay. Give me the
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right project inflow into the Delta for July and August

of 1977.
A, I just did. I just did.
Q. Okay. lee them to me, I missed them then.
A, A hﬁnéred-aﬁd~th1rtyw§%ve'fhonsanﬂ~f;ve ’

~hundred in July and~6l72é9~in August.
Q. Okay. I thought you just said that was the
net use of applied water on the land --
A, No.
I said what I gave you before, that includes
the net use of applied water, plus the Delta outfiow,;
Q. Okay. So this is one thlrty»five'flva o

zzzz

hunéged and 64v200 is project inflow ——

A. Yeah. Yeah.
Q. —- to the Delta in July and August of 19777
A, Right,

MR. WHITRIDGE: And then the other
figures you gave us before, you say, are the net use?

THE WITNESS: Those were the net use of
appl ied water, and there had been a correction applied to
that for the return flow from the City of Sacramento
sewage system that originated in project warter.

MR. WHITRIDGE: Okay. And that
correction has been taken account of in these figures
that you gave us?

THE WITNESS: That's correct. It has
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been taken account of.

MR. HILDEBRAND: As far as the channel
depletion enters into it.

MR. NOMELLINI: Q. Well, you reduced
the flow at Sacramento by an amount from the American
River to the City of Sacramento, I guess, huh?

A, Well, there was some Bureau water, (VP water,
applied to the City of Sacramento, and of that some
percentage, thirty percent, I think is the figure usedq,
return —— was returned to the Sacramento River as waste
water effluent,

Q. And you subtracted that --

A, Added it.

We had not taken that additional supply into
account previously.

MR. WHITRIDGE: Add that to the project
supply?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

MR. KOMELLINI: Oh, I see, You adoed it
to the project supply.

THE WITNESS: Uh-huh (yes).

0. And those figures are on what page of that
table of the booklet?

A, Well, they come from, oh, what the heck,
there is a table here somewhere, it's calied

"Distribution of Natural Supply to Sacramento Valley and
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Delta Riparian Uses,® which is —- it would be 46.

Qo Page 467
A. Number 46.
Q. Okay. Number 46.

MR. WHITRIDGE: Table 467
MR. NOMELLINI: Okay.
0. Eny other corrections you want to make?
A, Well, you asked for some other data which I
can't give you at the moment.
Q. Oh, you can't tell us what the total export
was from the Delta in 19777
A, No.

You also asked for Oroville releases, which
can be obtained from Table F-1, which is Number 10, whach
also includes the releases from ali of the other
reservoirs in the State Water Project system.

Q. Can you tell me what the total State Water
Project release wvas for --
A, I cannot on the basis of information I have
present at this time,
MR, WHITRIDGE: This chart only has
seven months on it.
THE WITNESS: That's right. HMarch
through September.
MR. NOMELLINI: Okay.

Q. Can you tell me what the release of stored

BBIDExit294




o W O O~ G U B W N

BB OB ORYOBRY BN BRY B b et et et e el fed et e
N @ WA S @ o o~ Y o ke W

86

water was in May of 19777
A, The release of stored water was 53,416 acre
feet,

That's at Oroville.

Q. And that's stored water, that's project
water, huh?
A, That was a decrease in storage.

MR. HILDEBRAND: That's not a release.
That's a change in storage.

THE WITNESS: That's a change in
storage, that's right.

MR. HILDEBRAND: Yes,

MR. NOMELLINI: Q. Okay. ©So you can't
give me the release of stored water then, huh?

A, - Well, if you add -- take the evaporation from
that, you would have 50,664 is the amount of stored water
that was released to the river.

MR. HILDEBRAND: Does that then assume
no inflow?

THE WITNESS: ©No, that doesn't assume --—
that's the amount of stored water that was released,
previcusly stored.

MR, NOMELLINI: Okay.

Q. All right.

MR, HILDEBRAND: Well, the peint I'm

getting at is this says change in storage. It doesn't

BBID Exh. 294




o W @ =] Y Ut e W N

3 b [3- T S bt 3% b Ll bk fmd ot bt [ ot et ot L
o i e W B3 L L= Y] <o ] =) Ui m L 3+ Joud

say the release of stored water, and there is a
distinction there because the change in storage would be
presumably a net, and you have released then the infiow,
plus the reduction in storage, would you not?

THE WITNESS: Yeah,

The inflows are not shown in this book
(indicating).

MR. HILDEBRAND: So that isn't really
just a change in storage‘ It's a release from storage
then?

THE WITNESS: Yeah, it would be the
release of previously stored water,

MR. HILDEBRAND: It can't be both.

MR. NOMELLINI: Q. Omy, In other
words, the release of stored water is obtained by a
change in storage, plus some adjustment to take into
consideration the evaporation or percolation?

MR. HILDEBRAND: But it would also have
to take into consideration any inflow.

MR, NOMELLINI: HNo.

He's saying that the inflow is just a pass
through so the release of stored water, which is the
question I asked, is reflected by the change in storage
with some adjustment.

MR. HILDEBRAND: In that case the

language on the chart is incorrect because it says change

87
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in storage.

MR. NOMELLINI: What -~

HMR. KLETZING: No.

Change in storage is the release of storage
if you adjust for evaporation. If you have less storage,
that's the amount that's released. That's what everybody
is saying, Alex.

MR, HILDEBRAND: If you let out 5u,000
and 50,000 flowed in, the change in storage wcul& be
zero,

MR. KLETZING: That's right. If the
change in storage is 50,000, then it's like if you have a
hundred thousand come in and let out 50,000, a hundred
and twenty-five thousand and let cut fifty-five,
whatever. That's the release from storage, is the net.

MR, HILDEBRAND: I see -- in other
words, you're talking about not release from storage but
release of stored water?

MR, NOMELLINI: That's right. They are
saying change in storage is the net change of the water
that was stored in the reservoir.

Q. Okay. All right. So we can have this —— do
you have any idea whether there was more export than
releases of stored water for the State Water Project in
197772

A, The basis of the information I have here I
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have no idea.

0. Okay in terms of Delta water use do you know
what would occur if the Delta levee systems in the
interior of the Delta were not maintained in 19772

A, I have no idea.

0. You don't have any idea that that land that's
within those islands is below water and would be
inundated with water?

A, I have no very -— I know full welli that most
of the islands or many of the islands are very
substantially below sea level and would be, and many of
them have been inundated through failure of the levees.

Q. Do you know what would happen to consumptive
use of water in the Delta area if the lands were
inundated with water as opposed to what was being done in
197772

A, I hadn't thought of it in that context so I
would not want to venture an opinion. It would be a
difference between the evaporation that would take place
from the then water surface as compared to the
consumptive use,

And I have not analyzed that particular
difference. It would be changed.

Q. Do you think it would be more from the water
body than from the agricwltural operation?

A, It might be depending on the crop that would
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be inundated.
Q. If I told you that it was about two acre feet
per acre more water consumed per year, do you think that

that's possible?

A. May I ask a question?
Q. Yeah.
A, By that statement do you mean that the

evaporation from the --

Q. From a watér body.

A, -—- from a new surface, new water surface
would be two acre feet more than the consumptive use of
the crops?

Q. Right.

MR. KLETZING: You said you hadn't
examined it so ——

MR. NOMELLINI: But, I mean, he's a quy
that's got all of those gray hairs and hefs been around a
million years, he's been all throﬁgh this thing. I just
want to know whether he's got any opinion on it.

THE WITNESS: I would think it might
well be greater.

Whether two feet is the right valuve, I'm not

prepared to say at this time,

MR. NOMELLINI: I don't know whether
you've been given the evapotranspiration rates as

determined by Mr. Pruitt, but a look at those rates for
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the Delta area would confirm that for you,
MR, KLETZING: I don't think that's
true,

Reading Mr. Pruitt's deposition you had a
long discussion of it and couldn't ever quite decide. It
apparently varied at different times of the year.

MR. NOMELLINI: I don't think it varied.
It varied at different times of the year, but it was
always higher for the #ater body.

Q. At any rate, this savings in water, assuming
there was a couple acre feet per year, and the
maintenance of these levees has resulted in the savings
of two acre feet per acre of land in the Delta, do you
know who reached the benefit of that savings?

A, I could only speculate.

I would speculate that the other remaining
Delta water users would reap the benefit of it, plus
there might be some savings to the two projects.

On the other hand, just what would be the
affect on the needed outflow would be dependent on which
islands went under. So anything would be a speculation.

It would also depend on what time of the year
they went under, too.

The Andrus Island break was in June, as I
recall it. _

0. You indicated that you thought the various
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water users should pay for benefits received from the
projects, is that what you said earlier?

A, I believe I said that.

Q. And that's a pretty strong belief on your
part, that whoever benefited should pay?

a, That is correct.

Q. And do you believe that benefits should be
paid even though they are not requested?

A, I believe there is an obligation to pay it
benefits can be demonstrated and payment is requested.

Q. So if I came over and paved your front yard,
thereby improving the value of your property, and you
didn't even want me to do it and I requested you to pay

me, you'd be willing to pay me?

A, That hypothetical example isn't gquite
comparable,

Q. But that's what you said, though.

A, That is one interpretation of the words that
I said.

. A1l right. Well, what's different about tnat

then what happened in 19777

A, In 1977 the benefit was, in fact, used, in my
opinion. That is, there was, in my opinion, the use of
project water.

0. Do you know that any Delta user, in fact,

diverted project water on his land?

92

BBID Exh. 294



Dan Kelly


Dan Kelly


Dan Kelly


Dan Kelly


Dan Kelly


Dan Kelly


Dan Kelly


Dan Kelly


Dan Kelly


Dan Kelly



O W o N A U ke W N

BMONONNNONN ke b b et et ket el et e e
A U e W M = O o o = Y R i W b

93

A, I know that -- with respect to the Delta as a
whole, I know that there was project water that went into
the Delta and became part of the total supply, which was
used.

Q. Okay. So you don't know that project water
was actuvally diverted by anybody but you know there was a

commingled water supply out in the Delta?

A, May I ask for claritication?
Q. Yeah.
A. May I ask what your detinition is of project

water as you have used it in this question?

Q. Project water as being water to which the
projects are entitled.

A, May I ask for further claritication?

Q. Well, let's define it the way you want to
define it.

How would you want to define it? Stored

water released from the projects?

A, My definition of project water is I use it
here as water which was released from the storage
reservoirs and augmented to supply available for use for

various purpcoses in the Delta.

Q. Okay. What do you mean by augmented?
A, Increased.

Q. Increased the supply?

A. Yeah. Of useable water.
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Q. A1l right. Did that happen in 19772
A, In my opinion, it did.
Q. All right. How did that occur, physicalliy?

I'm going to put aside quality now because I understood
that part of the testimony.

You know, we've got a water body that we are
running water through. That water body would be there
absent inflows.

A, That is cox;rect.
Q. Okay. So how do you say it's augmented,
other than water quality? Are you saying that? Are you

saying that it is augmented by way of a change in water

quality?
A. I am saying that it was augmented to the
extent necessary to make a -—- to produce a useable total

water supply.

0. And that's water quality, right?

A, It gets back to water quality, what would
have been the case without that augmentation.

Q. Okay. ©So really in the Delta in 1977, we're
talking about the water guality?

A, That is a major concern.

Q. Well, I mean, is there a guantitative aspect
that's changed here? I thought we -~

A, From the standpoint of a volume of water, no,

not significantly. There may have been minor changes in
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elevation of the water level, minor changes in the amount
stored in the channels.

But by and large from just wet water, we did
not augment wet water.

Q. We are talking about water quality then?

A, Water quality is a major consideration in
this thing, and that's the -- and that is the basis upon
which the State Water Resources Control Board establishes
the water quality objectives under their water Quality
Control plans.

Q. Okay. Now we are going to get back to paving
your yvard and improving, in some respect, your property
and the obligation for payment.

If the State and Federal projects did
anything in the Delta in 1977, they changed the quality
and allegedly improved the quality, right?

A, They at least did not -- they at least kept
the quality from deteriorating to the extent it would
have. It would have deteriorated if that water supply
had not been made available to the Delta.

a. Okay. And you think that that constitutes a
benefit that should be compensated?

A, In my opinion, ves.

Q. Okay. Even though there is no reguest that
that water be released or mixed?

A, I believe, yes. In other words, -—-
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0. Is that a pretty strong belief on your part?

A, Yes, it is, and a long held belief, if I may
say so.

Q. No matter what you do, if somebody else

decides to dump water into the Delta and it improves the

quality of your water, you ought to pay, right?

A, The projects were built-in part for that
purpose.
Q. Okay. But, I mean, you think that any water

guality improvement that results from.somebody el se
commingling their water or releasing their water into
your water, mixing it with water that you would otherwise
divert, ought to be compensated?

A, If there is a demonstrable benefit.

Q. Okay. What's the demonstrable benefit?

‘ I mean, what do you mean by that?

A, The prevention of decrease in yield or damage
to the land or damage to crops.

0. Or in the case of M & I users decrease in
salts consumed by humans and so on and so on?

A, That is correct.

Q. And you think there ought to be compensation
regardless of whether or not you asked for it?

A, The -- may I mention statutes?

Q. Yeah. Sure.

You are an expert on the law, aren't you?
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A. There are those that accuse me of so
maintaining.

The Delta Protection Act was enacted saying
that the provision of salinity control in the Delta is a
function of the State Water Project.

Q. In the Ivanhoe versus McCracken case, the
Supreme Court said salinity control for the Federal
Central Valley Project was non-reimbursable, didn't it?

MR, KLETZING: I think this is really
getting out of, you know, beyond deposition. This is
getting into a legal argument.

MR. NOMELLINI: NRo, it isn't. This man
is an expert on the history of the -- let's see —— state —-

MR. RLETZING: No. No. He's not a
legal expert.

MR. NOMELLINI: Huh?

MR. KLETZING: He's not like any
Minasian. He is not a legal expert, just an engineering
expert, |

MR. NOMELLINI: Just a poor old
engineer, huh?

MR. KLETZING: Just a poor old engineer.

MR. NOMELLINI: Q. Well, you agree that
the Ivanhoe versus McCracken case -~

MR. KLETZING: Ivanhoe versus McCracken

held what it held. You can tell the Judge what it held.
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MR, NOMELLINI: The Protection Act says
what it says.
MR. KLETZING: That's fine. &And I
didn't think that added much either there.
I just don't think we should get this into a
legal discussion between an attorney and an engineer.
MR. NOMELLINI: 1It's a historical
discussion, not a legal discussion. 1It's just the facts.
0. All right. 8o, anyway, anybody who receives
a benefit regardless of reguest ought to pay, and you, as
the representative of Contra Costa Water District, have
you suggested to yout client that they should pay the
State Water Project for water guality improvements in
19772
A, The Contra Costa Water District buys water
from the United States, the same as any other contractor
with the United States does. |
Q. Well, what difference does that make it they
receive an improvement in quality due to the fact that
the State Water Project is operating; then under your
theory why should they not pay compensation to the state
for whatever that benefit is?
A, ARs I say, they are paying the United States,
and the United States did, in fact, provide some of thne
project water that inflowed into the Delta.

Q. Okay. And the Delta water users who are
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diverting by way of their riparian right had some natural
flow that came down into the channels into the Delta?

A, That is correct.

Q. Okay. So the only difference is a potential
improvement in quality to the Delta riparians and the
only difference is the improvement in the potential -- in
the quality to Contra Costa Water District.

A, And I would reiterate that the Contra Costa
Water District buys water from the United States and pays
the same rate for that water as everybody else.

Q. Well, what difference does that make?

MR. ELETZING: You're just —— this is
just an argument. He's asked and answered the guestion.

MR. NOMELLINI: No. 1I'm looking for an
explanation as to —-

MR. KLETZING: You asked him twice, and
he gave the same answer twice.

MR. NOMELLINI: He hasn't given a reason
for the difference.

He®s just saying that somebody is paying for
water so, therefore, they have a right to that water in
the same way that we have a Delta riparian that has the
right to take the water. Both those people have some
guality improvement as a result of State Water Project
water being commingled with the water to which they are

otherwvise entitled.
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Right?

THE WITNESS: Two matters that I would

like to —- two points I would like to make, if I may.

Number one, that as far as the Delta
riparians are concerned, we are not asking them to pay
anything for their share of the riparian supply.

We are only asking the Delta riparians where
State Water Project water was used to compensate the
State properly for tha£ amount of water that accrued --
enured to their benefits.

Now, as far as the Contra Costa Water
District is concerned, that district is paying a
proportionate share of the cost of the Federal Central
Valley Project, according to the Federal Reclammation
laws and the contract.

MR. KLETZING: Do we have any idea about
the timing this afternoon?

MR, NOMELLINI: I figured four o'clock
is somewhere around the end of the day so you can get
back to Sacramento. But whatever you want to do
timingwise.

MR. KLETZING: All right, I just want
to call nmy office and --

MR. NOMELLINI: Do you want to break and
call them now?

MR. KLETZING: Yeah, why don't we get
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some coffee and I'11 -~
MR. NOMELLINI: All right. I'm not
through with this subject.

Let's go off the record.
(Off-the-record discussion)
(Brief recess)

MR. KOMELLINI: Okay.

0. On payment for benefits, then your firmm
belief on payment, I gather, would provide that it the
Delta water supply, the project water in the Delta was
seventy—-five percent from Federal Project and twenty-five
percent from the State Project, that if a Delta water
user paid something to the Federal Govermment for that
seventy—-five percent, there wouldn't be any obligation to
pay anything to the State?

A, If he were ——- if that water user were a
contractor with the Federal Govermment, I would agree
because he would be paying his share of the CVP.

Q. Which would be his share of the seventy-five
percent, right?

A, Well, whatever.

Q. Well, but, I mean, he wouldn't be payving
anything to the State, would he?
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A, No, I don't —-

Q. So that twenty-five percent is an incidental
benefit he doesn't have to pay for?

A. As it now appears, that is correct. It might
be very difficult to envision just how you would allocate

all of this, anyway.

Qo WE'II, -
A, It could be worked out.
0. Okay. Conceivably the State could have sued

all Delta users; they picked out a few in this lawsuit,
but they could have sued all Delta users, right?

A, They could have,.

Q. And they could have sved Contra Costa Water
District as well.

MR. EKLETZING: The state did sue all
Delta users.

MR. HOMELLINI: No.

MR. EKLETZING: Just about.

MR, NOMELLINI: They sued a lot of Does
and those kind of things. They didn't put any names on
them so only you can tell me —-

MR. KLETZING: They sued all the
agencies,

MR. NOMELLINI: Only you can tell me
whether or not you sued everybody. You certainly didn't

name them in the lawsuit.
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MR. KLETZING: They sued ali of the
agencies that didn't have contracts.

MR, WHITRIDGE: They are not Delta

users.
MR. NOMELLINI: Well, I mean, that's
right.
Q. But they could have sued Contra Costa Water
District?
A, I presume i:hey could have,
Q. But under your theory of benefit to be

compensated, they wouldn't have to pay because they are
paying the Bureau for Bureau water?

MR. EKLETZING: Well, you know, they were
suing the —- for the quantities of water is all we are
suing for, and they paid for their quantity from the
Bureau.

MR, NOMELLINI: Quantities,

MR. EKLETZING: Yeah.

MR. NOMELLINI: What the hell does
guantity have to do with it? The only difference is the
quality.

MR. EKLETZING: Not really.

But I know Harvey went along with you to some
extent, but we haven't asked any damages --

MR. NOMELLINI: Your testimony is

different than Harvey's.
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MR. KLETZING: No. But the Complaint
does not ask for damages for quality improvement.

It asks for the quantities, computed in a
general way the way these tables —--

MR. WHITRIDGE: That's fine.

It's just a question of whether Contra Costa
Water District's was useable with or without the State
contribgtion. It's the same issue.

MR, NQMELLINI: Well, I think it's
clearly a quality question just because you calculate
your dollars that you want to seek based on quantity.
It's just a question of the quality. The quantity would
have been there.

MR, KLETZING: Well, not really.

MR, NOMELLINI: Not really.

0. Do you agree the quantity would not have been
therev?
A. I agree that there would have been water in

the Delta channels.
G. Okay. Now, let's look at Contra Costa Water
District, for example.
And let's disregard guality. Let's make an
assumption that quality is not relevant.
Would they have qguantitatively had ali the
water they wanted without State Water Project'’s

contribution to the Delta in 19777
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A, From the standpoint of wet water, yes.

Q. Okay. I mean quantitywise they would have
had it all?

A, Water is always there at the Rock Slough
intake.

0. Okay. So then -—-

A. Except that they were put under shortage

criteria in '77, by the Bureau. When the Bureau imposed

district as well as the other contractors.

Q. In other words, they were curtailed by way of
their agreement?

A. That's right.

Q. But there was nothing wrong with the guantity
of water in the Delta as to being able to supply them

with all of their needs?

A, There was wet water available.
Q. Okay. In ample guantity?
A, Except as restricted by the Bureau under its --

because they had —~- the Bureau did impose shortage
restrictions.
Q. A1l right. 1I've got you there.

Okay. So the only diftrerence really is the

quality.
A, That is the problem of that district.

Q. Okay. HNow, let's go over to Venice Island
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and Farmer Jones on Venice Island.

He would have had ample water, wet water,
regardless of guality available to him to take through
the siphons and put on the land?

A, There would have been water available in the
adjacent channels.
Q. Okay.
MR. KLETZING: OUnder his riparian
rights? |
MR. NOMELLINI: Yeah. Under his
riparian right.
THE WITNESS: We have always assumed
that all of those islands had riparian rights.
MR. NOMELLINI: Q. So he could have

taken the water that was there and applied it, right?

A, He could have, had it suited him.

Q. If it was of suitable gquality?

A, That he could use.

Q. Okay. So this whole thing boils down to

whether or not the water quality would have been useable

without the State Water Project inm 1977, is it not?

A. That is an element of consideration, yes, in
my opinion.
0. Well, isn't that really the bottom line?

For the Delta that is. I realize upstream or

whatever 1t would be different but . . &
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A, Yeah, it's a valid consideration.

0. Okay. So then in terms of Contra Costa
County, the water district over there, if the State Water
Project water would have made the difference between
useable and unusable water guality, then do you think
they should have had to pay the State?

A, If there was a demonstrable benefit to that

district from the State Water Project, yes.

Q. Okay. Even though they were paying the
Bureau?
A. Yes.

MR. KLETZING: Why don't we calculate
the quantity of project water that they used then?

THE WITNESS: Are you asking me?

MR. RLETZING: Yeah.

MR. NOMELLINI: You can't. I mean,
that's just drill. Somebody just spent a lot of time on
some paper, Russ. That's probably your idea more than it
is the engineer's.

0. Okay. In terms of benefit derived from the
savings of water by reason of somebody operating and
maintaining levee systems and drainage systems out in the
Delta, if there can be a demonstrable benefit shown tot
somebody, then you think they should pay for that
benefit, too?

A. I think in equity that sort of thing would
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have to be taken into account.

0. Okay. Do you have any idea what it would
cost to construct one of these levee systems?

A. . I did know but I'd have to admit that right
now I don't remember.

I know that the Corps came up with a very
large figure,

Q. Yeah, they figqured it would cost a biliion
dollars to upgrade thetlevees.

A, Yeah, to project standards.

Q. And that's from where they are today.

What do you think it would cost to put them
in piace today?

A. Several billion.
Q. Several billion dollars.

And over what period should that be amortized
to attribute a cost to that particular facility?

A, That depends in part on policy.

If it were federally funded, I suppose you
could make a case that it ought to be amortized over
fifty years or forty years.

Q. And what's the State do?

A, The State's amortized over fifty years from
the date of the last sale of bonds.

0. Sc the State®s fifty and the Federal is

forty?
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A, General repayment period under the Feds is
forty years where repayment is required.

Q. And then you'd have to pick up an O and M, an
annual O and M on top of it, huh?

Okay. In terms of the project impacts on the
Delta, is there any detrimental impact caused by project
operation to the Delta?

A, Yes, I believe there have been some
detriments, particularly the lowered water levels in Tom
Paine Slough and some others.

Q. BAre there any other detriments other than the

lowering of levels in some of these —-

A, There is some increase in scouring, I
under stand.

Q. Anything else?

A, No, I think those are the two praincipal
detriments.

Q. Do the project pumping plants ever lnduce

salinity intrusion?
A, There is a tendency under restrictive
conditions to~iﬁé§%&é& the flowyg?%tﬁé San Joaquin around

the end of Sherman Island.

Q. Do you think that occurred in July and August
of 19777
A, I don't know. I haven't looked at the

results of the model tests that much yet in that depth.
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Q. Have the projects caused any impacts on water
qualities in the Delta that would be considered to be
adverse?

A. Well, certainly when there is a reverse fiow
induced by the project pumps, which has happened
occasionally, that would be a detrimental eftrect,

Q. How about return flows coming down the San
Joaguin from the west side of the valley.

A, Those return flows have certainly been
detrimental to the quality in the South Delta Water
Agency.

Q. What kind of impact have projects like the
deepening of the ship channels had on the Delta?

A, I can't answer that because I haven't
followed the channel deepening nor have I examined any
studies that have been made of what impact that has had.

\ Q. So you don't know whether or not they caused
salinity intrusion --

A, Ho, I do not.

Q. —= O not,

These projects in terms of their impact on
the Delta add water generally like in July and August to
the Delta to the natural flow, but they take water away
during other times of the year, don't they?

A, That is true.

Q. Is there, in your opinion, any detrimental
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impact caused by the projects taking away water, for
example, in the spring?

A, Certainly, the storage of what we might term
flood flows or very high flows in the upstream reservoirs
has had an impact on the Delta in certain respects.

Q. Do you think the -- are you saying the
projects only store flood flows?

A, They only store that water which is not
needed in fulfiliment of the project purposes or those

purposes which the project's operators wish to fulfill.

0. Okay. But those are --
A. Or are obligated to fulfill.
Q. All right. They have permits and they have

conditions on their permits they have to adhere to,

right?
A. That is correct.
Q. Okay. Then they get to make some judgmental

decisions as project operators?

A, That is correct.

. Okay. But you had indicated that they stored
flood flows.

What I want to know is whether or not you're

say ing that they only store flood flows?

A, No, I am not saying that.

Q. Okay. They store any water that they are

permitted to store that they deem appropriate for their

BBID Exh. 294




W O o~ 1 B W b

L R N N N L I T T S N = S ™ S S I
WM o W op kD g o =~ o e W o = e

B
o

112

operations?

A, And that does not interfere with any of their
obligations,

Q. Okay. In terms of determining benefit and

detriment, do you believe that detriments caused by
reduction in flow in the spring, if there are any, should
be considered in that balancing to determine the net
benefit to be compensated?

MR, KLETZING: What are we talking
about? Every year is different.

MR. NOMELLINI: Let's talk about 1977/.

THE WITNESS: Certainly, the benefits
and detriments would have to be balanced to see where it
comes out,

MR, NOMELLINI: Q. And so you'd have to
consider those as well?

A. You'd have to consider the impacts adverse as

well as beneficial of the projects on the Delta and other

water users.

Q. Okay. What do flushing flows do to the
Delta?
A, Well, as I understand it, you are still

moving sediment through the Delta out into Suisun Bay.
Flushing flows by themselves, I doubt, o» -7 ;
particularly great benefit on the Delta unless they come

after there has been saline water intrusion.
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In that case, yes, the flushing flows would
clean the Delta, so to speak, earlier than it would
otherwise occur.

The principal benefit, as I understand it, of
flushing flows accrued to Suisun Bay, San Pablo Bay, and
the remainder of the San Francisco Bay.

0. What's the Delta pooling concept? Are you

familiar with that?

A, Yes.

Q. Did you develop that theory?

A, Yes, I did.

Q. Okay. Is it not true that a flushing type of

flow going through the Delta pool would improve the
guality that would allow this pool a certain amount of
time to degrade?

There is a carryover impact is what I'm
trying to say.

Is there a carryover impact of fiushing flow?

A, There would be.
0. How long of a carryover period are we talking
about?

In other words, what kind of time are we
talking about before we lose the affect of a fiushing
flow?

A, I don't recall of any studies that have been

made to that.
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So any answer I might give you would be

speculative.
Q. But there is some carryover of some kind --
A. Yes.
Q. —— on impact.
A, Once the Delta is flushed out, then that

affect would last possibly several months.

Q. Okay. Do you have any opinion as to how long
it takes water to seep into a Delta island?

A. Oh, I have no specific opinion on that.

Q. Okay. If we were getting water into these

islands from seepage, and I guess would you agree that we
have some seepage in these islands?

A, I agree.

Q. 1f the crops within the islands were
utilizing this seepage water in some manner, how long or
what would be the range of time elements, in your
opinion, for the water quality in the channel to refiect
jtself inside the island where it's being used by the
crops?

A, I don't know of any studies that were
attempted to guantity that particularly.

I would, under certain circumstances, I could
see that this might happen with a month or two.

Q. So it could take a couple months?

A, it could take a —=-
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Q. It could even take longer?

A, If there were a good sand layer formation
underneath the levee, it might be quite rapid.

Q. And it would vary depending upon the soil
types and, what, the head conditions?

A, Head conditions and how far the island —-

interior of the island is below sea level.

Q. Is the State Water Project paid for by the
contractorsg?
A, A1l of the reimbursable costs are paid for by

the water and power contractors.

Q. Is there any loss to the State by reason of a
Delta user like Contra Costa Water District not paying
the State for benefit derived?

A, I suppose one could demonstrate some loss. 1
have not seen it attempted nor have I attempted it.

0. Would that loss be the contractor's loss or
the State itself?

A, The water and power contractors have to pay
all of the reimbursable costs as those costs are accrued.

Q. So the loss —— I'm just trying to distinguish --
are you saying that there could be a loss demonstrated to
the contractors or are you saying there could be a loss
demonstrated to the State of California?

A, As I said, the contractors must pay Ey under

their contracts. The amount of revenue derived from the
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contracts must bear and pay for all of the reimbursable
costs,

Q. Okay. Putting the contractors aside and
looking only at the State, State of California, is the
State damaged by reason of -- and let's use my example --
Contra Costa Water District not paying the State for --
let's assume there was a benefit derived from watver fiow
in the Delta?

A, This is pure speculation again.

The damage, if it, in fact, existed, would be
very slight because of the wvarious relatively small

amount of water used by that district.

Q. <0kay; How would the State itselt incur
damage ?
A, They would not have -- might not have some

amount of water which could not be sold otherwise and
derive revenue. |

Q. What difference would that make to the State?

A, Wéll, Mr. Nomellini, I understood you to say
that we were not going to distinguish between the
contractors and state.

Q. Oh, no. I was trying to distinguish between
the two. I was wondering whetnér there is a distinction
between the two.

I understand it if it goes back to the

contractors because any money that goes in the pot, they
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don't have to basically pay for O and M --

A, Oh, yes, if there were a new source of
revenue or an additional source of revenue not being
realized at the present time, that would decrease the
demand on the existing contractors.

Q. There would be someone else to share O and M
with, is that the way that works?

A, Yes. The contractors pay both the cap --

wibh imitrend

return both the capital investment'’and the O and M costs.

0. But the capital costs wouldn't change?

A, Total capital costs would not change but the
capital cost allocated to the sale of water might change.

0. Okay. All right. ©Now, if we separate the
State frém the contractors, is there a damage to the
State itself?

A. I don't believe that there would be.

Q. In terms of incidental benefit, have you ever
heard that term in your years as Director of the
Department of Water Resources?

A, I have not only heard it, I haﬁe used it.

Q. All right. 1Is it correct that the Federal
Government with regard to operation of the Federal
Central Valley Project has taken the position that they
seek no compensation for incidental benefit that would be
derived in the Delta from water guality improvement in

meeting their export contract objectives at the Tracy
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pumping plant?

A, As far as I am aware, the Bureau of
Reclamation has made no eftort to collect from the Delta
water users for what we might term, as you have,
incidental benefits due to the degree of salinity control
which is maintained by the Bureau in cooperation with the

State.

Q. Do you believe that was a matter of policy or
just that they just didn't have the time to collect?
A, I don't —- I cannot say whether it's a matter
of policy, time or what.
All I can say is they haven't done it,
0. Maybe even the law, right?
A, I don't ——

MR. KLETZING: Do you know, you know,
what's gone on between the Federal Government and the
Delta on this?

THE WITNESS: No, I do not.

MR. NOMELLINI: Well, you dealt with the
Federal Govermment for twenty-five percent of those gray
hairs, haven't you?

THE WITNESS: Maybe fifty percent.

MR. NOMELLINI: Well, you do know. I
mean, being the Director of the Department of Water

Resourcesg -~
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MR. KLETZING: The Federal Government
has had a lot of negotiations with Delta water users,

MR. NOMELLINI: Pardon me?

THE WITNESS: I believe that the Federal
Govermment has negotiated at least with the North Del ta
Water Agency some time,

MR. NOMELLINI: Q. They have?

A, I believe so, by my memory. I have to
qualify it by that staﬁement.

Q. Do you think Delta water users should pay for
incidental benefits to water quality as a result of the
State Water Project releasing water for fishery purposes?

A, May I have the question again, please?

Q. Yeah.

Do you think Delta water users should pay for
incidental benefits derived from the release of State
Water Project water for fishery purposes?

A, No. I believe the costs allocated to the
enhancement of the fisheries should be non-reimbursable
as they are in the State statutes —- under the State
statutes, I should say.

Q. So if this release was made into the Delta to
help fishery and it improved water quality for the Delta
users to their benefit, then they shouldn't have to pay ?

A, I think that would be an equitable situation.

Q. How about the release of water for fiood
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control purposes and the incidental benefit that could
come from that?

A, No. A release of water under a flood control
operational criterla to the extent there are benefits,
no. Because that has to be done, anyway.

Q. Okay. What about releases for power
production purposes?

A, A release made purely for that purpose
without any regard to Qhat secondary uses of the water
might be made, I would agree,

MR. KLETZING: Are all of these answers
if it*s made purely for the purpose --

THE WITNESS: Yes. A single purpose
rel ease.

MR. NOMELLINI: Okay.

MR. KLETZING: But is that possible?

THE WITNESS: It's possible but not
probable in good project operation.

MR. WHITRIDGE: How is the purpose of a
release determined, Mr. Banks, in good project
operations?

Is it a fishery criteria that someone sits up
there and says, *I'm going to release this for some other
purposes, too"?

THE WITNESS: Well, as far as fishery is

concerned, the State Water Resourcesg Control Board has
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established certain quality objectives that need to be
met at certain times during the year for the protection
of the anadromas fishery, production of food and food
shrimp, and that sort of thing, and there it is possible,
in fact, entirely probable, that there would be times
when additional releases would have to be made to satisfy
those criteria.

MR. KLETZING: Well, if we are being
released from both fishery and agriculture, meeting both
purposes, then what do you do?

THE WITNESS: Most of us have generaliy
considered that the -- what counsel has calied incidental
benefits.

In this case it would be a benefit accruing
to some water user as an incident to a mandatory action
for some other purpose. I think the general feeling is
that those incidental benefits under those circumstances
would not be compensable.

MR. NOMELLINI: Q. That's always been
my understanding of the department position, but‘Mr.
Kletzing obviously doesn't share that viewpoint.

A. Well, what I'm giving you, Counsel, is my own
personal views on many of these things.
Q. Right.
MR. NOMELLINI: Okay. I know Dave had

some guestions. I think Baber has some, too.
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MR. WHITRIDGE: 1I°'11 go through a few.

MR. NOMELLINI: I've got a couple of
exhibits I wanted to go back to. You want me to do these
now or wait until you guys get done?

MR. WHITRIDGE: If you want to get those
done, that's fine.

MR. NOMELLINI: Why don't we mark --
this is "Total Natural Supply Number Two, Table Number

Two,"® which will be Central Delta Water Agency Number 27.

(Whereupon Defendant's CDWA Exhibit 27

was marked for identitication.)

MR. NOMELLINI: Q. Okay. Harvey, that
Number 27 there, how was this used in the calculations of

natural supply or project supply to the Delta?

A, Well, it in eftect is a summary table --
Q. Okay.

A, —— of the previous calculations.

Q. So if we look at the Feather River natural

supply for July, we see the first line here, it says,
what, forty-two point two, *?

A, Yes,

Q. Okay. It says, "Without State Water
Project,® then next to it it's got PG&E, natural flow at

Oroville, and then there is some other reference to the
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table.

A, The only effect of PG&E on the natural flow
at Oroville is the fact that there is an agreement
between PG&E and the department as to the inner-
relationship of Oroville with the PG&E's operation of
Lake Almanor in that the State has agreed to satisfy some
of PG&E's downstream commitments for stored water during
the early part of the season to be repaid later.

So we have'attempted to take that temporal
disruption, /e accowet

g. How does that work? Let's assume we didn't
have the project, State Water Project.

Would we have greater natural flow coming --
by quote unquote natural flow I mean we would have PG&E
return flows and things like that.

A, You would have a little different time
distribution throughout the season.

Q. How would it affect July and August of 197/7

A, Probably it might have afrected it —— it
would have increased the natural fiow during the early

part of the season, probably lasting into July.

0. So like the first couple weeks of July?

A, Something like that.

Q. How much are we talking about?

R, 1f you will turn to Table F-2, Number 11 --
Q. Okay.
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A, -~ and looking at fhe bottom two lines just
above the double line, double line, on the left hand it
is labeled "Total Diversions, rights from channel, rights
from storage."

In that year the State was releasing water

for ~- to meet PG&E's storage water commitments well into
August,

Q. Hmmm,

A, And starting in August PG&E began releasing

from Almanor to repay the State for the stored water that
the State had advanced.’
Q. And how do you tell that from those two

lines? You must be looking at something else.

A, You can't from those two lines.

Q. Oh, you just know that's happening?

A, I have looked at the situation before in
depth.

0. And how much water are we talking about?

A, Well, in this case we are talking about maybe

_a hundred-and ten thousand acre féet, something 1ike

that.
Q. A hundred and ten thousand acre feet? We're
fighting over 31,000 acre feet, you know.
So you're telling me that if we didn't have
the State Water Project, we would have in the natural --

and quote, we are really talking about without State
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Water Project flow in the Feather River, and we are
calling that roughly natural supply -- we would have had
% hundred and ten th@usanér;cre feet in July and August
spread out somehow?

A, What happened was, I repeat, what happened
was that the State advances stored water to satisfy
PG&E's stored water contract commitments early in the
year, in this case starting in June, and PG&E repays that
toc the State later in the season from —— by discharges or
release of storage in Lake Almanor.

MR, BABER: Has that differed at ali
since Diablo Canyon has been constructed?

THE WITNESS: I'm not aware. I don't
know.

MR. KLETZING: The Lié%éﬁé“would go the
other way, wouldn't it? Then they wouldn't have added in
July and August. It would have beenﬂiig?ééé~less rather
than more.

THE WITNESS: No.

That 156{3&6 or whatever figure it is, was
released to satisfy PG&E's contract commitments to its
water users under the Western Canal and the PG&E lateral.

Now, if the State had not released that for
those commitments, PGEE would have had to have released
from Lake Almanor to satisfy those.

MR, KLETZING: Well, in either case it
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would have been used up on the Feather River some place,
wouldn't it?
THE WITNESS: Yes, it would have been.
MR. NOMELLINI: The differential is
whether it's natural flow or natural supply or project
supply. That's the difference.
Right?

THE WITNESS: Yeah. You have a time

shift.
MR. NOMELLINI: Right.
But, I mean, in terms of we are fighting in
this case‘—- in this case it's a peculiar case, we are

fighting over two months, and it apparently would make a
big difference in these two months.

THE WITNESS: It might have made some
difference.

MR, NOMELLINI: Okay.

Q. If we only extracted the State Water Project
and left in the PG&E's operation, would the natural fiow
in July of 1977 have been greater?

A, I think it would have been -~ I have not
analyzed that, but my estimate as of the moment is that
it would have been slightly greater.

Q. Okay. By how many acre feet?

These are acre feet per month.

About how many acre feet in July greater?
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A, I can't tell you.
Q. General magnitude.
Are we talking about two hundred acre feet or

are we talking about ten thousand or fifty thousand?

A, We are talking about something in the
thousands.

Q. In the thousands? Tens of thousands?

A. Possibly.

Q. Okay. And'what about for August; would the
natural flow -- and I quote natural -- "natural supply,”

have been increased if we exclude only the State Water
Project and leave PG&E in there?
A, I doubt that it would make any difterence in

Rugust because that was a time that PG&E began to repay

the State.
Q. Okay.
MR. BABER: About the middle of August,
wasn't it?

THE WITNESS: Yeah, somewhere in tnére.
MR, NOMELLINI: Q. 1Is it fair to throw
PG&E into this thing and do this calculations this way?
It would seem to me that it would be more
appropriate to only extract State Water Project impacts.
A, Well, yeah, I believe you have to throw it in
because it affects the amount of water released from

Oroville for natural flow, for flow that would otherwise

BBID Exh. 294




o W00 =l oy U b W N

NMORNOORN RN R N b et b e bt fed hed b et fed
N e WO D o o = R ! e WN

128

occur if Oroville had not been there,

Q. Okay. But this is -— looks to me like this
is done unfairly -- from our Delta viewpoint this is done
unfairly because it's taking water away from us. It made
the natural flow or natural supply less in July and
August,

What I'm asking is is this another one of
those things where you were directed by counsel to do it
this way or is this the way you think it ought to be
done?

A, I was not directed by counsel. 2And this ——
in fact, I called some of the previous studies into
question on this because I did not like the way it had
been done.

Since we are trying to estimate the so-called
natural suvpply on the basis that everything would have
happened except the State and Federal reservoirs
projects, I see no particular criticism of this.

There may be other —- on restuaying we may
change the values gquite a bit, but the point of the fact
still remains that that amount of the water would have
gone to those users in any event because it is a
contractual commitment of PG&E.

Q. So you're saying it would have come down the
river, but it would have been diverted?

A, {(Affirmative nod)
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MR. BABER: Could I just ask where is
the Western Canal diversion point, do you know?

THE WITNESS: Well, at the moment I
believe Western Canal diverts out of —-

MR. BABER: Thermolito Afterbay.

THE WITNESS: Thermolito Afterbay.

But it is an old, established right of PG&E.

MR. BABER: (Affirmative nod)

MR. NOMELLINI: Q. How about return
flow from that; how is that handled?

A, We have not considered that to be project

water. Therefore, the return flow that results from that

have been considered as part of the natural supply.

Q. They don't get prorated like you did that
other?

A, (Negative headshake)

0. Why, because --—

A. Well, we prorate.

Q. Oh.

A. Simply on the basis of whether it's a part of

the natural supply or project -— or resulting from the
use of project water,

Q. All right. Logically it would seem to me
that the way you've treated this, that you would count
that diversion as a project diversion because you're

sending water to PG&E's customers.
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A, But getting repaid in terms of water.

Q. Okay. But when we look at the individual
month, we are sending the water out. So that's going to
be part of our X -- when we»go back to our X over Y,
that's going to result in a greater share of that water
coming to the project of the return flow.

A, No. We have considered the diversions that
were made under PG&E's rights to be non—-project water and
the return flows to be part of the project -- of the
natural supply available to riparians and other water
right holders from the natural supply.

Q. Okay. So the return flow comes in the pot
and gets divided up, but you didn't pick this up as a
project delivery; you stili left it a PG&E delivery.
Okay.

Going back to that Exhibit Number 27 and

looking at the American River natural supply --

A, May I ask which table —-
Q. Number 27. 1It's your number two in your
book.
See that American River natural supply?
A, Yes.
Q. It says, "Without VP, SMUD, PCWA Natural

Flow at Fair Oaks,® what's happening there?
A, The (VP facilities are Folsom Dam and

Reservoir, Nimbus Dam and Lake Patemas (phonetic) and the
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Folsom South Canal.

Now, SMUD enters into it because of the water
made available and released from SMUD's reservoirs. Part
of that goes to supply the City of Sacramento's demand.
So that is a source of supply and demand -- of a demand
for a major water user.

The Placer County Water Agency enters into it
because under the agreement with the Bureau -- let me
explain the physical situation.

Placer County Water Agency reservoirs are
above Folsom and would be, if it's ever built, above
Auburn.

The Placer County Water Agency diverts from
the American just upstream of what would be, if ever
built, Auburn Reservoir; in other words, the plan to use
the head available due to water in Auburn to provide
their supply at the diversion by gravity.

In order to do that, they entered —- the
agency entered into an agreement with CVP that any water
not diverted for use that was released by their
reservoirs became part of the Bureau's supply for Folsom.
So in effect to some extent it's an additional Federal
storage on the stream and has been treated as such.

Q. Just because there was an agreement between
these two parties?

A, It becomes a part of the American River
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project.

Q. Well, aren't you really claiming some natural
flow as project flow by that contractual maneuver?

A, I suppose one could look at it that way. We
didn't feel it -- we didn't believe that that was the
case,

Q. Well, I mean it may not be. I don't know.
But it sounded to me like -- I'm really asking you, is
there some natural flc# being taken out of the
calculation by reason of that contractual action?

A, I don't believe so because it goes into
Folsom Reservoir and was accounted -- and is accounted
for in the impact of Folsom Reservoir on the natural
supply.

Q. Okay. Does it change the timing of the
natural flow?

A, Possibly a little bit. I'm not —— I have not
looked at that.

0. Okay.

MR. NOMELLINI: Let's mark this Table
NFF, it's really Number 9 in that booklet, dated 6-29-86,

we'll mark that Central Delta Water Agency Number 28.

(Whereupon Defendant's CDWA Exhibit
Number 28 was marked for

identitication.)}
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MR. NOMELLINI: Q. Okay. Calling your
attention to Number 28, Exhibit 28, it's really your
Number 9, I guess, does this explain the PG&E afrect at
Oroville?

A, Yes, it incorporates the PG&E afrect in line
six after May.

Q. Okay. ©So the net operational aftect of PG&E
on the natural flow in‘July, if you look at line -- weldl,
maybe you can explain to me —- what's line six tell us?

Tune

A, Line six tells you that starting in May the

Agnde D4

operational affect of PGE&E was to include to increase the

natural supply absent the project by e«a»ww; in July by

é@,%@i and in -~ starting in August to decrease it by two-

~theusand -— 20,352,

Q. But since this is just at Oroville, then the
diversions to the western canal would have ofrset this
increase in natural flow at some point farther down in
the calculations, huh?

A, I believe that to be true.

Q. Okay. One last couple of guestions.

Assuming that the State Water Project in its
diversions froam the Delta -— well, strike that.

Do you agree that the State Water Project is
benefited by operation of the Federal Central Valley

Project in the Delta?
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A. Would you —-

a. Is the State Water Project benefited by
reason of the operation of the Federal Central Valley
Project in the Delta?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. And one of those benefits is an
improvement in water quality at the export pumps, right?

A. That is correct.

Q. Okay. Do you believe that the State should
compensate the Federal Govermment for that gquality
benefited that they derived at the State pumps?

A. I assume that the State and the Bureau have
agreed on the proper division of water in this case under
the Coordinated Operating Agreement because the
Coordinated Operating Agreement in efrect is a sharing of
responsibility for meeting in-basin demands, including
the demands in the Delta.

Q. Okay. What does that do for the benefit
derived by the State in terms of an improvement of water
guality?

A. The benefit derived by the State under that
is the fact that absent such an agreement and such
operation by the United States under the State law, the
State would have to meet the salinity control
requirements in the Delta by itself,

Q. Oh.
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Do you think that the Federal Government
doesn't have an obligation to meet the State's standards?
I mean, there are a couple good courts have told us to
the contrary, including the Supreme Court of the United
States,

A, I have no desire to disagree with the courts
in any way, shape or manner,

Q. Okay. But‘what I'm trying to focus in on is
the obligation to compensate for the guality benefit;

that's all I'm trying to focus in on.

And we have —-
A, There is a reciprocal benefit, you
understand.
Q. That's whaf I want to understand, why the

State, in this great concept of compensation for benefit,
even though you have water rights and everything else, if
you're benefited, there ought to be compensation. I want
to know how you handle that state benefit from the
FPederal Project which has excess land laws and lots of
other goodies associated with it, and I want te know how
that is sorted out,
You think it's sorted out in the Coordinated

Operations Agreement?

A, I think it is sorted out to the satisfactions
of ~- mutual satisfactions of the parties.

Q. You think the State is compensating the

NRIP- Tt Q4
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Federal Government for quality benefit received?

A, The state and the Bureau are mutually meeting
a common obligation. And I understand, Mr. Nomellini,
that there is a question as to just what the obligation
of the United States is in the Bureau's minds, at least.

Q. I would agree with you there, that the
Bureau's mind may have some doubt that the courts have
decided the question fully and completely. But it's
getting more narrow as‘time goes on,

Okay. So you're saying that since there is a

Coordinated Operations Agreement whereby both parties
agree to meet water quality standards by providing an
agreed upon share water necessary to do that, that that
takes care of the guestion of compensation of quality

benefit to the State from the Federal water being

present?
A, By mutual agreement.
Q. That's the same kind of guality benefit that

we are talking about in this case, isn't it?
A, To the best of my knowledge, there has been
no mutual agreement on this matter,
I believe there is some degree of mutual
agreement with the North Delta Water Agency or has been.
With the remainder of the Delta, I am not
aware that thaé has been the case.

Q. Do you know if the North Delta Water Agency
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paid any money to the State for water quality benefits in

197772

A, I understand that there was some monetary
exchange,

Q. If there was none, would that change your

opinion as to what should be compensated in terms of

benefit?
A. No.
0. That North Delta Water Agency contract that

you have in your mind, could that have been signed in
19817

A, I presume it could have been. Whether it
would have been is another point.

Q. So you're saying that the signing of the
contract was in some way compensation for the benefit
derived in '77, even though no payment was made for
benefit in 19777

A. I do not recall the exact details of the
agreement with the North Delta Water Agency.

Q. A1l right. That's fair enough.

MR. NOMELLINI: I have no further

guestions.

EXAMINATION
BY MR, WHITRIDGE: Q. Mr. Banks, going

back, I have several guestions I'1ll try to run through
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quickly, but while you still have in front of you your
chart Number 9, I had one other question before we leave
that.

On line item five, it says, "Without SWP
natural flow at Oroville,® and in July it shows a flguré
of minus 3,873.

What does that represent?

A, | It represents the fact that on the balance
that we have here in July the —— to that point the
natural flow would have been 3,873 acre feet less than
was actually measured as being in the channel of the
Feather River below the fish barrier dam and below the
return flow from Thermolito Afterbay.

Q. So what do you have here that shows that this
was less than what was actually measured? What is this
situation here?

A, Well, going down the columns, in July the

discharge to the Feather River at the Fish Barrier Dam,

which is discharged through the channel, there wasf%éfﬁéa
acre feet,

There was released back to the river at
Thermol ito Afterbay 98,620, which means that the measured
flow in the channel below Thermolito Afterbay was in the
order of 123,510 or some of those two.

The affect of the Oroville Reservoir and the

other reservoirs, including the change in storage and
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evaporation, was to decrease the natural flow by a
hundred and twenty -- in that month by 127,383.

MR, NOMELLINI: How do you get less than
zero water of natural flow?

If we imagine the flow coming down the river
without a State Water Project, we are going to end up
with a minus?

THE WITNESS: I didn't say it was zero.

I said it would ~- the net eftect was to
decrease.

MR. NOMELLINI: Okay. But that
indicates to me there is some error if the net income is
going to reduce the flow to a minus number.

Doesn't that show us that you're
overestimating the State Water Project aftect?

THE WITNESS: Oh, I don't believe so.

You were, in that month, let me show you, --

MR. NOMELLINI: That's all right.
You're right on it.

MR. WHITRIDGE: I just donft understand
it. Maybe somebody does.

MR. NOMELLINI: BHarvey does, but I sure
don't yet.

THE WITNESS: Storage that month was
decreased by 206,000 acre feet —— I'1ll round these oft.

Evaporation was 5,000 -- 5,500, roughly.
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And there were similar changes in the other
reservoirs involved here.

So that the net reservolr affect was a
decrease of 202,200.

MR. NOMELLINI: Something has got to be
wrong with that,

THE WITNESS: No.

MR. NOMELLINI: I mean, there's got to
be -~ I mean, how can you end up with a natural supply
less than zero?

MR. WHITRIDGE: Q. One through three
are measured flows, as I read them. One, two, three,
those are all measured flows —-

A, That is correct.

Q. ~- g0 the only one that could account for
this is number four, the net affect of State Water
Project, which ends you up with a £illing less than the

measured flow,

140

Does that indicate in some way that the State

Water Project is taking more than natural flow?
A. No.

What it means is, in this case, that the
natural flow was increased in eftect by the projects.
Where you sée a negative resulted --

MR. HNOMELLINI: Yeah, we can't increase

natural flow. Natural flow is absent the State Water
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Project. The project is gone.

THE WITNESS: Let me rephrase that, if I
may .

The amount of water flowing in the channel
was greater by virtue of operation of releases from the
project than the natural flow would have been.

MR. NOMELLINI: Okay. I understand
that, Because that's talking about with project
condition. I understand that., We get releases of stored
water or some other affect, the project enhances flow in
the river. I got that. I understand that.

But now we are going back and we are saying
what the natural flow was, and we are taking a
measurement and we are subtracting out a project impact.

THE WITNESS: Yeah.,

MR, NOMELLINI: And we end up with a
negative number for the natural fiow.

THE WITNESS: We end up with a decrease
in what would have been the natural flow by virtue of the
project operation. We don't end up with a negative
natural flow.

Remember, we are doing a mass balance here.

MR. NOMELLINI: Okay. So you are taking
water away from the natural flow in this month?

THE WITNESS: Ub-huh {(yes).

MR. NOMELLINI: With the project.
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THE WITNESS: The natural fiow would
have been three hundred and -- 3,873 acre feet less than
the 123,510, which was actually measured.

The 123,510 is the measured flow in the
Feather River --—

MR. NOMELLINI: 1In '777?

THE WITNESS: In July of '77.

MR. NOMELLINI: Okay. That's project

and natural flow and everything else?

h
[~
E

THE WITNESS: That's right.

MR. HILDEBRAND: Are we on this question
of the definition of natural fiow being something other
than what's really natural flow? Is that what it's
getting into about? Or natural flow really isn't natural
flow as it's being used here. It's non-project flow.

THE WITNESS: That is correct.

MR. HILDEBRAND: So what he's saying is
that, as I understana it, correct me it I'm wrong,
Harvey, that the flow was 3800 more than provided by the
project flow.

MR. HOMELLINI: HNo.

THE WITHESS: No.

What this means is that going down to that
point we are talking about --

MR, HILDEBRAND: Yeah.

THE WITNESS: ~— that 123,510, which is
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the actual measured flow is 3,873 more than what we have
termed natural flow, and you're quite right, Alex, it's
the water that would be there without the projects.
That's what we are trying to —-

MR. HILDEBRAND: So somehow the project
has resulted in some additional flow there over and above
natural flow from causes other than the operation of
Oroville, right?

THE WITNESS: Well, in -- to the point --

MR. HILDEBRAND: I can't understand how
that happens, but I think that's what you're saying.

THE WITNESS: If you'll look at Table
F-1, the next one, ten, you'll note on the first line in

July there was a very largewgggf%'on storage in Oroville,

Mzgé}ééﬂfénwai~acre feet.

MR. HILDEBRAND: Now, are you sayling
that then results in some return gross which were not
included in the measured flows?

THE WITNESS: No. I'm saying that there
was a large amount of water released from storage at
Oroville which contributed to this 123,510, and the
contribution of that was 3800 -- was 3,873 more than as
we have used the natural term.

MR, HILDEBRAND: It gets alli tangled up
in the use of the term.

MR. KOMELLINI: That means somewhere in
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this calculation as you go down the river you create a
negative natural flow which I don't think physically can
happen. So maybe it's not important.

Maybe this was just numerically.

THE WITNESS: This is a mass balance,
and, I agree, it is difficult to understand.

MR. NOMELLINI: Is it correct, thoucgh?
I mean, is it right to do it that way?

THEVWITNESS: In my opinion, it's a
straight mass balance calculation.

MR. NOMELLINI: But it would seem to me
that you'd have to limit it by you can't go less than
zero to play the game --

MR. HILDEBRAND: If you're really
talking about natural flow, it couldn't go less than
Z€er o,

THE WITNESS: That's right.

We're not saying that this is less than zero

What we are saying is that the natural flow waswliéféggf

MR. BABER: What you're doing is
subtracting the 3873 from the 1237

THE WITNESS: (Affirmative nod)

MR, BABER: Could you explain to me
again the 127, Harvey, on line four?

THE WITNESS: Which line?

MR. BABER: Line four, July, *'77.

144
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MR. HILDEBRAND: Table nine.

MR. WHITRIDGE: Table ten.

THE WITNESS: fThat comes from the next,
table ten.

MR. WHITRIDGE: Q. Harvey, does this
figure, the minus 3873 have any aftect or come into play
at all when we calculate farther downstream the
difference between natural flow and project flow in the
Delta?

A, No,” It carries down because whole
calculation goes from upstream downstream. And so it you
make a correction here at this point, that impacts all
the way down.

MR. NOMELLINI: It's probably the way
this thing is defined, these words, "Without State Water
Project natural flow at Oroville, ™ that's just -- there
might be a better way to define it., It's just a balance
carry forward number -- it's not a natural fiow number.

THE WITNESS: That's right.

MR. NOMELLINI: 1It's not natural fiow
without State Water Project because without State Water
Project, the PG&E down here, it's still 42,000.

THE WITNESS: You are quite right, Mr.
Nomellini.

MR, NOMELLINI: 1It's just the way that

thing is phrased.

BBID EXh. 294




© W O w1 G U o W

BB BB BRSNS b e el Bed hed fed el hed feed et
D wm e W R D wm o ~ R U e W B

146

THE WITNESS: Our wording leaves much to
be desired.

MR. HILDEBRAND: I think the wording
makes it impossible to understand exactly what's really
been done.

MR. WHITRIDGE: Q. One other guestion
on that exhibit, Harvey.,

Do you know why lines eight and nine have
been basically lined out at the bottom of this?

A, Because Oroville —- the affect of Oroville
Wyandotte is felt above the Fish Barrier Dam. So the
affect of that is included in the major flow on line one.
In other words, the affect OWID returns to the river are
above the Fish Barrier Dam,

Q. And PG&E aftect you only took out for March,
April and May and left it in?

A, Because those were direct flow diversions,
not stored water, under PG&E's old right.

Q. Okay. In other words, this agreement with
PG&E doesn't start exchanging until June, is that right?

A, PG&E has to satisfy its natural -- its
demands under its direct flow diversion rights out of
those rights. The state does not provide water for
those.

MR. NOMELLINI: 1Is this PG&E thing what

has been termed a loan of water by IWR to them?
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THE WITNESS: 1In eftect that's what it
is. It's an intra-seasonal loan of water from the State
to PG&E early on when the PG&E does not want to release
from Lake Almanor, repaid by releases from Lake Almanor
later on in the season. It's supposed to be completely
repaid by the end of October.

MR. NOMELLINI: So the —- in terms of
affect the department loaned them water in July and other
months, and got water back —-

THE WITNESS: Starting in August.

MR. NOMELLINI: -- in August?

THE WITNESS: Right. But PG&E would
have had the water, but they would have lost power?

THE WITNESS: That is the reason for it
in PG&E's minds.

MR, NOMELLINI: So PG&E just benefited
by that exchange in terms of power production?

THE WITNESS: Uh-huh (yes).

MR. BABER: Saving up for peak times?

THE WITNESS: I beg your pardon?

MR. BABER: Were they not saving up for
peak times? Or do you have an understanding of it?

THE WITNESS: 1It's my understanding, and
I was not a party to those negotiations, is they wanted
to preserve the head at Almanor.

MR. NOMELLINI: Did the State get paid
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for that benefit or was it just a loan?
THE WITNESS: They got paid —— let me
put it this way:

They got paid because they settled the
disagreement with PG&E this way. In other words, I
remember that there was some disagreement with PG&E on
how all of this would happen, be handled, and PG&E, of
course, has some very old rights which had to be
recognized in the operation of the State Water Project as
they have recognized all prior rights, including
riparians,

MR. NOMELLINI: So this was a settlement
of a dispute, not really a loan, huh?

THE WITNESS: Well, it is --

MR. NOMELLINI: This loan was made
pursuant to a settlement of a dispute?

THE WITNESS: That is correct,

I think that's right, isn't it, Russ? You
were there. I wasn't.

MR. KLETZING: I wasn't involved in the
1977 operation.

But the underlying contract, that®s correct.
I'm not sure what was done in '77, exactly.

MR. WHITRIDGE: Okay. Are we through
with that?

Q. Harvey, I'd like to ask you a few questions,

BBID Exh. 294




O W OO A U b W N e

NN NN RN NN R R e e e b
e N X - T N R T N

149

and I know it's getting late so I am going to try to skip
over things pretty quickly so I may be skipping from one
thing to another. So stop me if you don't understand the
question, but generally I'm going to refer to some of the
things you already talked about earlier today.

First, you said that you haven't yet
compl eted your investigations of the State Water Project

alone in 1977.

A. That is correct.
Q. Do you have any idea when that will be done?
A, It has to be done very shortly since, I

believe, your trial is supposed to start -—-

Q. Okay.

A, ~~ in October. So it has to be done in the
next two weeks.

MR. WHITRIDGE: Will we have an
opportunity, Russ, to further discuss this with Harvey or
anyone else who is doing this prior to the trial as soon
as this work is done, the same as you are going to do
with Relson?

MR. RLETZING: I don't really know what
you're referring to.

MR. WHITRIDGE: Well, we are referring
to trying to take out the afrect of the State Water
Project as opposed to both projects. That's one thing

I'm referring to.
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MR. KLETZING: We have not asked,
however, to do that or anybody else. We are not planning
to do it, no.

MR. BABER: Well, Russ, let me just say
that Harvey has mentioned that he's not completed his
figures yet in preparation of his expert testimony on
whether —-- you know, how the SWP's elimination from
releases of water in July and August of '77, aftects your
case. So he said he would be finished probably in two
weeks because the trial is coming up. We'd like to talk
to him maybe before the trial starts. That's what I
think we are driving at.

MR. KLETZING: Okay. On this point that
I don't think there is any more work going to be done on
it because we are not planning at this time to present
any evidence on that subject.

MR. BABER: Well, Harvey just said he'd
be finished in two weeks.

MR. KLETZING: There is evidence that
the State Project provided benefits to the Delta is
adequate.

MR, NOMELLINI: Is there anything left
that is ongoing or is Harvey wrong? He said there is
scme ongoing stuff that is not yet completed.

MR, KLETZING: I don't know. What I

understand, Harvey, you are talking about is digging into
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more into the numbers that we have given them, is that
correct?

THE WITNESS: Yeah.

MR, EKLETZING: We have not asked Harvey
to present evidence beyond this and the background
information on how the State Water Projects in the Delta
vere —-

MR. WHITRIDGE: Q. So there may be some
further refinements of these tables, though, am I correct
in saying that?

MR. KLETZING: I don't know.

MR. NOMELLINI: Well, what is left to
do? Is there something left to do? You told us earlier
there was. Is there nothing left to do?

THE WITNESS: There are things left to
do. I want to check these tables more thoroughly than I
have to date.

MR. NOMELLINI: Are you planning to do
any analysis on your own in preparation for your own
expert opinion as to what the impact on water gquality
would be in 1977, without just the State Water Project?

THE WITNESS: I would think that might
well be done, even though counsel has not asked for it.
In view of the guestions that you have asked —-

MR. ROMELLINI: You think that's

necessary for your preparation?
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THE WITNESS: -- I would like to have a
little more definitive answer.

MR. BABER: All right.

MR. NOMELLINI: Well, it sounds to me
like the expert is expecting to prepare himself with more
studies prior to trial.

Whether you want them or not, Russ, I guess,
is =~ I'm not sure that's relevant but --

MR. KLETZING: I don't know. You know,
I think there is a cutoff in discovery in about a week or
ten days.

MR. BABER: Yeah, but, Russ, it's your
own expert. That's why we are bringing it up.

MR. WHITRIDGE: Well, it's just a
gquestion. You know, if he's not going to testiry to
anything else other than what's in this book —-

MR. NOMELLINI: We could depose him
daily so we are kept abreast of it right up until the
deadl ine.

MR, WHITRIDGE: Q. Harvey, have you -—
I think you stated earlier that you consider yourself an
expert on water guality, is that correct?

A, No, not on -— necessarily on water quality in
the broad sense.
I do consider that I know something

considerable about the guality problems in the Delta.
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Q. Okay. Have you published any works or any
writings that -- in regard to water qualaity in the Delta
or elsewhere?

A, I don't recall any. Let me look at the . .

Q. Well, do you have -- is there a a copy of
your published writings there?

A, It's a copy of my file data.

Q. Do we have a copy of that? If you could
furnish us with a copy of that, then we could lock and
see if there is any.

MR. KLETZING: O©h, sure, I think so.

MR. NOMELLINI: Maybe you gave it to us
already, Russ.

MR, KLETZING: I don't remember.

MR, WHITRIDGE: That's fine. That will
save us a lot of time. We can look into that ourselves.

Q. You said earlier, Harvey, that you
participated in a study with USBR after leaving DWR.

With regard to the Westside Stuay did that
relate to the Delta?

A, As I recall the report, it does discuss some
of the Delta problems as part of the overall west wide
water problems.

o. What is the westwide water problems?

The west side of the Central Valley, 1is that

what it refers to?

153
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A. No. In eftect it is the Reclammation states.
Q. Oh, okay.
A, Which are the seventeen states west of the —-

i e
qeb Dy s BT

ly ing whollyﬂgé;twﬁewthéwwaég;fn*meridian.

Q. So that was a western United States study
rather than anything that might focus specifically on the
Delta, for example?

A, That is correct.

Q. I think you said earlier in connection with
this litigation that you are also analyzing the western
project with regard to the Federal and State, is that
correct?

A, No. If I said that, it was incorrect, and I
retract it.

We have looked at other projects which have

had ~—~ which have had some afrect on the bDelta as an

,iﬁtfigél~part of trying to evaluate the impacts of the

State and Federal Project because they are intermingled.

Q. Which specific projects have you looked at in
thig —-

A, Well, we've looked at PG&E projects. We've
looked at Placer County Water Agency, Sacramento
Municipal Utility District, among others.

0. All right. BHave you looked at large projects
on the San Joaguin system, such as San Francisco's Hetch

Hetchie Project, for example?
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A, No.

We have taken the measured inflow after those
projects have taken their part out.

Q. Okay.

A, In other words, we've taken the measured
inflow in the HMokelumne.

Q. Okay. I believe you also said earlier that
in regard to the tributary inflows you made some
suggestions on those nﬁmbers after reviewing the staft
data.

Can you recall what those suggestions were?

A, They had to do with Stoney Creek and those

tributaries on the west side of the Sacramento Valley.

Q. And what was the general nature of the
suggestions?

A, That they be included in the analysis.

0. They had been excluded previously, is that
correct?

A, They had been disregarded previously.

Q. All right. You stated that to take the

without project aftect, I believe you measured the flow
in the river and adjusted out the project afrect
generally, you stated.

Was this done at Vernalis on the San Joaguin
system?

A, No.
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We assumed in the —— as far as the San

Joaguin is concerned, that the net effect during these
months of Friant Dam and -- to Lake Millerton, the net
effect of that is negligible as compared to what would
have been the situation without them because we believe
that if there were no Friant Dam, no Lake Millerton, no
exchange agreement, that the interests of the San Joaquin
Valley would divert nea;ly all of the water in the San

Joaquin at the 61d Sac location, in any event.

Q. That's in terms of flows, I gather, measured
flows?

A, That's right.

Q. I think you stated earlier that there is, in

your opinion, a detrimental affect on the gquality in the
South Delta Water Agency as a result of the project
return flows coming into the San Joaquin River.
Was that taken into account at ali?
A, It has been taken in -- the guality of the
San Joaquin River flow at Vernalis has been taken into
account in our quality analyses of the affects without

the projects, yes.

Q. How? In what way was that taken into
account?
A, We have assumed that as the quality -— as a

source of salts and other pollutants coming into the

south Delta.
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Q. And you have taken those salts out for the
year 19777

A. No. We have taken them into consideration.

Q. When you tried to calculate without project

in 1977, did you try to remove those salts?

A. No.

MR, NOMELLINI: You just said, yeah,
there's salts and that's how you took them into account?

THE WITNESS: Well, they are a part of
the analysis.

MR, NOMELLINI: But, I mean, nothing was
done to change it?

THE WITNESS: To change it, no.

MR, NOMELLINI: To change it.

MR, WHITRIDGE: Q. You said earlier in
regard to the detriments caused by the projects, you
mentioned lower water levels and increased in scouring;
what do you mean by increase in scouring?

A, Some of the Delta channels in the lower Delta
by virtue of the fact due to the Tracy and Delta pumps,
the velocities in those channels are greater than they
otherwise would be, and that has caused some scouring
of the bottom, some scouring of the
levees, so I understand.

Q. Does that have an aftrect in terms of water

gquality?
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A. It tends to increase the &ribidity (phoneticy

of the water

to-divert-it; and it increases the sedimentation in other

places.

Q. You mention in terms of the overall aftect of
the project you felt that it would be equitable to
balance the benefits and detriments of the project, and
you menticned things like detrimental impacts from
storage early in the yéar, that sort of thing.

Have you made this balance for 197772

A, I have not.

Q. Okay. What have you done to take into
account the detriments caused by the projects for 19777
Enything at all?

A. Nothing at all specificaliy.

- I understand that the department is
negotiating with the South Delta Water Agency on the
solution to the lowered water level problem.

Q. Did you take into account in your 1977
investigations the affect of the CVP on net downstream
flow through the southern Delta?

A, That is -- comes out of the model studies
which the department has made.

Q. All right. Are you familiar with the
different models that are being used generally in --

A, In a general way, yes.
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Q. Do you have any opinions on Delta --
different Delta models and their accuracy?

A, Well, the accuracy of the model's results
depends on where you are in the Delta. I would say that
themE&@h@T'models give a reasonably good —— and I'm not
prepared to say whether that's within plus or minus ten
percent overall or plus or minus twenty -- but a
reasonably good simulation result of various assumptions
as to inflows, salt 10$dings and that sort of tning.

Q. Are you aware of the comparison, say, of the
detail of that model in return to the southern Delta and
the area basically south of Highway 4 as to, compared to,
say, for example, a southern Delta fine flow model
developed by RMA or also used by the State Department of
Water Resources?

A, I have not had an opportunity as yet to
examine the results of Dr. Orlob's model work. I have
not had time to do it.

. Are you aware generally with the
configuration of the model and its --

A, In a general sense, Yyes.

I would add that 1 personally am not a
modeler.

. Would you have any opinion as to whether it's
more detailed or possibly more accurate in regard to the

southern Delta?
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A, I don't know.
and, as I say, I have not had an opportunity
to check the Dr. Orlob's results as yet.

0. When you measured consumptive use of applied
water in the Delta and calculated it, did you account for
lands within the Delta that are irrigated from the Delta
Mendota Canal, such as the Westside Irrigation District?

A. I don't believe so. 1I'd have to check that
out. I do not recalla‘

Q. I assume you would use the same analogy for
these lands as you did with the Contra Costa County Water
District; if they have a contract for the CVP and they
are using the water, they shouldn't have to pay for the
State releases; would you feel the same —- similar if you

have land within the Delta ~-—

A, Similar situations should be treated.
similarly.
Q. Do you know how much Stanislaus return fiow

bypasses the Vernalis gauge and is utilized on Delta
lands or have you analyzed this?

A, No, I do not know.

Q. Do you know how much well water was used on
Delta lands in 1977, within the Delta?

A, Yes, we have estimates of that which are
shown in here.

Q. Where are those shown?
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A. They are shown on Table DO, number

forty-five.

Q. It's number forty-five?

A. Nunber forty-five.

0. And where is that shown on that table?

a, Under "Water Supply® at the top and under

that general heading it says, "Delta tributary streams
precipitation of Delta/service area, urban requirement
imported or from wells.”

Q. Okay. But what about the well water used by
Delta farmers within the Delta; do you have any figures
or calculations on that?

A, No. That has been taken care of in the
computation of net consumptive use.

MR. HILDEBRAND: What was the basis for
that computation?

THE WITNESS: We have not attempted to
separate out the deep wells of the Delta as yet.

MR. HILDEBRAND: How about the welis
that were drilled during '76 and '77, specifically, for
the purpose of augmenting water supply and improving
water guality?

THE WITNESS: No. We have not taken
that into account. We have not considered it.

MR. WHITRIDGE: Q. In regard to this

column here, it says, "Urban regquirement imported from
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wells;" does that take account of the sewage outfiow from
these urban uses that's used on Delta lands and derived

from outside the Delta?

A. No, it does not.
Q. What does that take account of exactly then?
A, Again, taking into account that we have dealt

with net consumptive use in all of our calculations.
Q. Have you calculated how much sewage outflow

was used on Delta lands and was derived from outside the

Delta?
A, No, I have not.
Q. You've mentioned the City of Sacramento, I

guess; was any calculation made for the City of Tracy or
City of Manteca, other domestic areas?

A, No.

Q. Going back for a minute to this benef1it,
detriment analysis, and just kind of getting your general
feel, I think you said the Delta water users should pay
for net benefits from the CVP and SWP, I believe you
stated earlier.

Is it your feeling if a south Delta warter
user, for example, who is experiencing increased salinity
due to projects on the average or experiencing
intermittent loss due to pump loss or export pump
draw-down, should those be an expert against the projects

in balancing?

BBID Exh. 294

P L e T N TR T Wt ol Y o) F N ol W B By b ]




W 0 =~ & U e WON

BMCONGOONORN RN R b bt et et b b et et
O e W R M g e = Y m e W o o

163

A, Yes, they should be considered in balancing.

Q. In terms of incidental benefits we spoke
about not too long ago, if someone doesn't request water
but gets benefit by virtue of an otherwise required
release, would you consider that an incidental benefit?

A, I believe we discussed the question of a
release made specifically for the benefit of the fish and
wildlife resources of the western Delta and for the

_Anadrom fish runs. I Qould say that any benefit received
by'the water users incidental to that increased outfiow
would not -- should not be charged.

Q. But isn't it by nature an incidental benetit
if you're getting a release of water that you haven't
otherwise requested?

A, I go-back to my statement that under the
Delta Protection Act, the function of the project is to
provide an adequate water supply for the Delta water
users.

Q. And that function has to be carried out
regardless of whether they request it or have any
interest in it or want it or whatever?

A, From the standpoint of the overall good, yes,
I believe so, and that has been so interpreted.

And it is my interpretation, if I again may
voice a legal opinion, that has what is implied by the

Appellate Court decision in the Delta water cases.
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MR, HILDEBRAND: Were the emergency
standards in 1977 intended to protect out agriculture?

THE WITNESS: That's my understanding.

MR. NOMELLINI: Do you know whether
those standards -- do you know what those standards were?

THE WITNESS: I do. I have reviewed
them very recently, but I do not remember the exact
quantities or the standards.

MR. NOMELLINI: Okay. Do you know what
stations those standards applied to?

THE WITNESS: Emevon for one.

MR, NOMELLINI: I mean in July and
August of '77.

THE WITNESS: Yes,

MR. NOMELLINI: The emergency standards?

THE WITHNESS: Yes.

MR, NOMELLINI: You think they applied

to Emeton?

THE WITNESS: As I recall it, ves, but I
have to say that I have -- my memory on that is not very
good,

MR. HILDEBRAND: Did those standards in
any way address protecting of the south Delta?

THE WITNESS: As I recall it, the
problem with the south Delta was mentioned, and I believe

you testified at the hearings.
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MR. WHITRIDGE: Q. Were there any
standards located within the southern Delta, that you
know of ?

A, I do not remember, frankly.

MR. BABER: Do you remember it anyone
from Byron-Bethany Irrigation District testiried at the
hearings?

THE WITNESS: No, I do not remember from
the transcript of the ?eporter of the conferences and

hearings.

EXAMINATION
BY MR. BABER: Q. Mr. Banks, let me see
if I can ask you a couple of questions here while
everybody is looking around.
MR. NOMELLINI: Yeah, I've got that
Bulletin 132-78 at table one lists the various plans that
were in effect in 77, and 1'11 show that to you.

But there was an interim plan and then there
was an emergency requlation, and it sounds to me like
your comments are oriented towards that interim plan
(indicating) more than the emergency requlation.

MR. RKLETZING: I think he would need to
see the regulation, not the Bulletin's excerpting of it.
MR. NOMELLINI: Do you think that

bulletin would mislead the witness, Russ?
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MR. KLETZING: I have no idea what it

has or in what context it's using.
But I looked at the emergency plan recently,

too, and I saw Wéme*;@rr in it.

MR. NOMELLINI: The emergency
regulation?

MR. KLETZING: Yeah.,

MR. NOMELLINI: Hmmm. I thought it was
just Clifton Court Forebay and Rock Slough.

MR. KLETZING: I don't think so.

MR. NOMELLINI: You think it's got

fov st

Eneton in it, huh?

THE WITNESS: No, it does not. I was
wrong.
MR. NOMELLINI: Well, then Russ must be
wrong.
MR. KLETZING: Do you have the emergency
regulation there —-
TEE WITNESS: Yes.
There was ——
MR. KLETZING: —- or just the bulletin?
THE WITNESS: At Clirton Court there was
none., Terminous, there was none. San Andreas landing
none., Rio Vista, none,
At Clifton Court the twenty-eight day mean

chloride concentration was equal to or less than three
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hundred milligrams per liter,
At the Tracy pumping plant the same value was
equal to or less than two hundred.

MR. RLETZING: Where are you reading
from?

THE WITNESS: Bulletin 132-78, Appendix
E, Table Humber One.

MR. KLETZING: I don't think that
necessarily -——- I don't think that reflects the emergency
regulations. That may be what they considered controlled
project operations or something, but I think you have to
look at the emergency regulations.

MR. WHITRIDGE: Those are the ones that
the State would decide to recognize at that time.

MR. RLETZING: I mean, I don't know.

You have to look in the text and see what they said table
one was, but I don't think that -~ I looked at it, and it
did have —— it had several parts, including standards at
the various internal Delta places.

MR. NOMELLINI: Are you trying to tell
us, Russ, that some of these state publications can't be
relied on?

MR, KLETZING: I think it's probably for
whatever it says. I don't know what it says, you know.
You're the one that suggested that it refiected the

emergency regulations. It may just be what they
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controlled operations at particular times.

MR. WHITRIDGE: Why don't go you ahead,
Bill. It's getting pretty late.

EXAMINATION

BY MR. BABER: Q. Mr. Banks, I'm Bill
Baber, one of the attorneys, representing Byron-Bethany
Irrigation District, who is a named defendant in this
lawsuit, and I have a few subjects I'd 1like to cover with
you. |

I'11 try to be brief.

First, I've got a copy of this 1956
Cooperative Study Program, apparently of which you are a
author, and it's dated March of 1957.

And I understand it consisted of the Bureau

of Reclamation had some input to the project, is that

correct?
A, Yes.
Q. And then yourself on behalt of the Department

of Water Resources?

A, Yes.

Q. And then the Sacramento water users and water
association?

A, That is correct.

Q. And the point of this whole efrort in 1956

was to settle water rights along the Sacramento River and

the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta, is that right?
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A, That was the original intent, to make an
investigation to obtain and compile and analyze the data
necessary for a settlement.

Q. Also, of water rights in the Delta such as
those belonging to Byron-Bethany Irrigation District?

A, As appropriative rights, yes.

Q. All right. Now, if I look through this
bulletin, on page fifty there is a part of the bulletin
called "Allocation Studies.®

Do you have any memory of that?

A, No, unfortunately, I do not.

Q. A1l right, Well, let me read you part of it
and just see if you can tell me what it means.

It's on page fifty. 1It's under the category
“Allocation of responsibility for salinity control.*®

There is a paragraph here that says, "There
may be differences of opinion, both as to the relative
responsibilities for salinity control among the
governmental agencies concerned and among groups of water
users and as to the degree of control that should be
provided.

"There may also be various opinions regarding
alternative economical and reasonable alternative methods
of providing water of good quality for diversion from the
Delta.

"No attempt is made in this report to analyze
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these matters because it appears that such determinations
are beyond the scope of an engineering study and are in
the realm of arbitrary compromise. Therefore, no
specific method of allocation of responsibility for flood
control is suggested in this reporec.”®

Now, would your opinion as given by yourself
and the Bureau, apparently, and the Sacramento River
Delta Water Association, would that hold true today, in
your opinion?

A. I believe it stili holds true. It is still a
matter of extreme controversy.

Q. Do you believe as well that the matter of
allocation of responsibility for salinity control in the
Delta is beyond the scope of engineering study?

A, I believe that engineering studies can
contribute information leading to a decision of that
type.

But the decision is in part a political
decision and in part a matter of a decision at the
highest levels of the agencies concerned.

The Director of Water Resources on the one
hand, as far as the State is concerned, and the Secretary
of the Interior on behalf of the govermment, of the
Federal Govermment,

Q. This opinion was given by you and these other

two agencies in this 1956 Cooperative Stuay.
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Based on that decision I1'd like you to look
at this engineer's opinion, dated August 27, '86, from
Emil Leary. And if you'd just look at it to yourself and
let me know when you're finished and tell me it you agree
with it or not (indicating).

A, The questions you raise are —- may or may not
be valid as to the —— whether or not the irrigation
district would have -~ could have continued to use the
water.,

There was, as we have discussed previously at
this deposition, there always is water in the Delta
channels.

Q. So you agree then with Mr. OfLeary’'s opinion
that there was sufficient quantity of water for the

district to use without the release from SWP facilities?

A, From the standpoint of quantity, that is
correct,
Q. All right. ©Now, let's go into quality.

You notice Mr., O'Leary says that from a
gual ity standpoint the water would have been useable for
Byron-Bethany purposes in its diversion in July and
Bugust of 777

A. I noted that.
Q. Do you disagree with that?
A, I do not know.
Q. All right. I realize you haven't completed
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your opinions on just considering that the SWP would not
contribute its releases from project —— from its project
facility in July and August of °'77.
But I think you indicated that you were going

to have some opinion on that within a couple of weeks.

A, I will have an opinion on that in conjunction
with Dr. Henderson as regards the quality that actually
did exist versus that which would have existed.

At the moment I do not have that opinion.

Q. You don't have that opinion right now?
A, No, I do not.
Q. All right.

When you complete your work, would you be
making an opinion specifically with regard to
Byron-Bethany Irrigation District?

A, My opinions will be relative to various areas
within the Delta of the southern and southwestern
portion.

It certainlg is an area which does have
significant differences from the rest to warrant a
special opinion with respect to that area.

Q. Okay. The reason I'm asking is we're
obviously short to trial, and I‘ve got to tell my client,
who is Byron-Bethany, and they want to know.

And I want to talk to Mr. OfLeary as well,

let him know what your opinion is.
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A. All I can say at the moment, Mr. Baber, is I
have no opinion.

Q. Okay. On this 1956 Cooperative Stuay that
you involved yourself in on behalf of the State and then
on behalf of the Bureau on behalf of the Delta Water

Users Association, was Byron-Bethany a part of that

study?
A, I do not recall.
0. I've looked through this. I know ny

grandfather was the head of that Delta Water Users
Association at the time, but I don't see anything in here
that indicates Byron-Bethany was a part of the study, and
I haven't asked him yet.
So you don't ——
A, I just simply do not recall what happened

thirty~-odd years ago.

MR. KLETZING: Was your grandfather
named Baber?

MR. BABER: Yeah.

MR. EKLETZING: I don't remember him.

MR. BABER: Yeah, he was I, I'm III.

He passed away in '68.

Q. So you have no —-—
A. I have no recollection.
Q. All right. WNow, how about a contract that

Byron-Bethany entered into with the State in '64, taking
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their diversion facility from Italian Slough to the
intake channel; are you familiar with that?
A, No, I'm not. That was several years after my

tenure as Director.

Q. You left the department in '617?
A, Early '61.
Q. Let me give you a little background on it.

You know the intake channel was constructed
by the State some time in the early sixties?

A, Yes.

0. And the channél was going to be constructed
over Italian Slough facilities, which was Byron-Bethany's
diversion spot, and the State and the district arrived at
some kind of an agreement settling condemnation
proceedings brought by the State to go over the top of
the District's Italian Slough facilities.

And as a part of that agreement, the
diversion spot was changed from Italian Slough to the
intake channel.

Have you seen the district pumps on the
intake channel itself before the agueduct facilities?

A, No, I have not.

0. They are approximately a mile easterly of the
agueduct pumps, the District's pumps ofr the north and
south side of the intake channel.

Now, What I'm concerned about is there was a
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contract entered into, and I'11 show it to you.

It was entered into in 1964 on May 4, and I'd
like you to read paragraph four if you would, and then
1'11 ask you a couple gquestions about it (indicating).

MR. EKLETZING: You probably should read
the "whereas®™ clauses, too.

THE WITNESS: There aren't very many
whereas clauses, Russ.

MR. KLETZING: They explain what the
contract is for.

MR. BABER: Q. All right. Harvey, do
you see that last sentence of paragraph four that says,

*No charge shall be made by the State"?

A, Yes, I saw that.
Q. Regardless of the source of the water pump?
A, I would interpret that to mean that no charge

would be made because the district is allowed to pump
from the intake channel.

Q. Why then would the language be in there about
no charge regardless of the source of water diverted Ly
the district from the pumps?

What does "source® mean to you?

A, I suppose there must be some records around,
memoranda and so forth in the department files which
would indicate the intent of that. I am not aware of

them because, as I said, that is somewhat after my
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tenure.

Q. You had no negotiations or input on the
construction of this contract then, is that correct?

A, No; none,

Q. Now, let me go back to Mr. O'Leary's
statement if I could --

MR. NOMELLINI: Let me ask a question on
that.

MR. BABER: Sure,

MR. NOMELLINI: Isn't this lawsuit
really the question of what was the source of water,
either the water came from the bay or natural fiow or the
State Water Project or Central Valley Project or somebody
else's project?

It would seem to me that that contract
language says, hey, you are moving over here so we are
always going to be commingled with state water, and we
shouldn®t charge you just because we are putting you in
with all of our water.

THE WITNESS: I am not in a position to
interpret the contract language, frankly. I wouldn't —-

MR. HOMELLINI: Well, Baber, I think
they ought to dismiss you.

MR. BABER: Ifve been asking for that
for six years, Dan.

Q. So you're in disagreement with Bill OfLeary's
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statement, and I'1ll hand you to you again -- well, strike
that.

Could you point out for me where you disagree
with anything that he opines on in that written
statement?

A, Well, I'm not in a position to say I concur
or disagree with such statement as "The district has
never refrained from using Delta water because of its
quality."”

I am not in a position to say that -- to
agree or disagree with the statement, "It would have used
water during the period regardless of drought conditions
and regardless of the impact of the SWP.*

Q. Now, let me stop you there,

If both of those statements were true, if you
would assume both of those statements, which are actually
factual statements which you wouldn't have any knowledge
of, if they were, in fact, true, would you agree with Mr.
O'Leary's opinion?

A. That is, of course, a legal opinion, and if
there were —— I go back to the statement -- compensation
should be required whether —— in those cases where there
is a demonstrable benefit.

Whether there was a demonstrable benefit in
this case, I am not in a position to say.

MR, NOMELLINI: From State Water Project
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water?

THE WITNESS: Yeah.

MR. NOMELLINI: Not from a Federal Water
Project water?

THE WITNESS: We are here concerned only
with State Water Project water.

MR. BABER: All right.

Q. End, of course, regardless of whether or not
the district had requested it?

A, Well, as I said, the State -- the legislature
has declared that the State Water Project has the
function of providing water supply from the Delta,
including in cooperation with the United States' salinity
control.

Q. I understand that, but that's getting into
the legal area then.

Let me direct you back, if I could, Barvey,
to Bill O'Leary's statement.

If those two facts that we talked about five
minutes ago were, in fact, true, you assume them to be
truve, would you agree with O'Leary's statement as an
engineer, not a lawyer?

A, If those facts -- if his statements are, in
fact, demonstrably true --

Q. His factual statements ——

A, Hig factual statementsg —-
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Q. All right.

A, ~- then there is a question as to
compensation.

Q. What do you mean there is a question as to --

A, As to the obligation for compensation.

Q. You mean there is -- then there is a question

as to whether Byron-Bethany must pay the State?

A, That's —— I think I certainly am -- almost
said that directly. At least, that is a logical
inference to be drawn from what I said.

MR. KLETZING: Which facts are you
referring to?

MR. BABER: He mentioned two.

THE WITNESS: Byron-Bethany has -- in
effect is saying under this or O'Leary is saying it on
their behalf, has always had a useable water supply from
the standpoint of quality.

Furthermore, that he bel ieves that it would
have used water during that time regardless of drought
conditions and regardless of the impact of CVP.

Bs I interpret what he's saying there, that
he did not believe that the degree of deterioration of
qual ity in the channel and their source of water was so
severe that they could not have used it, it would have
been so severe that it would not have been absent the

SWP, have been so severe that they could not have used
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the water. I believe that's the intent of what he said.
MR. BABER: Yeah, you're correct.
A1l right. Thank you.
No further questions.
MR, NOMELLINI: Let me follow—-up on

that.

FURTHER EXAMINATION
BY MR; NOMELLINI: Q. I'm going to read
you a statement which I just want to see if you agree
with it or not,
A, May I ask by whom?
Q. I'm going to tell you by whom after you tell
me whether you agree or not.
MR. EKLETZING: No. You can tell him by
whom first.
MR, NOMELLINI: Oh, I don't want to give
away the secret.
MR. KLETZING: We are not playing
$64,000 --
MR. NOMELLINI: Let me read it to you.
®*It appears that the liability arises when
water is delivered by the SWP specifically for the use of
Delta water users which allows Delta users to use water
that they could not otherwise use due to salinity.”

MR. RKLETZING: That's part of the Figone
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opinion, just one sentence.

THE WITNESS: That's F-i-g-o-n-e.

MR. KLETZING: The Wonder opinion,
Wonder opinion, Wonder.

MR. WHITRIDGE: Wonder as in
Wonderbread.

MR, NOMELLINI: Q. Do you agree with
that statement there?

The reason I read it, after listening to you,
it sounded pretty close to what you're talking about.
That's why I read it.

A, Well, the question of whether liability
arises or not is strictly a legal question.

MR. KLETZING: He said a lot of other
things than that. Asking for one sentence out of context
I think is rather difficult.

MR, NOMELLINI: I'm not sure if it's out
of context, but I just wondered if you agreed with it.

A, Would you read it again, please?

Q. *It appears that liability arises when water
is delivered by the SWP specifically for the use of Delta
water users which allows Delta users to use water that
they could not otherwise use due to salinity.®

A, I would tend to agree with that, yes.

Q. It helps draw the line between demonstrable
benefit that vou've been talking about and just some
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other benefit,

and this statement says if they could have

used it otherwise, then there is no obligation for

payment. ;
A, That's essentially what I've said, I believe.
Q. Okay. A harder guestion.

Do you believe that a release to meet —- of
the State Water Project to meet State Water Resources
Control Board standardé could give rise to an obligation
for payment?

A, I do.
Q. Okay. How about if those standards are
conditions of the permit?

MR. EKLETZING: They are always
conditions of the permit. ‘That's the only ones that
there are in the Delta.

MR, HNOMELLINI: Well, okay.

How about conditions precedent to the permit
as opposed to conditions subsequent?

MR. KLETZING: They are just conditions.
In this case there was an emergency order. 8o I don't
know that that's really relevant.

THE WITNESS: Well, if we go back -- it
we —— may I talk a little bit about statutes?

MR. NOMELLINI: Yeah.

THE WITNESS: If we go back to the
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purposes of the Water Quality Control Board Plan, and
this was emphasized by the Appellate Court decision in
the Delta cases, the State Water Resources Control Board
set standards to protect beneficial uses, That's why
they are set.

If they set a standard that requires releases
to meet it, then I would think presumptively that is for
the benefit of the water users and would be necessary to
keep the water of a quality suitable for the beneficial
uses.

Q. Okay. You're familiar with the decision in
the Delta cases, as you've called it, which is that
Raccinelli's appellate decision?

A, I have read it.

Q. Doesn't it say that if the State Board says
you make these releases and enhance water quality for
somene else, that they could do so without there being an
obligation for payment?

MR, KLETZING: It also said they could
put an obligation for payment.

I really think -—-

MR. NOMELLINI: I don't disagree with
you. I just want to see —-

MR. RLETZING: I really think that's out
of line trying to ask him about the Raccinelli decision.

MR. KOMELLINI: BHe mentioned the Delta
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decision, I didn't.

MR. KLETZING: I don't care. I still
think it's out of line,

MR. NOMELLINI: He apparently utilizes
that in forming some of his opinions as to payment
obligation.

Okay. I agree it's unfair to argque law with
you at length but --

THE WITNESS: I enjoy it.

MR. ROMELLINI: Q. Okay. In terms of
overall accuracy of this endeavor in which you have been
brought into or in which you have been engaged, I guess,
in some fashion as a consultant, we talked about the
accuracy earlier of the storage measurements and those
things. We had plus or minus ten percent, I think.

Then we talked about pump filow measurements,
and we -- or diversions, and we know that those vary.
Some of them could vary more than that.

Then as we come on down into the Delta we get
into this consumptive use thing and somebody's prediction
of what the amount of water would be used by a crop in
the —— in July and August, and, in fact, conclude from
that that there was & channel depletion in July and
August because we know that we didn't measure, except for
maybe Byron-Bethany.

What do you think the overall accuracy of
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this kind of approach is?

A, Probably somewhere between plus or minus
fifteen to twenty percent overall.

Q. So you would —— you've got to remember now
you also agreed that outflow was all charged to these
people rather than allocated., Do you still think fifteen
to twenty percent accuracy is --

A, That's my best judgment as of the moment.

Q. Okay. So fifteen or twenty percent accuracy
but assuming the assumptions are correct the way it's
done, huh?

A, See, all of this rests upon stream flow, and
the best stream gauging station, according to the USGS,
is plus or minus five percent, which is the best rating
that the USGS gives a stream gauging station.

And you're quite right when you get to
consumptive use. The inherent —-

0. How far off do you think an individual
evapotranspiration rate for a particular crop could be?

A. In any given month, probably plus or minus

fifteen percent.

Q. Fifteen?
A, Uh-huh (yes).
Q. How about fifty-seven, do you think that's

possible for something as simple as field corn in July?

A, Fifty-seven percent?
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Q. Yeah.
A, I would think that if the estimate is

fifty-seven percent off --

Q. From somebody else's -- some other expert's
estimate.
A, Experts, if I may interject a somewhat

facetious comment, tend to disagree even as some other
professions do.

There is a great deal of data on field
experiment on, for instance, corn in the Delta.

I would think that consumptive use of crops
in the Delta should be —— estimates of that should be
within plus or minus fifteen percent.

0. Yeah, I agree,

And if they weren't, something is pretty

wrong, huh?
A, I do not like to criticize others.
Q. Well, how about estimates of consumptive use —-

of the unit values of consumptive use for urban areas; do
you think they could be oft as much as a hundred percent?
A, Depending on how they are applied.
If you are using the consumptive use values

for single family residences applied to estates, yes, it

could be.
Q. So that wouldn't surprise you?
A. That would not surprise me.
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Q. But the field corn kind of bothers you?
A, Yes.
Q. Okay. You might, in your spare time, compare

Table 11 from Bulletin 168 with Mr. Pruitt's
determination, We've gone through it at length in ocher
depositions, but I only raise that so that your estimates
of accuracy, when we ask you again later at trial, will
take into consideration some of these fine little things
that we found out during the course of depositions.
MR. NOMELLINI: All right. I have no

further questions.

I thank you, Mr. Banks, for your patience.

MR. KLETZING: I have a couple.

EXAMINATION

BY MR. KLETZING: Q. If water is being
released from Oroville Dam and it's generating
hydroelectric power benefiting fish in the Feather River,
fishery in the Delta, improving water at the project
pumps, and improving water for municipal industrial
supply at Rock Slough and improving water quality for
agriculture, is the agricultural use incidental in that

case?
A. If the major reguirement for the releases is
for another purpose, I would say the agricultural benefit

is incidental,
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Q. What's the major requirement?
A, Under non-emergency conditions, the
requi rements which the board has standard for fish are
the —- are what controls the releases that are necessary
and the outflow from the Delta that must be maintained.
Now, power -- the releases from power under
certain circumstances are not -- would not be sufficient

to meet the other quality demands.

Q. Suppose the reqguirements for fishery and
agriculture are the same -- reguire the same outflow --
A, Well, a logical, rational approach would be

to quantify each.
Q.  But if the fishery is ten second feet more,

then there would be no charge to agriculture?

A, Well, I think ten second feet is -~
Q. Well, how much more would the fishery have to
be?
A, I'd say two to five hundred at least.
| Q. End then there wouldn't be any charge for

agriculture, in your opinion?

A, There would be a question as to the egquity of
charging agriculture under those circumstances, in my
opinion.

Q. Okay. Considering that the Delta is
connected with the bay, what was the purpose of

calculating the quantity of project water used by Delta
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water users?

A, To have a basis for compensation.

Q. Well, how?

Your answers to opposing counsel's question

made it a little unclear.

A, I'm not sure, Russ, exactly what your
guestion is.

Q. Okay. Well, these calculations on the
forty-five tables determine the natural infiow into the

Delta and the riparian use.

A, That's right.
Q. And how does that relate to compensation?
A, The Delta water users use more water than was

available to them from the residual so-called natural
flow reaching the Delta. So that the difference between
what was actually used and the amount available to them
on the residual amount of natural fiow available in the

Delta becomes the basis for calculating -- estimating

compensation,.
Q. For the guantity of water?
A, Yes. For the amount of project water which

was used.

Q. All right. But you were asked guestions
about whether it wouldn't have been there, anyway, since
it was connected to the bay, and, of course, it stayed

connected to the bay in 1977.
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Does that affect that conclusion?

A, No, because our studies show that the water
would have been entirely unusable --

Q. Well, just forgetting quality.

It actually was useable in 1977 --

A, I said it would have been unusable absent the
releases of project water.

Q. But aside from quality considerations, would
the quantity that they used beyond their natural flow be
compensable considering that the Delta is connected to
the bay?

A, I'm not exactly sure what you mean.

If, without the releases from the two
projects to the Delta they could have irrigated and made
their crops, then there is a question to whether that is
compensable or not, whether there would have been any
benefit due to the release.

Q. *By irrigated and made their crop,® now are
you talking about applied the gquantity or adequate
guality?

A, I'm talking about applying wet water as it
would have occurred in the channels.

MR. BABER: Which is guantity, right?
MR. NOMELLINI: No. That's guality.
THE WITNESS: No. 1It's a combination.

MR. NOMELLINI: Well, wet water -- well,
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it's his testimony. Well, water is --

MR. BABER: He said it was a
combination.,

MR. NOMELLINI: -- is water, just
molecules of water, ignoring the guality.

MR. KLETZING: Okay. I don't have
anything else.

MR. BABER: I understood you to say,
Harvey, that it was a combination, right?

THE WITNESS: Well, frankly, I don't see

how you can divorce the quantity from the quality aspect,

frankly.

MR. BABER: Right.

MR. NOMELLINI: I want to ask about
that.

MR, KLETZING: I think we could -- well,
all right.

MR. KROMELLINI:® Well, we might as well
finish up. I only have a few more minutes on the same

guestion.

FURTHER EXAMINATIOHN
BY MR. NOMELLINI: Q. You agree, don't
you, that in 1977, absent the flow of the State Water
Project into the Delta, that there would have been ample

wet water in the channels of the Delta?
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A, There would have been water which could have
been diverted.

Q. Okay. And that would also have occurred
absent both the State Project water releases and the
Federal Central Valley Project water releases?

A, That is correct.

Q. So we've got wet water in the channels
without a quality aspect to it.

So ignoring gquality the farmers in the Delta
in 1977, could have diverted water onto their lands in

the same guantity that they diverted in 19777

A, If the water was there available for
diversion.

Q. Okay. ©So they could have diverted it?

A. {(Affirmative nod)

Q. The only thing that would have prohibited

them from diverting that water in the physical aspect
would have been its suitability for their particular use,

right?
A, That's correct,
Q. Okay. So if it would have been unusable in

guality, then as a practical matter they couldn't have
made the diversion?

A, They would not have made them.

Q. They would not have made them as a practical

matter., Okay.
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So if it was a useable quality, then quantity
doesn't even enter the picture? 1In fact, compensation
doesn't even enter the picture?

A. If it would have been useable, a useable
supply of water for the farmers' needs, absent the
operations of the project, both during July and August,
1977, and the prior months, if it would have been useable
for the farmers' needs without those projects, been no
releases from Shasta, been no releases from Orovillie,
none from Folsom, then I would see no basis for claiming
compensation.

Q. Okay. All right. ©So then if we make the
assumption that the water was unusable in quality --—

A, Or would have been.

Q. -~ would have been unusable absent, in this
case we are talking about the State Water Project, right,
absent the State Water Project, the water guality would
have been unusable, then quantity comes into play in
termg of a method of calculation of the damage?

A, That is right.

Q. It is really not a quantity factor because
there is water, lots of water in the channels, but you do
that to calculate -~

A, Well, quantity is the basis upon which the
State is claiming compensation.

Q. Okay. It's a method of approaching the
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compensation question then?
A. Yes.
Q. Okay.

In a couple of your comments there you threw
in both the State and the Federal Project together, and
after repeating that if there was no water from Shasta
and no water from Folsom you said, well, and its useable
quality would have been useable quality, then there
shouldn®t be any compensation,

Focusing in on this case where we are talking
about the State making a claim for compensation, if
without the State Water Project contribution to the Delta
the water quality would have been useable for ali of the
uses by these farmers, do you think there is any
obligation to compensate the State?

A, Since the effort of maintaining quality in
the Delta is a joint -~ and has been for a long time —-- a
joint effort between the United States and the State, and
was in 1977, July and August and the prior months, then I

think there is a basis for the State claiming

compensation.

0. Without the Federal Govermment involved in
the action?

&, The Federal Govermnment was involved in the
action.

Q. In this action?
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A. Not in -- oh, I'm sorry, I misunderstood your
use of the term action.
No, the Federal Govermment was not involved
in this litigation, as far as I know.
Q. Does the State have the right to bring an
action on behalf of itself and the Federal Government?
MR. KLETZING: That's a legal guestion.
You really have been over there pretty much.
MR. NOMELLINI: Not this part. This is
new ground.
MR, KLETZING: Okay. Anyway, that's a
state guestion.
MR. NOMELLINI: This is State and
Federal —-- hey, as a Director he negotiated the
agreements,
MR, EKLETZING: That's a legal question.
That®s objectionable.
MR. NOMELLINI:* You think that's a legal
question?
MR, RLETZING: It certainly is in —
MR, NOMELLINI: Let me ask it in a way
that it's not a legal guestion.
Q. Do you know of any agreement between the
State of California and the Federal Govermment with
regard to operation of the State Water Project and the

Central Valley Project that authorizes the State to bring

RRID.Esxch..204
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an action for and on behalf of the Federal Govermment?

A, No, I know of no such agreement.

MR. KLETZING: He's never done so.

MR, NOMELLINI: Q. Do you know of any
such agreement that allows the State to bring an action
in its own right for and on behalf of a jointly conveyed
benefit of the two projects?

A, No. I know of no agreement which treats that
particular subject. Ko,

Q. Okay. Now, you had concluded in your own
mind that water quality in the Delta in various locations
would have been unusable absent the State Water Project .
and Federal Water Project operations.

What kind of water guality, in your opinion,
is unusable?

A, It depends on the crop and the type of soil
and the stage in the growth of the plants.

Q. If T told you all those things, would you
then be able to tell me what water qguality was unusable?

A. I think I could find out.

Q. How about field corm in July at the tasseling
stage on peat soil?

A, I think that is answered by the report of the
corn investigation, which I do not have here. There is a
report which tends to answer that.

Q. But do you know what that water quality is?
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A. I remember a figure of three and a halt

Rittinose & c.

wiil 7 £
0. You think three and a halt miltimoese-is
unusable?
A, According to, as I understand and read the

results of the corn investigation, it would have impaired
the yield.

Q. Does impairment of yield make it unusable?

MR. KLETZING: Dan, let's set a 4:45
deadl ine, huh?

MR, NOMELLINI: Okay. That gives me
five more minutes,

Q. Does impairment of yield, in your opinion,
constitute water quality as being unusable?

A, It's not unusable. However, it does have an
economic detriment in the fact that the yileld is not as
great.

Q. I would agree.

But I mean at what point in terms of
detriment does the water guality become unusable?

A, That depends on the extent of the reduction
in yield that the grower is willing to accept.

Q. So it's really a judgmental calli by that
particular grower?

A, To a certain extent by whoever is

responsible,
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MR. NOMELLINI: Okay. I have nothing
further.
MR, BABER: Nothing.
MR. WHITRIDGE: All done.

(Whereupbn the deposition recessed at had 4:42 p.m.)

—==000~—~
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Signature of Witness

Subscribed and sworn to béfore me

this day of 1986,

Notary Public in and for the County
of San Joaguin, State of California
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA )

e

8.
COUNTY OF SAN JOAQUIN )

I, SUSANvPORTALE, Certified Shorthand
Reporter of the State of California, do hereby certify:
That on the 23th day of September
the hour of 9:10 a.m., the witness herein named,
HARVEY BANKS, appeared before me as a Notary Public for the
purpose of giving his deposition; that after the witness
was duly sworn by me in all respects as required by law, I took
down in shorthand notes the said witness' testimony and the
proceedings had at the time of the giving of such testimony;
that I thereafﬁer transcribed my shorthand notes of such
testimony by computeréaided transdription, the above and
foregoing being a full, true and correct transcription
thereof, and a full, true and correct transcript of alil

proceedings had and testimony given.

Hota Public in and for thenégunty
of n Joaguin, State of California
: QUALITY (OOMPUTERIZED TRANSCRIPILION b
_...by.... : *

* PORTALE & ASSOCIATES DEPOSITION REFORTERS &
* 211 East Weber Avenue *
: Stockton, California 95202 hd
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(209) 462-3377

SUSAN PORTALE, CSR No. 4055
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_PORTALE & ASSOCIATES REPORTERS Susan Portale, o #4055

211 East Weber Avenue Telephone: (209) 462-DEPS
(Across the street
from the courthouse)

Stockton, CA 95202

Novéhber 14, 1986

p ok
Dante J. Nomellini, Esq.
Nomellini & Grilli
Attorneys at Law
235 East Weber Avenue
Stockton, California 95202

In Re: tate of California vs. Contra Costa County
Water Agency, et al.

Deposition of: HARVEY BANKS.

Dear Mr. Nomellini:
Please be advised that the deponent in the

above-entitled case has corrected the deposition as
per the attached copies.

Very‘

‘ ixle/&/m) ) )

usan Portale
Deposition Officer

ruly your

Encl.
cc: Russell Kletzing, Esq.
David Whitridge, Esq. oate
FlLE g
&
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA VS.

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY WATER AGENCY, et al.

Superior Court of California, County of San Joaquin

No. 282495

CORRECTIONS TO TRANSCRIPTION OF DEPOSITION OF

HARVEY O. BAHNKS

H

Taken 23 September 1986 at Stockton, California

Line
Page HNumber Correction Reason
6 6 Strike "did" and insert "was®. Proper verb.
7 6 Strike "and"™ and insert a comma after See next correction for line 7.
} history.
7 7 After the word "facilities" insert To complete scope of evidence
"and operations.” and testimony to be presented.
11 i Strike "Leeds Hill-Herkenhoff" and Correct name.
insert "Leeds, Hill & Jewett®.
17 22823 Strike the words "within the conclu- Remove redundant wording.
sion that the summary is only”.
20 5 Strike "7%9,600" and insert "258,900 Correct value.
20 7 Strike "23,200" and insert 208,400" Correct value.
23 7 After the word "diversions®™ insert To complete explanation
*and measured return flows®, of methodology.
27 4 After the word "reservoir" add Teo make explanation complete.
"and the State Water Project Reservoirs }
upstream®
27 17 Strike "of"™ and insert *-%, Correct terminology.
28 18 Strike "particularly”® and insert

"partially®.

Correct word.
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21 Before the word "pumps® insert the To complete explanation.
word "the"™, strike the "s" on “pumps”,

insert after the word "pump", "character-

istics”™; strike the word "per"; after the

word "pumping®, strike the "period" and

insert "records”.

29

33

41

42

43

54

56

56

57

62

63

71

72

81

82

82

5 Strike "rate"™ and insert "rating"”. Proper word.
13 Strike the words "underground water™. Redundant words.
4 Strike the words "from an exact to" Clarifiction of wording.
and insert “"for”.
9 Strike "to the®" and insert "as®. Clarification of wording.
11 Strike the word “"quantity®. Redundant word.
6 Strike the word "actual” and insert Correct word. N
*natural®.
6 Strike "in" and insert "and”. Correct word.
23824 Strike the sentence and insert new Correction.
sentence, "There was some outflow
charged to project water.”
3 Strike "certain of"®. Correction.
iz Strike "their” and insert "Henderson/ Clarification.
Pruitt”.
7 After the word "testimony® insert “"that®. Clarification.
20 Strike "Fisher® and insert "Fischer®. Correct name.
10 Strike "Fisher® and insert "Fischer®. Correct name.
24825 Strike "one hundred thirty five thousand Correction.
five hundred® and insert "258,9800%.
1&2 Strike "one hundred thirty five thousand Correction.
five hundred®™ and insert "258,900°.
3 Strike "61,500" and insert "208,400%. Correct wvalue.
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82

82

82

82

83

83

83

109

112

116

117

123

123

124

125

125

125

125

13

16

18

22/23

586

11

12/13

21

24

11

10

20821

15
17

20

After the period insert "accept as
stated in answer to previous guestion”.

Strike the answer.

Strike "79,600" and "22,200" and insert
"258,900" and "208,400".

Strike the answer and insert "answered .
in previous guestion®.

Strike the words "a hundred and thirty
five thousand” and "61,200" and insert
"258,900" and "208,400". '

Strike the period and insert "plus
exports”.

Strike "one thirty five five hundred®
and "61,200" and insert "258,900" and
208,400.

Strike "increase®™ and insert “cause®;

Strike "up" and insert "to be upstream in".

After "doubt” insert "do not provide®.
Strike "various®.

After "investment® insert “"with
®interest®.

Strike "only®.

After "disruption®™ strike the
period and insert "into account®.

Strike ®a hundred and ten thousand” and
insert "78,824°%,

Strike "a hundred and ten thousand®
and insert *78,824".

Strike *110,000" and insert "78,824°%.
Strike "110,000% and insert "78,824%.

Strike "110,000" and insert "78,824".

Clarify answer.

Incorrect.

Correct values.

Corrected answer.

Corrected ansver.

Complete answer.

Corrected answer.

Clarification.

Supply missing words.
Superfluous word.

Complete explanation.

Unnecessary word.

To complete sentence.

Correct answer.

Correct answver.

Correct answer.
Correct answer.

Correct answer.
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130 26 Strike "patomas® and insert "Natomas”. Correct word.

AN

133 11 Strike "May" and insert "June®. ' Correction.
133 12 Strike "was" and insert "would have been". To correct wording.
133 13 Strike "62,617" and insert "32,827". Correct value.
133 14 Strike "46,141" and insert "46,114", . Correct value.
133 14&15 Strike "two thousand”. Superfluous words.
138 19 Strike "24,898" and insert “24,890". Correct value.
138 24 Strike "some” énd insert "sum". Correct word.
143 14 Strike "graft” and insert "draft”. Correct word.
143 15 Strike "206,0n81" and insert "206,081". Correct value.
144 19 Strike “11;,673" and insert %119.637". Correct value.
145 10 Strike "No". Incorrect answer.
154 4 Strike "part to" and insert "or partly Correct answer.
) ' west of"; strike "western" and insert
( "ggw,
154 17 Strike "intrical®™ and insert “"integral®. Correct word.
156 9 Strike "0ld Sac™ and insert "old Sack To correct name.
Dam®”.
158 1 Strike "tribidity (phoneticl}® and Correct word.

insert "turbidity®.

158 3 Strike "to divert it". ' Superfluous wording.
159 5 Strike "Fisher®™ and insert "Fischer®. Correct name.
163 9 Strike "anadrom” and insert "anadromas”. Correct word.
164 11 Strike "Emeton® and insert "Emmaton”. Correct name.
166 4 Strike "Emeton® and insert "Emmaton®. Correct name.
l66 12 Strike "Emeton® and insert "Emmaton®. Correct name.
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197 2 Strike "millimose™ and insert "millimhos®™. Correct .word.

197 3 Strike "millimose™ and insert "millimhos®™. Correct word.

Note: Throughout the transcript the word "affect™ has been used in numerous places
when the word should have been "effect". See for instance page 26 lines 21
and 25,

HOB:st:26:02
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Harvey O V.A lBanks, Presf{dent
o

Harvey O. Banks, nsulting Engineer, Inc.
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SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
FOR THE CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

~=-000-~-
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Plaintiff,
VS, No. 765609
CONTRA COSTA COUNTY WATER AGENCY,
et al.,
Defendants
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DEPOSITION OF HARVEY O. BANKS, continued, taken by
the defendants in the offices of the California Department
of Water Resources, 1416 - 9th Street, Sacramento,
California, 95814, commencing at 9:40 a.m., on November 3,
1986, before Alice Book, Certified Shorthand Reporter.

MR. KLETZING: We will continue the stipulations
we had at the beginning with the exception that it is
stipulated that Alice Book be given the same powers and
authority as a notarvy.

=G lo——=-
STIPULATIONS

It is hereby stipulated by and between Plaintiff
and befendants, by counsel, that the witness be'examined
pursuant to and by virtue of the provisions of Sections
2016, 2018, 2019, and 2021 of the Code of Civil Procedure
of the State of California, subject to all legal
objections being reserved until the time of trial, save

and except objections as to the form of the question.
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That all objections as to the qualifications of
the Notary and any and all irregqularities in the manner of
administering the oath are wavied; that the reporter has
the rights of a notary.

That if the witness should be instructed not to
answer questions propounded by counsel, it shall be deemed
that the Notary Public has instructed the witness to
answer, and tﬁat the witness still refused to do so on the
instruction of counsel.

That deposition exhibits will be appended to the
depositions and that true copies may be so appended with
full force and effect as if. they were the originals
subject to éll rulings of the coﬁrt on'admissibility.

That the deposition shall be(read, corrected and
signed prior to the time of trial, and if not, it may be
used Qith the same force and effect as though it were read
and signed pursuant to the Code of Civil Procedure Section
201%(e) which is hereby waived. Said deposition may be
signed before any Notary Public and all objections as to
the qualifications of any such Notary are wéived.

That this stipulation is deemed to be the written
stipulation required by Section 2019(a)(2) of the Code of
Civil Procedure.

—=—clo=--
HARVEY 0. BARKS,

having been sworn, testified as follows:
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EXAMINATION
BY MR. BABER:
Q This is a continuation of Mr. Banks' deposition of
September 23, 1986, which is about a month and a half ago.
A Not quite a month and a half, but almost.
Q At that time we were looking‘at a pretty quick
trial date for this case. Since we deposed you on the 23rd
of September,'the trial was continued from the 14th of
October to start on the 15th of December, and one of the
areas that I am interested in talking to you about is at
your deposition on the 23rd of September you said that you
were going to do some additionalistudies and come up with
some conclusions on whether or not the qualify of the
water used by certain area defendants in this case, and
particularly the Southwestern Delta area, and you didn't
say uplands or lowlands, but my client, Byron-Bethany, is
in the uplands.

You were going to make some additional studies to
see whether or not the water by Byron-Bethany, diverted in
July and August of '77 would have been of a usable gquality
without any input from the State Water Project facilities,
and that's what I'm primarily interested in.

Do you have a copy of your previous deposition, by
any chance?

A Yes, I do.

Q Would you turn to page 171, lines 13 to 17. You
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reaffirm that testimony; isn't that correct, there is no
problem with the guantity of water which was diverted by
Byron-Bethany in July and August of "7 regérdless of
whether or not the State Water Project'furnished any water
in those months?

A From the standpoint of wet water, that is merely
water consistipg of molecules of water plus whatever other
constituents happen to be in there; yes, there was water
there,

Q Okay. Now from the standpoint of quality, and I
get into that a little bit with you on page 171 of the

transcript of that deposition, and then you see, carrying

over to page 172, lines 1 to 11 --' let's say lines 1
through 21 ~--

A May I interiject?

Q ‘ Sure.

A That I have not had an opportunity as yet to

discuss this with Dr. Henderson, I regret to say.

0 Okay. But going a 1little further on in that
deposition, outside of the point where you say you ére
going to discuss it with Dr. Henderson, let's say page

172, lines 12 to 21, do you recall those questions and

answers?
A Yes, I do.
Q Okay. You have no opinion as to the water quality

diverted by Byron-Bethany in July and August of '77?
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A | The only d;ﬁa that I have with respect to your
question, if I understand it —correctly, and as I
understand your gquestion, it is, abéent the projects, that
is the storage of --

Q Okay, when you say "the project," I want to
confine it to the one projgct, the State Water Project. I
would like you to separate out the Central Valley Project.
Let's leave Sﬁasta Dam and all the federal projects out of

this. All I'm interested in is the State Water Project.

A Well, may I go ahead?
Q Sure,
A In view of the fact that the coordinated operation

agreement now has been approved by th? Congress and will
be signed, so I wunderstand, by the State and by the
Bureau, or the representative of the Secretary of Interior
later this month, I do not see just how you can separate
out now when it will be a matter in effect of law that the
State and the Bureau operate together in a coordinated
fashion to meet the water quality objectives as
established by the State Water Resocurces Control Board in
accordance with their water quality control plan, as I
say, as it may evolve out of the hearings next year.

O And they will continue on for another three or
four years, I think, probably?

A . At least.

0 That I am interested in, though, Harvey, and the
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reason I want you to separate the State Water Project from
the Central Valley Project is this lawsuit.

A I understand.

Q I understand there's a COA and it is going through
the political mechanisms right now, and may be approved
now, and when they have a contract. |

What I am interested in is this particular lawsuit

’
because the Central Valley Project or the federal
government is not a party to this lawsuit, and I believe
when we deposed you in September, you agreed that the
Central Valley Project is not a party to this lawsuit, and
the State Water Project was simply trying to collect its
benefits, and the reason -- ,

MR. KLETZI&G: I don't think he agreed to that at
all.

MR. BABER: I think he did.

MR. RKLETZING: He agreed it4is not a part, but not
that the State Water Project was trying to collect Central
Valley Project benefits. That's not a correct
characterizatied of anything I read. |

MR. NOMELLINI: You mischaracterized Mr. éaber’s
statement. He is talking about state benefits, the State
trying to collect for state benefits. It will sort itself
out.

A May I continue?

MR, BABER: @ Sure.
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A As I understand it, the procedure has been and the
whole study has proceeded on the assumption of the total
benefits, whatever those may be, or whatever obligation
there may be, to provide salinity control, that the State
was only claiming 25 percent of that obligation, and the
calculations have all been based upon the fact of the
total obligation or benefits, whichever term you prefer,
of that totaltthe State was only claiming credit for 25
percent.

0 Let me go into that for a minute since you brought
that up. Let me tell you that my client, Byron-Bethany,
diverted 17,256 acre-feet of water in July and August of
1977. '

Now, how much of that water would you say -- well,
strike that. How much benefit would the State be entitled
to from the diversion by Byron-Bethany of 17,256 acre-feet
of water in July and August of 7772
A Well, in the first place, assuming we proceed with
that, it will be necessary to allocate to Byron-Bethany
whatever their appropriative right may be.from the water
supply that reaches Byron-Bethany intake that originates
in water other than that placed into the Delta from
storage in tota; by the Central Valley Project and the
State Water Project, and ultimately whatever the portion
may be of water placed in the Delta by the Sta’te Water

Project.
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Q Okay. What you are talking about is going through
all the numbers that you went ‘through at the last
deposition; correct?

A All of the calculations have been based wupon
satisfaction of the prior rights as first call on the
other water, or natural flow if you wish to use that term.
Q Okay.' And notwithstanding your opinion that the
quantity ° of water would  Thave been available for
Byron—-Bethany's diversion regardless of the State Water
Project facilities; right? |

A Yes. I believe that there was so much natural flow
in July and August that reached thé Delta and was to be
split up among those havipg prior rigﬁts to that water. In
addition to that, there was State Water Project water plus
Central Valley Project water in total placed in the Delta
and, in my opinion, some of that water was diyerted by the
various Delta water users. I cannot tell you exactly how
much of that 17,000 acre-feet that you quoted originated
or was involved with the diversion of water that had been
plaﬁea in the Delta.

0 Okay.

A At this point in time, I offer no opinion as to
what proportion of that 17,000 acre-feet or thereabouts
that was due Byron-Bethany under their prior rights to
that water from the natural flow. I do not know what that

is at this point in time.
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Q Okay. Of thé 17,256 acre-feet they diverted in
*77, July and August, I think you commented at your last
deposition that the central Valley Project considers it a
non-reimbursable expense. Do you remember that? In other
words, the 75 percent released by the Central Valley
Project is a non-reimbursable cost.

MR. KQETZING:, I don't think he said that either.
A If I Said that, I was in error.

MR. BABER: Q@ It is a reimbursable cost?
A As it turns out, as I understand it, under the
COA, it will be reimbursable. Whether or not it was at the
time, in July and August of '77, 1is purely a legal
question and I aﬁ not éompetent to answer that.

EXAMIMNATTION

BY MR. NOMELLINI:
o Assuming it was non-reimbursale in July and August
of 1977, the federal water in the Delta, to the extent it
benefited Delta users, how do you segregate out the
State's share? They want 25 percent of a benefit that's
non-reimbursable.
A 2s I recall, under the prior annual agreements,
the Bureau and the State had agreed to provide whatever
degree of salinity control was, in fact, provided, and
that in the accounting for that amount of water it was
agreed between the State and the Bureau that 25 percent

was State water and 75 percent was federal water.
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And although I have not seen the bill, it is my

understanding that under the approved COA that split of
water and the accounting for the amount of water for that
is part now of the COA, but I must say I have not yet had
an opportunity to read the bill,.
Q Going back to 1977 in July and August, you are
saying, I gather, that the coordinated operating agreement
in effect at tha£ time said that the Dburden for
maintaining Delta water quality was 25 percent State, 75
percent federal. Is that what you are saying?

That is what my understandiné is.

Okay. Have you reviewed the agreement?

No, I have not. !

A
Q
A
Q Have you ever reviewed that agreement?
A I am sorry to say I have not.
0 If I told you that the agreement provided that the
State was entitled to 25 percent of the surplus water in
the Delta and the federal government was entitled to 75
percent of the surplus water in the Delta, do you think
that's consistent with  your understaﬁding of - the
agreement?

MR. KLETZING: 1It's incorrect.

MR. NOMELLINI: Well, I am asking him.
A Mr. Nomellini, I must ask for clarification as to

what you meant by the term "entitled"™. That is not what I

said. I did not use the term "entitled," and in order to
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A

answer your éuestion I would respectfully ask
clarification as to youf meaning of the word "entitled."
MR. NOMELLINI: Q In your understanding of the

coordinated operating agreement in effect in 1977, did the

. state and the federal government reach any agreement as to

their respective rights as between themselves to take
surplus water from the Delta?

A May I ask a further clarification?

Q Sure.

A You are using the term "entitlement.”

Q "1 didn't use the term "entitlement™ that time.

A Yqu are also using the term "right.”

0 I am talking as between those 'two, was there any
agreement as to the share of surplus water from the Delﬁa?
A I do not believe that the term "share" was used. I
believe the intent of all these agreements has been a
share of the responsibility to provide salinity control.

] Do you believe that the federal government was
committed to maintaining Delta water quality in July and
August of 19777

A I don't believe, based upon my understanding and
recollection, I don't believe that up until the COA, or
coordinated operation agreement, had the status of
approval by Congress, I don't believe there has ever been
a commitment to provide salinity control or a part thereof

by the United States jrrespective of any conditions.
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In the deali;gs that I have had with the Bureau on
behalf of some of my cl}ents, the. Bureau has always up
until very recently, the Bureau has always maintained that
they had no legal obligation to provide salinity control,
but their position has always been they will provide their
share of the water for salinity control so long as it does
not interfere’with the other ébligations of the Central
Valley Project.

Now, that is based on my dealings with the Bureau
on behalf of the Contra Costa Water District.

0] So, your understanding was that it was a
commitment -- well, you‘don't like the term "commitment."
It was an agreement to provide water so long as it didn't
interfere with their project operation?

A That has been may understanding, as I said, in my
work with the Bureau on behalf of Contra Costa Water
District. |

Q Assuming that the federal government did provide
75 percent of the water in July and August of 1977, and
assuming that it was a non-reimbursable provision, how do
you segregate out the benefit between the State and the
federal government?

A By virtue of their agreed-upon sharing of the
responsibility for salinity control that was provided and
the project waters that were provided to achieve that

degree of salinity control called for by the State Water
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Resources Control Board Water Quality Control Plan.

Q Is the commitment for this 75/25 a daily
commitment?
A As I recall and understand, there was an

accounting each year of it. I don't believe it was a daily
accounting,
Q You think it was a yearly accounting?
A Over the year there was a certain amount of water
which was estimated to have been provided jointly hy the
projects.
Q Now you indicated that you have not had a chance
to talk to Henderson. Who is Henderson? Did he have a
heart attack? Somebody told me he suffered a heart attack.
MR. KLETZING: He had a small stroke, but he is in
Sri Lanka.
MR.‘ NOMELLINI: 0 Now, you haven't done any

further studies since our last deposition with you?

A That is correct.
Q Are you planning to do any further studies?
A I would have to say in view of the fact that the

COA now has the status of a legal document on behalf of
the federal government; no, I see no reason to do it.

Q What difference does that make for this lawsuit?

A It doesn't, but it also is an agreed-upon split of
the sharing of the responsibility for salinity control now

written, as I understand into the federal statutes. It's
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always been an obligation of the State Water Project under

the Delta Protection Act, that there be provided salinity

control by the State Water Project in cooperation with the

United States. And I believe that's found in Section 12200

of the Water code.

Q I am going to ask it again, so what has that got

to do with July and August of 19772

A Accgréing to all of our calculations project

water, and I am using "project" in the broad term, there

was provided salinity control through the release of

stored water, or water from storage to use Mr.

Hildebrand's terminology, there was water released from

storage to provide a certain degree of’salinity control.
'E XAMINATTION

BY MR. BABER:

Q You mean from both projects?

A From both projects, and we have taken the

pesition, if I may use that term, based upon custom and

now law, that 25 percent of that is the legal

responsiblity of the State Water Project.

0] So then, mechanically, as a practically matter,

you make no attempt to differentiate between the State

Water Project and the Central Valley Project water

released in July and August of 197772

A We know how much was released from storage from

Oroville Reservoir through the hydrologic study. There was
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a total amount that . flowed out of project water for the
purposes of salinity control, and as I said, we have taken
that position that 25 percent of that water was to be

provided by the State Water Project.

0 Regardless of what vyou are claiming in this
lawsuit?
A As I understand it, we have used that value of 25

percent of thé total responsibility to be provided by the
State Water Project.

EXAMINATTION
BY MR. NOMELLINI:
Q I want you to answer the question, but if you want
to state a view, that's fine.

'

A Well, my view is that it isn't a question so much
of entitlement as it was that there was a definite
responsibility for the State Water Project to provide
water for salinity control, and we have by virtue of
custom and now law, used the fact that of the total amount
of water for salinity ©control, 25 percent was the
responsibility of the State Water Project.
) Did the State provide 25 percent of the water in
July and August of 1977 for salinity control?
A 1 cannot say whether that is the actual number of
acre~feet provided because it was a coordinated operation,
a joint operation.

0 Well, you said before that the sharing was not a
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daily type of sharing. You said it was an annual
accounting.
A It's an annual accounting based upon the amount
provided, 25 percent of that was allocated to the State
Water Project.

EXAMINATION
BY MR. BABER:;
Q Let mé just pick up for a minute. Harvey, in your
deposition on page 172, lines 12 to 22, you say at lines
19 to 21 that the Southwest Delta -- you don't say
specifically Southwest, but you are referring to that, I
believe, is an area which has significant differences from
the rest to warrant a special opinion with respect to that
area. Do you still maintain that?
A Tt has, I believe, certain distinct character-
istics, for instance, an appropriative right.
9] Well, I understand your testimony to mean not in
the area of water rights paper, but in the area of areas,
geographic area differences.
A Well, much of it is in the Delta ﬁighl&ﬂds, ves,
or the high land.
Q Do you have any, can you tell me now, does it
still warrant a special opinion or do we fall into the lot
with everybody else?
A Well, permit me to say that since you have raised

the question, we will have to examine that. I am sorry to
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say, I have not had an opportunity to follow up further on
that to this time.

Q Would you be able to examine it at any time prior
to the trial of this case?

A Permit me to say what may seem to be a facetious

remark, knowing you are going to query, yes.

Q When @o you think --
A I'11 mark that carefully.
0 Thank you. Do you think you would have any opinion

down within a couple of weeks prior to trial?
A I believe so, yes.

MR. BABER: Okay. Russ, can we make provision to
talk to Harvey again, you know, like December 1 of 272

MR. KLETZING: What is the question?

MR. BABER: He may have a special opinion and, in
fact, he will have a special opinion regarding the
Southwest Delta geographical area, as I understand it.

A Well, what I intended to say, and permit'me if I

‘may -

MR. BABER: Sure.

MR. BABER: @ Was 1in view of the gquestions that
have been raised that I will make a study, specific study
of that to see if it does justify any different treatment
than anybody else.

Q Okay. Now you bring that up, let's go into the

treatment, what kind of treatment would we be getting?
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A As fair a treatment as I can possibly give as a
professional expert witness.

Q Okay. And the treatment would essentially be a
charge for water quality délivered or improved, however
you look at it each year; is that correct?

A May I ask for clarification? Do you mean you are
asking for an analysis over a long period of time or just
July andbAuQHSE?

0 July. and August of '77. Let me get back into this
area of O'Leary's engineering opinion. Between the time of
your deposition on the 23rd of September and now, have you
reached any other conclusions with regard.to that opinion?
A No. ’

0 The testimony you gave on the 23rd of September is
still the same?

A On the basis of what I know now, yes.

Q A1l right. Let me get into the area of maybe
benefits and detriments for a minute. On the 23rd of

September you testified that you strongly believe that all

‘users of -- see if I have this right -- all users of water

in a drought year or, let's say, a drought year, whatever
that is, I guess, should pay if they benefit, should pay
some fair share of money to the State if the State
requests them to pay it; is that your belief?

A Yes, I believe -~ since my last deposition on the

23rd of September, I spent some time reviewing the
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statutes and review}ng work that has been done already

‘under the Central Valiay Project: Act, and under the

Davis-Dolwig Act. The only purpose or functions of the
State Water Project that are to be filled and that are
non-reimbursable are the costs ailocated to the’
enhancement of fish and wildlife, and the cost allocated
to their creation. Everything else is reimbursable, and it
appears to me:out of my work with the legislature some 20
odd years ago, plus the statutes as they pertain, that all
other functions are to be reimbursed.
MR. NOMELLINI: Well, except flood control.

A I failed to mention that particular cost has been
borne by the United States.

i

MR. BABER: 'Q Is that an incidental benefit?

A No, it's not an incidental benefit. As a matter of

fact, flood control is a major function and a major
benefit; of the storage at Oroville and the stdragé in
three reservoirs upstream.

EXAMINATTION
BY MR. NOMELLINI:
Q Was any part of the release of water in July and
August of 1977 for enhancement of fish and wildlife?
A To the extent that the degree of salinity control
did improve conditions and did, in fact, enhance fish and
wildlife resources, it would be. I regret to say I did not

as yet look. at what the Department has stated to the
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legislature 1is the\ non-reimbursable cost due to the
enhancement of fish and wildlife resources.

Q So you are telling me you don't know what part of
the water claimed by the State for July and August of 1977
was, in fact, non-reimbursable because it was for
enhancement of fish and wildlife?

A I had not examined thase reports at that time.

Q Assum{ng there was some, how would that affect
your calculations in this particular éase?

A That total émount of costs of the project
facility's storage, that is, would have been
non-reimbursable and it would have been the residual that
would have been reimbursable among the various functions
served.

0 Which means what to us in this particular lawsuit?
How would that affect the damage calculation in this
lawsuit? |

A To the extent that the cost, to simplify, at
Oroville Reservoir, was borne by the general fund, that
much less of the cost would be allocated to the other
economic functions, which includes irrigation and that
type of function.

Q All right. Maybe I don't understand your function
in this lawsuit, but you have been retained by the
Department of Water Resources as an expert in this

particular case; have you not?
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A Yes, I believe so.

Q What do you understand to ‘be the scope of your
respnsibilities in this case? '

A What I was requested to do was to testify as to
the amount of project water which redounded to the benefit
through salinity control.

Q Okay. .Don't you think that involves the question
of what part éf that water was for enhancement of fish and
wildlife?

A We had not gotten down to that point as yet.
Ultimately, of course, assuming that the courts f;nd these
things reimbursable, then 'there will have to Dbe the
allecation of cosfs that were made’ by the department
responsive to the Davis-Dolwig Act will have to be
calculated, ves. That has not been done vyet.

0 Have all the costs of the project operation for --
I'm talking about State Water Project -~ for 1977 already
been allocated?

A Yes., The department has to, as I recall the
statute, the department has to report to ﬁhe legislature
each year as the non-reimbursable costs.

o] And whatever was reimbmfsable has been allocated
already; right?

A The residual, yes, has been allocated under the
separable costs remaining-benefits method as far as

storage is concerned.
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Q So let's assume we have got some water in July and
August that was released for enhancement of fish and
wildlilfe that 1is, in fact, non~reimburséble, what
difference would that make in erms of the calculation of
damages claimed against the Delta water users?

A As T understand it, the department has said that
water is worth, whatever was diverted and used in the
Delta for the.benefit of the Delta water users, whatever
that quantity was, the department has placed a value of
$60 per acre-foot on it.

0] So it doesn't make any difference whatsoever that
part of that water was for enhancement of fish and
wildlife? ' '

A We have allocated;avportion, a quantity which 1is
now not dollarwise, because I have had nothing to do with
that and if I recall correctly another expert has been
retainéd to gquantify the costs of that water to the stafe.
Q All right. We hﬁve got $60 per acre-foot, which is
alleged to be the fair market value of water in July and
August of 1977; right?

A So I understand.

0] Okay. Let's assume that some part of the water
released from storage in July and August of 1977 was for
enhancement of fish and wildlife, a non~reimbursable
function for the State Water Project.

A We are talking dollars now?
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Q We are talking dollars. Okay, how is that going to.
change yoﬁr calculation of damage or the claim against the
Delta water users?

A Well, there are two steps to this. One is
quantifying the amount of State Water Project water that
was diverted and Qsed, whatever the amount was, over and
above the basic rights to natural flow. Then the dollar
value of that.has been calculated as the fair market value
of that water because, if I und&rsﬁandICOrrectly, that is
what it could have been sold for.

Q Okay, let's assume that in Julyr and RAugust of
1977, ten percent of the water released from storage was
for enhancement for fish and wildlife. All right, how are
you going to account for that in the allocation of the
damages claimed against the Delta water users?

A May I ask for clarification? Are you referring to
the dollar value or are you referring to the quantity
value upon which the dollar value was based?

A Either one. I am just trying to understand how you.
are going to deal with that if, in fact,.there was some
water released from storage for enhancement of fish and
wildlife in July and August of 1977.

A There was -- let's see if I san‘explain it. As we
see it, there was, according to our calculations so much
natural flow that reached the Delta. There was SO much

project water in addition to the natural flow that reached
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the Delta. Now the natural flow was split up as being the
property, shall we say of the prior rights, particularly
the riparians, of which let us assume user A had a prior
right to whatever that natufal flow was, had a prior right
to, say, 10,000 acre-feet, to wuse a figure. That
particular user actually diverted and used 12,000
acre~-feet. '
’

Now let me emphasize these are hypothetical
figures.

So we have estimated that the amount of project
water that was used in total was 2,000 acre-feet, and 25
percent of that we have allocated as the responsibility of
the State Water Project, and that meaﬁs 500 acre-—-feet, so .
the amount of water to be paid for was 500 acre-feet, and
other studies have quantified the fair market wvalue of
that at $60 an acre-foot.
Q So it doesn't make any difference in your
calculation that ten percent of the water hyp&tﬁetically
released from storage in the State Water Project was for
enhancement of fish and wildlife?
A Tt doesn't enter into this particular calculation
as we have estimated it.
G Let's assume that all of the water released from
storage in July and August of 1977 was for enhancement of

fish and wildlife, that still wouldn't c¢hange your

calculation: would 1it?
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A Unless the cost per acre-foot was based upon the
actual cost allocated, and I do not know, and I believe =--
may I ask Mr; Kleting if I am correct, that this was done?
Q . 1f you want to swear him in, I don't mind having
him as a witness. I would like to cross-examine him a
little bit.

A As I understand the calculation of the §$60 an
acre—foot, it ‘was based upon the fair market value of that
water. May I point out, too, that if there is required so
much water to bé allocated to the enhancement of fish and
wildlife, I'm talking now of water quantity, and the Delta
water users diverted and used project water, that means
that more water has to be released from storage té provide
the water’for the enhancement of fish and wildlife.

0 Are you‘telling me even if all the water released
in July and August in 1977 was for enhancement of fish and
wildlife, it would make no difference whatscever in the
calculation of damage in this case?

A It would make no difference if everybody iﬁ the
Delta refrained from diverting any project water,

0 Let's assume that they diverted the water frém the
Delta as occurred in.July and August of 1977, and I am
going to ask it again, and if you don't waﬁt to answer it,
you tell me, and then we will go to court and get a court
order ordering you to answer the question, Dbut the

question is squarely put to you.
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MR. KLETZING: Well, if you are asking him for an
impossible question.

MR. NOMELLINI: ©No, I am not. I am asking him a
hypothetical quéstién to understand his calculatian of
damages in this case.

Mﬁ. KLETZING: ’But it is impossible that the water
that is diverted by Delta users could be allocated to fish
and wildlife.'

MR. NOMELLINI: That isn't true at all. I mean, if
we are talking about releases of stored water, we
understand that concept; right? |
A Let me try to answer it. I'm not sure --

MR. NOMELLINI: Okay. '

A -- I will be able to. Oroville is up here 100
miles upstream. Fish and wildlife flows are that which
flow out. So that in order to have this much flow out to
fish and wildlife, and there is so much used here in the
Delta, let's neglect export now and only consider the
Delta, what has to be released up here is the amount of
project water that needs to flow out here éor the overall
benefit of fish and wildlife in ofder to create the
salinity gradient that's necessary, plus an amount of
water diverted by the Delta water users from the amount
released from storage at Oroville for their benefit.

MR. NOMELLINI: Q Fine. Let's say all the water

released from storage was for enhancement of fish and
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wildlife,

A * All right.

Q That is non-reimbursable; right?

A That particular allocation would be non-reim-

bursable.

Q and there wouldn't be any requirement of anybody
to reimburse that?

A. For tgat particular allocation of casts.

Q Okay.

MR. BABER: If that were ten percent, there would
be ten percent that would be non-reimbursable because they
released itAfor fish and wildlife purposes?

A For that which was released for that particular
purpose and flowed out of the Delta for that particular
purpose.

MR. NOMELLINI: Q There's not cost to be
recovered then: any benefit that came from that particular
rélease to some third party incidentally would not result
in any obligation for payment; would it?

In my Opiﬁion, it would.
It would?
Yes.,

Okay. And how would that come about?

OO 0 e

Forgive me, because it's going to sound facetious,
but it isn't intended that way. If you require 150,000

acre-feet of project water to flow out of the Delta for
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the benefit of the enhancement of fish and wildlife, and
the Delta water users need to divert project water over
and above their bhasic right to natural flow of another
100,000, that means 250,000 has to be released up here.

Qv Don't you agree that the Delta has water in it at
all times?

A 1 agree the Delta has wet water.

Q So the only difference is going to* be in the

quality; right?

A Excuse me, may I think that one through?
Q Sure.
A Because that is a crucial point, as I understand

it. Certainly as compared to éonditions without any
projects, the water that was in the Delta channels in July
and August in parts of the Delta would not have been
ugsable, so, in effegt, the salinity control plus the
amount of water that was released into the Delta for Delta
use improved the wet water in the channels to the degree
that it served its purpose for irrigation.

Q So it could have been utilized whereas otherwise

it couldn't, and, therefore, there is a quantitative

‘aspect to it?

B We have elected to use quantity as surrogate.
O Okay. Now, let's assume that ten percent of the
water released from storage in July and August of 1977 was

for the purpose of enhancement of fish and wildlife, and

BBID Exh. 294



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

29

Y

that the water would have been otherwise usable throughout
the Delta, how would your calculation of alleged damage as
against Delta water users been done in that case?

A ' Well, the ten percent of which you speak was water
released up here and flowed out. Granted that taking it
from the standpoint of quality, that ten percent did have
an effect upon quality, no émesti@n about that. Any
increment that you allow to flow out of the Delta or you
provide to flow oué of the Delta, does, and the purpose of
it is to maintain certain quality conditions. That's why

you do it.

Q Okay. How would you address the  damage

caIculation, if at all, as against Del&a water users if we
had that particular case, ten percent?

A That particular aspect comes about due to the
value of the water. In other words, whatever the total
cost was in that year dué to the storage operation,
maintenance, all that sort of thing, and as allocated out
among the various functions served, if the cost allocated
to fish and wildlife were ten percent, !that would be
rather high, I think, but we can hypothesize that, then,
the residual cost has to be allocated among other users of
the project facilities.

Q Well, how would that affect the damages in this
particular case?

A "If we were to approach the cost of that water from
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the standpoint of the cost allocation, there would be less

cost allocation.

Q But you agree you are not approaching it from that
standpoint?

A That is right.

Q Therefore ~-

A The position has been taken that we will value the

%

water used by ‘the Delta, actually used, diverted and used,
will bg based upon fair market value of the water as the
value of the water was at that time.

0 Do you think that's fair?

A The State would have gotten that amount of money
from other sources. There were plenty of buyers for water

at that time, so I understand. I was not --

.Q But the amount of water that was used depends upon

whether or not it was usable in the prior state; right?

A There is a connection there.

0 Well, you said there was?

A Yes.

0 And you said that if it was otherwise unusable,

then there was more water used by the Delta because the
threshold of usability was reached in quality.

A Would you repeat that statement?

Q Do you agree that for the Delta to use more water
than they would otherwise use, the difference in the

before condition would have to be unusable and after the
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A

additional water from storage were released, it would have
to be of usable quality?
A - Yes.

0 Because if it was usable all the time, there's no

" more water actually used; right?

A That is corréct.
Q The water released for enhancement of f£ish and
’

wildlife, if the before condition was of usqble'quality;
if, before the ten percent of water releases from storage
for enhancement of fish and wildlife, the water would‘have
been of usable quality, then isn't it fair to say that the
Delta uses should not be in any way eharged for the water
for enhancement of fish and wildlife? i

MR. KLETZING: Before what?

MR. NOMELLINI: Before release of storage for
enhancement of fish and wildlife.

MR. KLETZING: Before June?

MR. NOMELLINI: No, in the prior condition?

MR. KLETZING: What prior condition?

MR, NOMELLINI: Iin the without condition, without
the release.

MR. KLETZING: You are talking about without the
project?

MR. NOMELLINI: No, on the release of stored water

for enhancement of fish and wildlife, if the water quality

in the Delta would have been usable, then there should be
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A

no charge to Delta users for that water released from
storage for enhancement of fish and wildlife.
Do you agree?
A If I understand your hypothesis, yes. Now, may I
explain or mention what I understand YOur hypothesié was?
MR. NOMELLINI: Q Certainly.
A If we assume that absent the projects any release
from the proj;cts, that the water iﬁ the channels ‘was of
usable quality and the usefsvsuffered no detriment, and
they could use all they wanted of that quality under their
priority right;'then there would be no obligation, that's
right.
Q Okay. My hypothesis was that absent the release of
stored water for enhancement of fish and wildlife, that
the water quality was otherwise usable in the Delta, would .
there be any obligation for Delta users to pay for the
water réleased from storage for enhancement of fish and

wildlife?

A May I ask a question for clarification?
Q Sure.
A Are you assuming that there would be no release

from the projects for any purposes?

0 No, I am assuming that all releases for other
purposes. I am trying to find out your answer to whether
or not there is an obligation on the part of the Delta

water users to pay for water released for fish and
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wildlife enhancement under those circumstances?

A If I understand your assumption as to the physical

condition, those costs allocated to water for fish and

wildlife enhancement would be non-reimbursable by statute.
0 Right. And do you agree that the Delta users
should not be charged for any part of that water under the
example that I gave you where the water wbuld have been of
usable qualit; for all theirrpurposes absent that release
of water for fish and,wildlife enhancement?

A No, that particular portion of the total cost
would be non-reimbursable.

Q And the Delta users should not be charged for it?

A Again, let me emphasize the basis of my answer,
that the costs allocated to that particular function of
the project and that gets to the amount of water we are
talking about, that particular portion would not Ee
reimbursable under the provisions of Section 11900 , et
seq., in the Wate% Code.

Q Do you think Delta water users should have to pay
$60 per acre-foot for that quantity of watéﬁ?

A We are saying, as I understand it, that there was
water placed in the Delta by the projects and diverted by
the Delta water users in excesé of their basic right to
the natural inflow to the Delta, and that to the extent
that they diverted water over and above their natural

flow, their natural right or riparian right to the natural
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flow, that they do owe the State compensation for that
amount of excess water diverted and used.

MR. NOMELLINI: Alice, would you read back my
éuestion so I can see if I can get an answer from Harvey
on that question.

(The reporter read the <question as

follaws: "Do you think Delta users should

have ;x> pay $60 per acre-foot for that

quantity of water?")

MR. NOMELLINI: Q Released from storage for fish

and wildlife enhancement in the example that I gave you
where without that release the water wduld have been
other%ise usable? ’
A ‘No, the cost allocated, to repeat,” the cost
allocated to that particular function, in accounting for
the project cost, that particular element of cost is not
reimbursable.

Q Okay. So Delta water users shouldn't have to pay

for it under those circumstances?

A From the standpoint of cost allocation, that is
right.
0O Okay. Now, how is that cost reflected in the fair

market value of water?
A I have not performed that calculation. I believe
I'm correct in that the department has retained -- I'm not

sure whether it is John Teerink, I believe it is John
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Teerink, to make that particular calculatioﬂ as to the
fair market value.

I ha&e not consulted with that particular expert.
Q You would agree that the fair market value
approach would totally ignore the.fact that there might be
some honwreimbursable costs associated with water released
from storage;'right?
A I would agree that fair market value doesn't
necessarily take that out. In other:words, it's what the
water is worth on a waterrmarkeg at that time?

" I mean, how does

0 Okay. You said "not necessarily.'’
fair market value account for the non-reimbursable costs
in a project? ' '

A it does not enter into that particular

calculation.

Q Okay. So the "not necessarily,” we can strike
that? |

A Yes,

0 Okay. Now in July and August of 1977, do you know

whether or not there was any release of water from storage
for enhancement of recreation?

A I do not know that. As I said previously, I have
not examineé tﬁe allocation made by the department of
costs for that year and reported to the legislature. I
will do so, however.

aQ All right. Now that we understand non-reimbursability
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and usability of water in the Delta due to quality, let's
assume that the Federal Water Project is operated in the
Delta to meet its Tracy standards, and that as a result of
that operation, water quality throughout the Delta in July
and August of 1977 would have been usable. Why should the
Delta water users pay anything to the State for water in
July and August of 1977 under those hypothetical
conditions? ‘

A I will try to answer that. If we hypothesize that
the United States, through the Federal Céntral valley
Project, provided all of the water necessary for salinity
control, which in part would dictated by the water quality
objeétive requirements at the Tracy pumps, to reiterate,
if we aésume or hypothesize thét all of that water was
furnished by the United States and none whatscever was
provided by the State, you would be quite correct.

] That wasn't my hypothesis. My‘hypothesis was that
absent the State Water Project's operation as specifically
focusing in on the federal government meeting their Tracy
standards, that the water quality in the Bélta for all of
these defeméant agricultural users would havé been usable

in all respects, why should there be a payment made to the

State?

A May I try to explain?

0 Yes, as long as you don't change my hypothesis.

A Well, to answer that particular point first, I'm
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not --

MR, KLETZING: You can change his hypothesis if
you want to. There is no law against changing attorney's
hypothesis.

MR. NOMELLI&I: Other than to ask Fhe question
again and again and again.

MR. KLETZING: That's unrealistic.

A Let mé say this, put my own personal opinion on
this, and maybe it will answer your question.

MR. NOMELLINI: Q That's all we have been geting
is vyour persénal opinions; right? We are getting your
personal opinions.

A Yes. '

Q \Okay. Is there any other opinion that you are
giving to us in this testimony?

A No.

Q Okay. Now, go ahead and continue to put your own
perscnal opinion on it.

A I would say that when the Delta water users divert
and use water in excess of their prigr' right to the
natural inflow to the Delta, then they should recompense
the State for at least the State's share of the water that
was provided so that they could divert over and above
their right to the natural flow, and that is the best
explanation I can give you of my particular professional

opinion on this particular aspect.
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MR; KLETZING: Harvey, we have been going quite a
while. Do you need a coffee break?

MR. NOMELLINI: That's okay, I will pick right up
where I left off here. No problem. What do ?ou want, five
minutes?

MR. KLETZING: Sure.

(Recess)

MR. NéMELLINI: Q Well, Harvy, now that you have
been able to deliberate over a cup of coffee, the question
I asked you prior to tﬁe break,rand I will note for the
record Russ wanted the break, not Harvey.

MR, KLETZING: I asked Harvey if he wanted a cup
of coffee and he said hé did, so obviously, he did.

MR. NOMELLINI: ©No, he didn't. He just sat there
silently.

A But it was nice.

MR . NGMELLIN: It was welcome anyway.

QO 1f, in the absence of the State Water Project, the
water would have been usable for all of the purposes of
the defendants in July and August of 1977, why should they
pay the State for water used in those two months?

A Let me say what I understand you to mean, that
assuming that the United States, through the Central
Valley Project, had provided whatever project water might
have been necessary to enable the Delta water users to

have a water supply, the United States had been solely
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responsible, had tgat been the case, then obviously,
whether or not there was any compensation demanded or
requested would have been up to the United States and not
the State under that particular assumption.

Q Okay. So the reason for there being a claim, well,
one of the reasons for there being a claim for payment
under the cirgumstances was the State participated in the
responsibility for salinity control? |

MR. KLETZING: There»isn't any claim for payment
for improvement of wa&er gquality, for salinity control.

MR. NOMELLINI: There isn't?

MR. KLETZING: No,

MR. NOMELLINI: @ Harvey, is;that true?

A I'm not -- would you say that again, Russ?

MR. KLETZING: There isn't monetary claim in this

case for salinity control. It's just for water quantities.
It's right there in the complaint.
A That is correct, that the amount of compensation
has been based upon the estimate of the amount of State
Water Project water flowing into the Delta that was
actually diverted and used by the Delta water users.

MR. NOMELLINI: Q  Okay. The calculation of
damages is based on a quantification analysis; right?

A That is correct.
Q Did you hear what Russ said, though, he said there

was no claim made for water quality benefits. Do you agree
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SRR

there?

A 1 agree that the basis for compensation has been
based upon quantity and not on quality.

Now that's .calculation; right?

That is caléulation.

Ckay.

it is é method --

ol AR oI "

Let's stay rigﬁt on Russ's question. Isn't the
claim really based on avquality benefit?

A It is based in part upon the Delta outflow .
required to meet the State Water Resources Board water

quality objectives.
H

Q But that is because the water quality would have

been unusable without that release; right?

A That is our opinion, right.

Q Isn't that a quality benefit?

A One can look at it that way.

0 Absolutely, it 1is. When you gd from usable

quality, I mean, when you go from unusayle quality to
usable quality, that's a benefit; isn't it?

A Yes.

O So Russ is all wet whenyhe says there is no claim

based on quality; right?

A The only answer I can give you is that the
basis --
O .~ For the damage calculation --
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A

-- ig quantity.
Is quantity.
That is correct.

But the problem is not a quantity problem.

O ¥ O >

The problem of the Delta is and always has been

the problem of potential salinity intrusion.

Q And. that is the guality problem.
A That is quality.
Q So, if there is no claim in this case for quality

improvement, then there's no case; is there?

A I' don't believe, Mr. Nomellini, that I am
qualified to answer that one since it's purely a iegal
question. '

Q It maybe calls for a conclusion on the part of the
witness.

You do agree that if there was no quality changé
as the result of project operation, there would be no
basis for damages; would there?

A Ifrthe quality remained usable without any inflow
from the projects, that would be correct.

0] Okay. Going back now on the Federal Water Project
operating in the Delta and the water quality resulting
from that in July and August of 1877, that it
hypothetically would have been usable for all the

purposes, you were beginning to answer my guestion as to

why there should be a payment to the State. Do you want to
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tell me why there should be a pay%ent to the State?
A Because the problems of the Delta have been agreed
to between the Buréau and the State that they would do
that, meet the Delta needs by coordinated action as
required by statute as far as fhe State ié concerned, and
the Bureau elected to do that on its own initiative, at
that ;ime. '
Q If the Bureau was doing that on its own initiative
at that time without any leéal requirement and the Delta
had usable water quality, why should there be a péyment to
the State? |
A Because it was a cooperative effort.
Q So because two. people, two ‘Yjunior water users
decided to cooperate in some respect,’that creates the
payment obligation on the part of the Deita?
A As I said, under the Délta Water Projecté»kct, the
Sﬁate is directed'by the legislature in coordination with
the Bureau of Reclamation in the operation of the TFederal
Central Valley Project, the State is directed to provide
salinity control as a cooperative effort, |
MR. KLETZING: You are basing these questions on
an assumption that isn't true, so it doesn't make any
sense.
MR. NOMELLINI: Q Do you believe that the water
quality in the Delta absent the State Water Project would

have been usable for agricultural purposes in July and
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August of 1977, that's with the federal projects?
A We have never investigaged  that. I cannot answer
that question positively.
Q What is your intuitive feeling on that?
A My intuitive feeling, and it is purely intuitive,
is that there would have been substantial improvement in
quality due to the operation of the Federal Central Valley
Project. Whegher or not it would have maintained the
quality in a usable condition throughout the Delta, I
cannot say at this time.-

MR. BABER: Will you be able to say at the time of
trial?
A In my opinion, it isn't necessary under the
circumstances.

'MR. BABER: Why isn't it necessary?
A Because there is an agreed-upon program of action
with an agreed-upon allocation of the amounén of water
reguired.

MR. NOMELLINI: @ Focusing in on that, is it your
understanding that this agreement is applécable to July
and August of 19772 Let's assume for the months of July

and August, the two months, that all the water released

from storage to the Delta was federal water, do you think

the State would still have a claim for 25 percent?
A No, not under that hypothetical situation.

Q Why not?
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A If the State\provided no water, what basis for
claim would it have?

Q Let's say they provided the water later in the
year and they met their average for the year, the annual
amount.

A We are talking about in this case specifically
July and August? |

Q So you'would look at~it monthly theh?

A in this case, undér vit 'béing the subject of
1itiga£ion, I believe Qe have to.

Q So, in préparing for trial, did you loock to see
what part of the water réleased from storage in Juiy of
1977 was provided by the State as opposed to the federal
gavernment?

A We have made such studies of the relative amount

of water,

0) I am asking about you now.

A I have reviewed what the staff has done.

Q And what is your —-

A T+ could be traced down, T have not reduced it to

a percentage.

Do you remember what the numbers were?
- No.

How about for August?

No.

MR. NOMELLINI: Okay, that's all I have.
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E\X AMINATTIOHN
BY MR. WHITRIDGE:
Q Just one or two. Mr. Banks, I got here a little
bit late so I may not have understood completely, but I
heard you, in response to a question from Mr. Baber, I
believe you stated that you intended to do some further
study in rega;d to the Southwest Delta as to whether that
should be givén some special treatment; is that correct?
A I did so state and I would add, if I may, I'm not
sure that under the circumstances as they now exist,
whether that's going to be required. I do not know. It
depends on, in my opinion, the basis of the rights.
Q What area werev you referring to there as the
Southwest Delta?
A I believe the quéstioﬁ was raised with respect to
Byron—-Bethany Irrigation District.
o) W¢u1d the same questions be presented in regard to
Union Island?
A I believe we have considered Union Island to have
a strictly riparian right.
Q I seé. I understand. You are speaking in terms of
special treatment -~ in view of the questions raised, you
were referring there to special treatment in regard to
Byron-Bethany because they have an appropriative right?
A Yes.

o} I have here a list that was provided us, a list of
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backup documents for Harvey Banks' testimony, and one of
them that's listed, and I am familiar with many of them,
is one that 1is called American River Watershed Model,
Central District Memorandum Report, March, 1984. Are vyou

familiar with that?

A No, I am not familiar with that one.
Q You have not reviewed that?

1
A No, I have not.

MR. WHITRIDGE: Could we get a copy of that, Russ?
MR. KLETZING: Yes, I expect so. I think it just
shows the evapofatian or something like that.

NOMELLINI Of what?

e

MR,
MR. KLETZING: Ther reservoirs’
MR,

NOMELLINI

The reservoirs on the American?

MR. KLETZING: Yes, I think that's all it is. Does
it have a npmber?

MR. WHITRIDGE: March, 1984, was the date.-

MR. NOMELLINI:’ We expect Harvey to be intimately
familiar with that by the time we get to trial.

MR. KLETZING: Okay. ‘

2

A If I may comment, I will have to look it up to see
how relevant it is.

MR. WHITRIDGE: I just couldn't figure out what it
is.

MR NOMELLINT: You might ask your attorneys to

counsel with you when they prepare the list of documents

BBID Exh. 294




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

47

you are going to rely on.
MR. WHITRIDGE: I have no further questions.
MR. BABER: I have nothing further.
EXAMINATTION
BY MR. KLETZING:
Q I have a few. With regard to Byron-Bethany
Irrigation District, the district bases its rights solely
on appropriat;ve rights, pre-1914 appropriative rights,
and as Mr. Raber said, they diverted 17,256 acre-feet in
July and August. Do your calculations show that there is
enough water to satisfy riparian rights in the Delta
during July and August?
No. |

Of natural flow.

No.

oo 0

If I tell you that under tﬁe law riparian rights
have to be sétisfied before appropriative rights, would
there have been any Vnatural flow available to satisfy
Byron-Bethany's 17,256 acre-feet?

A No.

O On ﬁhat basis, would 25 percent of that have been
State Project ;ater that we are claiming?

A Yes, in accordance with our procedures and
agreements with the Bureau of Reclamation.

0 Okay, With the understanding that counsel hasn't

asked you to do any other study concerning Byron-Betl 'ny
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or the Southwest Delta, is there anything.K more that you

now have in mind doing concerning that area?

A Not from a physical standpoint as far as I can
see.
Q Well, is there anything that you would be doing

that Bill Baber might want to depose you on later?

MR. NOMELLINI: He forgot the words '"not
necessarily.“.
" A Would you ask the question again, please, HMr.
Kletzing?

MR. KLETZING: Q Are you going to do any more
study on the Southwest Delta before trial?

MR. NOMELLINI: I remember that answer, he said
"not physically.”

A Let me reword that, not Vfrom a physical
standpoint.

MR. KLETZING: Q0 Are you going to do anything
that Bill Baber would, you know —-- I'm trying to determine
if we need any more depositions so we can avoid another
one like the one that happened down in Stéckton of their
expert who hadn't done anything.

A As I see it now, no, I éo'not, I was not aware up
until this time that their rights were entirely
appropriative.

Q Okay. Now I want to ask you just about quality --

excuse me, let me start again. I am going to ask you Jjust
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about quantity, amounts of water.

MR. NOMELLINI: Now, wait a minute, you wanted to
ask . just about quality, and now you want to ask just about
quantity.

MR. KLETZING: Yes, I misspoke. I want to ask just
ahout quantity, amounts of water.

0 Totally disregarding ahy. effects that the -state
and federal p;ojects or either of them may have had on the
quality, did the agricultural users in the Delta divert
project water during July and August of 197772 |

A In my opinion, yes.

0 ' Did the projects have to release stored water in

excess of the natural flow in a mounts necessary to meet

those diversions?

A May I ask for clarification?
O Yes.
A By diversions, do you mean the actual amount of

water diverted and put on the land?

Q Yés, the amount of project water put on the land.
A Yes, there had to be water releaseé from upstream
storage and flow into the Delta in order to meet the
quantity requirements in total of the Delta water users.

G ' Then, irrespective of quality, should the Delta
users pay for the stored water that they diverted and put
onto their land?

A In my opinion, yes. And may I add to that, that
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subsequent to my deposition on the 23rd of September, I
did review the various documents and statements concerning
the obligation of reimbursement for water use in the Delta
over and above rights to natural flow, and came to the
conclusion that that was an obligation under tﬁe statute

in this state,

0 What was?
®
A For reimbursement compensation.
Q Okay. Now, a few minutes ago in answer to some of

Dan's questions, you said, though, that the quantity
calculation, the amount of projecﬁ'water, the quantity, at
$60- én acre-foot was Jjust a surrogate for quaiity
improvemeht. That's different than what you just told me.
Did you mean to say that?
A I will try, first, to answer that indirectly, Mr.
Kletzing, subject to further clarification. The actual
physical situation of supply to the land in the Delta is
extremely complicated and has both quantity and quality
aspects. We have elected in analyses for compensation to
have based it on a guantitative estimate of the amount of
project water that flowed into the Delta and was diverted
for use on the land.
0 That was the benefit to the water users; wasn't
it, to take that project water and put it on their land?
A Yes,

0 ' Wasn't there a separate and distinct benefit to
P
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them from the improvement in quality as compared to what

it would have been without the project?

A Would vyou repeat the question, please, Mr.
Kletzing?
Q Wasn't there an entirely separate benefit to the

water users because of the improvement in quality; that
is, in additiop to the stored water that was put on their
land?

A I believe there was in that the quality of water
available in the offstream channels, some of which flowed
into the islands underneath the levees and was available
for subirrigation;' and the quality of that water was
improved or was better than would ha;e been without the
release of project water into the Delta.

9] Okay. Now, I want to talk just about quality for a
moment. If Delta agricultural users have received improved‘
water quality when the projects have to reledse water for
other purposes, is there any reason that the Delta users
should get a free ride and not pay for a share of that
attributed to their water quality improvement?

A I believe I have stated previously that in my
opinion benefits derived from the operation of the project
should be reimbursed by those that benefit except to the
extent that such benefits have been declared by the
legislature to be non-reimbursable for certain specific

types of benefits; flood control, the enhancement of fish
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non-reimbursable,

Q Now, Judge Figone made a decision that is now no
longer law, and Dan has referred to those benefits as
incidental if some other purpose such as fish and wildlife
was béing served; and argued that they shouldn't pay for
it. Do you thlnk they should or shouldn t pay for the
water quallty 1mprovement if some purpose such as fish and
wildlife is also being met?

A As I said pre?i@usly, subsequent to my deposition
on September 23, I have spént some considerable time
reviewing the statutes, reviewing the obligations of water
users, and I believe that again, to the extent that the
projects provide an additional water supply in the Delta
over and above everything else, such as the outflow for
fish and wildlife and‘recreation, to the extent that water
is diverted and used over and above the riparian rights,
or if there is any available for appropriative rights,
then that excess over and above or in excess of the amount
of water available from natural flow for prior rights,
there should be compensation for that additional amount.

o} So, do you think that the Delta users should pay
for incidental benefits as they have been defined?

A To the extent, as I said, that the Delta water
users divert in excess of the amount of water available

under their prior rights from natural flow, then I think
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the Delta water users‘should pay for that.

Q Okay. Switching fields to the Sacramento River,
in your previous deposition there was considerable
discussion of the use of water by native vegetation,
evaporation and increased seepage because of the
operations of the projects; that is, in maintaining higher
water levels in the river, stored water raising the river
level. '

Could you characterize the quantities that might

be involved in this in relation to the total flows of the
Sacramento River? Would it be a lot or hardly any?
A I beliave it is relatively a very small amount. I
have not attempted to quantify it rexcept to, it 1is
partially an intuitive value, for example, the distance
between the levees at normal water surface is, say,, 300
feet, the levee water side slope is two to one, therefore,
if the water levels are raiéed by, say, two feet, then the
increment of widths, within the channel would be four feet
-- wait a minute, would be eight feet, which is a very
small proportion of the channel width, the water surface
width that would be there otherwise.

Similarly, I do not believe that an additional two
feet of head on the streambed would increase the
percolation through the streambed to any siénificant
degree considering the total amount of water that would be

flowing in the channel.
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Q And in relation to the accuracy of the gaging
stations on the Sacramento River, would this be something
that would make sense to take into account?

A In my opinion, no, when one considers all of the

measurements that enter into this complex calculation.

- Q Okay. Now, let's assume for this question that

there is incregsed use on riparian land on the Feather and
Sacramento Rivers due to flood control provided by the
State and Federal Prqjects, on riparian land adjacent to
the stream in the floodplain, is it fair in the
calculations you did to consider this use as part of the
use of natural flow?

A We have considered that all riparian lands have a
right to their share of the natural flow, and that
includes the riparian lands within the levee system.

MR, KLETZING: Okay, that's all I have.

MR. NOMELLINI: I am going to have about an hOuf
to two hours, is my estimate, of guestioning based on your
questioning here. It's seven minutes to twelve and I have
a luncheon meeting here in Sacramento at iwelve. Now, do
you want to take Harvey at 1:30 this afternoon or do you
want to schedule him for another time?

MR. KLETZING: He has come from out of town twice.

MR. NOMELLINI: Okay. Do you want to come at 1:307?
A We may as well finish if we possibiy can.

MR. NOMELLINI: Okay. Do you want me to start and
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use these seven minutes?

MR. KLETZING: Fine with me.
A May I correct some prior testimony?

MR. NOMELLINI: Sure, that's what we are going to
be dealing with.
A I am not referring to that.

MR. NOMELLINI: Oh.
B In prévicus testimony I mentioned another expert
retained by the State for the purpose of providing studies
of the value of water, and I mentioned John Teerink. I was
incorrect. Tﬁe proper name was Herbert Graydanus.

MR. NOMELLINI: Okay. Do you want to break for
lunch or go five minutes more? '

MR. KLETZING: Go ahead.

EXAMINATTION

BY MR. NOMELLINI:
0 Harvey, since your last deposition, have you had
any conversations with the attorneys for the Department of
Water Resources concerning your testimony?
A Yes, we discussed it.
O Let's take each one of those. When was your first
conversation with regard to testimony and with whom did
you have 1it? |
A Let me look at my diary.
Q I'm going to ask you about each conversation and

when and with whom, and the contents thereof, so let's
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start with the first one since your deposition.

A I discussed my deposition.with Mr. Kletzing on the
20th of October. We discussed the matter of quality versus
quantity, for one thing. We discussed the matter of use by
riparianylands within the levees. I believe those were the
two principal things, as I recall it.

Q Did he suggest that you change your testimony?

A No. He asked for clarification and as I indicated
previously in the interim, I had reviewed the various
statutes and other pertinent documents relative to the
obligation to recompense the State for the cost of the
project.

0 Referring to the discussion on the 29th of
October, was anyone elsevpresent during that discussion?

A No, there was no one else present.

Q So just you and Russ Kletzing?’

A That is correct.

O Do you recall what he said to you in that
conversation?

A He asked me, he did not say anything to me. He

asked questions.

Q And what questions did he ask?

A Very similar to the ones he has asked now.

0 and did you answer those questions?

A I tried to.

Q Those were the same gquestions basically you were
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asked during the course of the deposition; were they not?

A Some of them were.

Q All right. When was thé next conversation you had
concerning your deposition with the attorneys for the
Department of Water Resources?

A That was the only conversation.

Q pid you have any conversation with Mr. Kletzing
: s

today concerning testimony at this deposition?
A - No. Permit me to correct that. We did have some
discussion during lunch, but not prior to the deposition.

MR. BABER: You mean during the coffee break?

A Coffee break, excuse me.

MR. NOMELLINI: All right, why don't we break for
lunch and come back at 1:30.

(Noon recess)

MR. NOMELLINI: G Okay. We 1left off, Harvey,
talking about discussions you had with representatives of
the Department of Water Resources concerning  your
testimony at the prior deposition. You indicated you had a
meeting on October 29 or thereabouts with.Russ Kletzing,
and you had a discussion where be asked you a series of
questions about the testimony.

Do you recall specifically any of those questions
that he asked you at that time?

A Well, we discussed the gquestion of quantity versus

quality to some extent.
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Q Do you recall what his statements were?
A : No. I know what my'answers were, which are the
answers I have given you this morning.
Q You éave them to me this morning. What about the
answers you gave. Kletzing?
A The same idea. As I told you, I had in the interim
reviewed the statutes to refresh myself with those and
came to the conclusion that I have stated a couple of
times anyway.
Q ‘ Now what about the discussion today? You said you
had a conversation during the coffee break, I think you
said lunch bréak, but somebody corrected that, that it was
a coffee break. Whét was that conQersation? |
A Well, we discussed the situation of Byron-Bethany,
the fact that it is operated under appropriative rights,
relatively early, but nonetheless, appropriative rights.

Is that a pre~i914 right?

MR. BABER: VYes, it is. It is pre-1914, HMay of
1914, they did their posting.
A Got in in advance of December 19th.

MR. BABER: Before the commission act went into
effect.

MR. NOMELLINI: 0O Was anything else discussed
other than Byron-Bethany Irrigation District?

A Not that I recall.

0 So you had no discussion about your earlier
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A No, not this morning.

Q Okay. So the only thing this morning that had
anything to do with this deposition was Byron-Bethany?

A That is correct.

0O Now you said that Delta water users' rights were

limited to the water available from natural flows: is that

5

correct? '

A That is the riparian rights and the appropriative
rights.

Q Can you explain to me what you mean when you say

"natural flow" in that context?

A We have used it in the context,that it is the flow
that reaches the Delta without the effects of the
projects; in other words, there is a volume of water that
reaches the Delta which has its origin other than in thé

project waters stored in the reservoirs.

Q So that would be non-project flow?

A Yes.

Q That is what you define to be natural flow?

A As we have used it here, yes.

0 And that's the way your calculations are done?

A Yes,

0 You are sure of that?

A Reasonably S0, sir.

0 Okay, and you are representing to us that you a0
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know how your calculations are done?
Yes.
Do you do them yourself?

NO-

Lo R HER © 4

So return flow from PG&E projects, groundwater
pumpers, all of that is part of the natural flow?

A Not alj of it. Well, excuse me, I'm sorry. Let me
retract that. From the.sources that you just mentioned,
that is correct. Thé reﬁurn'flaws which we have attributed
to the use of project water in the Sacfamento valley is
classed as project water.

Q Okay, and you indicated that with regard to
Byron—-Bethany Irrigation Disfrict's aépropriative right,

that since there was inadequate natural flow in July and

August of 1977, there would be no water available for them

as well?
A That is right.
0] and you don't disagree -- well, okay. You would

agfee; would you not, that an appropriator can acquire
rights by prescription beyond the natural flow that we
could define as water naturally flowing through the river
system without the aid of sgmeaﬁe else's projects, be they
private or othetwise?

A Yes, I believe thai an upstream appropriator can
acquire a right by prescription against downstream

riparians by virtue of interference or as against some
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other appropriator as well.
Q All right. Now with regard to the flow of water in
the river and the impact of project operation on that flow
in terms of increasing the losses from the stream system,
either due to evaporation or seepage, you went through an
example of a 300-foot-wide streambed with two-to-one side
slopes, and you had concluded that an additional couple of
feet of water %ould not make very much difference. T think
you said it would be eight feet.
A Let me clarify what I said. I said that adding to
the corpus‘of the water in the channel, if it raised the
jevel two feet, that would increase the width of the water
surface by eight feet. ' |

Then, I also said that in my opinion adding two
feet to the water surface by virtue of project flow would
not increase the streambed percolation significantly in
comparison to the total overall Quantities that we are
dealing with here.
o] In other words, you are saying déalingrwith these
losses when we are talking about millions of acre-feet,
it's not too significant; is that what you are saying?
A 1 am saying that these losses in comparison with
the volume of water with which we are dealing flowing into
the Delta is a minor amount.
0 Okay. You would agree that the increase of two

feet in head could be a very significant change in seepage
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in a given channel under certain circumstances?

A Yes, I would agree under . certain circumstances
that would be correct.

Q ‘And in July and August some channels that are
tributary to the Delta would be dry under the extreme year
conditions; would they not?

A For those that are tributary to the Delta, we have
either includeé that where measured as a measured inflow,
or it is included or excluded as the case may be in the
unmeasured accretions and 6epietions.

0 okay. Let's look at the Feather River. Did the

- Feather River historically always have water in it in July

and August? !

A I haven't checked that. I would think that there
would be some water flowing in it even in a very dry year,
put I want to emphasize I have not checked the record for
that particular situation.

0 _ What would the range be, 1in your opinion, of
seepage from the Feather Rivervwithout project as compared
to with project in July and August?

A I have no idea of a specific value.

o Could it be as much as twice as much seepage with

the project as without it?

B I doubt very much it's of that magnitude.
0 if wé had to pick a range, what would we pick?
A This is pure speculation, but I would think that
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there might be some increase in seepage that possibly
might increase it by as much as 15 to 20 percent. I would.
point out that for the purposes of this study, we have a
measurement at the downstrean end of the Feather and we

have used that, so the seepage is automatically taken into

account.
Q How does seepage relate to the height of water?
5
A The greater the depth, the greater the hydraulic

head on the interface between the water in the stream and

t+he streambed.

Q Is it a direct relationship?
A Generally not. There is some slight increase.
O I mean, if you had twice the head, would you have

twice the‘seepage?

A in my opinion, no.

Q Do you know what the formula is for computing
seepage‘of that nature?

A 1t depends entirely on whether or not you have a
mound built up under the streambed.

Q Do you know whether or not we have such a mound
under the Feather River?

A ' No, I do not.

O Wwith regard to the changes in head condition -~
well, okay, you said with regard to the changes in
seepage, you thought the range might be 15 to 20 percent.

A In the Feather because so much of that is in high
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gravel beds.

Q If we did not have a mound built up under the
stream, what would the relationship be between the head
and seepage? |

A It would tend to be linear.

Q so if we had twice as much head, we wauld have

twice as much seepage?.
$
A The tendency would be in that direction.
0 Do you know what kind of water levels would be

expected in the upper reaches of the Feather River project

in July and August?

A No, I do not.

Q A couple of feet? !

A It might be below the major points of diversion.
0 And above the major points of diversion?

A 1t would probably be somewhat more.

0 Do you think with the project that we could get a

situation where we doubled the head?

A 1f there was sufficient water released from
storage.
o) How about July and August of 1977, do you know how

deep the water was?

A No, I do not.

Q My query is, it seems to me like it wouldn't be
hard to get 100 percent increase in seepage on that river

in July and August, and I'm just trying to -- you said 15
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A

to 20 percent, and I just wondered why that's the range if
that's really -~

A It's purely speculative and> hbased on some
experience elsewhaere. I have made no calcuations in that
regard. As I said, we do use a gaging station neathhe
mouth of the Feather and we have used that as the measure
to correct for, storage releases and evaporation. They have
used that ccr;écted value as the natural flow reaching the
Sacramento River.

0 Don't you wuse the individual reacheé of the
Feather River to determine what the project flows impact
is on the river system? |

A Yes, because we have to take inflows into account.
We have to use reaches.

Q But you are saying the seepage in the Feather:
River above Nicolaus is of really no relevance in Fhis
calculation?

A My statement was that we have used the recofded
flow near Nicoclaus.

0 Okay. If you iny have the recérded flow at
Nicolaus, what did you do to determine how much of that is
project flow versus non-project flow unless you examine
the rest of the stream upstream of that?

A We have attempted to track the water downstream
from Oroville and from the return from Thermalito

Afterbay, track that downstream by reach where we had
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gaging stations and taken the unmeasured accretions and
depletions by each reach.

Q Well, the unmeasured accretions and depletions,
all that is is the difference of the number of what the
measurement is.

A ' That is correct, but it accounts for the water
that ultimate?y " reached the Sacramento River via the
Feather in July and August.

Q So it is relevant in the determination of what 1is
prejectiflow at Nicolaus?

A In our opinion, it would not have been nacessary
to make that type of adjustment.

0] Because the higher it is the bétter it is in terms
of the amount of project flow reaching Nicolaus: right?

A Would you -~

Q I mean, isn't it an advantage to your clients to
have greater amounts of project flow reaching Nicolaus on
the Feather River? |

A We have not approached it in that fashion, Mr.
Nomellini.

Q I am not sure you can assure me of that in any
meaningful way.

A Well, I can't, éxcept to tell you that is my
opinion and my intent.

Q Okay. But you didn't do the seepage or unmeasured

accretion calculations on the stream?
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A No, these calculations have been done by the
department staff and I reviewed them to make sure the
methodology is satisfactory to me.

Q And you don't think the project increased seepage

in July and August of 1977 by an amount in the Feather

River over 20 percent?

A That is my considered opinion based upon what I
know now. .

Q And you wouldn't’have to make any calculations to
support. that?

A I don't believe it necessary.

Q "~ All right. Now with regar& to evaporative losses
from the river, you said increasing eight feet at the side
of a 300-foot channel, that was your example, you said
that wouldn't be very significant.

A That's an increase in surface area under that
hypothetical exa&ple of, 1 said, 2.7 percent.

Q Now, let's get down at the bottom of this river
where we end up with no flow versus two feet of flow, that
would be a significant difference; wouldn't'it?

A Yes, that could be.

Q So, if the water in the river would have otherwise
had a trickle in it or been dry, it would make one heck of
a difference? |

A Under that extreme example, that is correct.

QO And that stream channel could range anywhere from
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a 300-percent increase to 300 times as much; could it not?
A I will say it could be under that extreme
gondition, it could Be a significant amount.
0] If we had a dry stream that was 300 feet wide, it
was dry, and then we put water across 300 feet,
evaporative losses could be 300 times ,;

MR. KLETZING: Which one of these streams Was dry,
the Sacramento 'or the Feather?

MR. NOMELLINI: I am going to ask that next.
Q Am I right conceptually?
A Yes, except under those extreme conditions the
prébabilities are that the water would be confined to a
relqtively small portion of the streambed. It would not be

spread over the whole thing.

Q So that with project operations, it would still
be -~
A With any releases with which we are concerned

here, I think it would still be relatively confined.

Q Unless we had a real flat channel with a slight
gradient?

A Yes.

Q Like we have downstream from Oroville Dam?

A Well, it could be. It would be a highly variable

situation.

Q But you don't want to say it could be 300 times as

much?
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A No, I don't want to speculate that it could be
that much.

Q But it could be?

A It could be significant uﬁder extreme flow

conditions,

0] ‘ Now is it your opinion that it's highly unlikely
that the Feath?r River downstream of Oroville Dam would
have been dry during July and August of a critical year?

A I can't speculate on that on the basis of what I
know - now. I would want to examine the historical
streamflow records and reconstruct. the inflow to the
resefvoir and see what that would have been.

0] Okay. How about on the American River, do vyou
think ‘the American River was ever dry in a critical vyear
during July and Augu§t?

A I know of no recérds that shows it was dry. I
think that before Folsom was placed in operation there
were times when the flow was as low as 250 second-feet in

the American. I know of no record where it was dry.

0 How about in the vicinity of Yuba City?
A I do not know.
0 Okay. You  indicated that  accuracy of  the

measurement of the Sacramento flow is not significant when
one considers all of the measurements. What did you mean

by that?

A I do not recall having made that particular
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statement.

MR.VKLETZING: Neither do I.

A Would you repeat your question?

MR. NOMELLINI: Q Yes. I was asking what you
meant when you say the accuracy of measurements of the
Sacramento River flow was not significant when one
considers all of the measurements?

MR. KLéTZING: I think you wrote something down
wrong.

MR. NOMELLINI: What do you think his statement
was?

MR. KLETZING: I don't know, but I don't think it
was that. It may have been that the amount of evaporation
and seepage was small then in relation to all of the
measurements. I don’t‘know.

A I believe I did make that statement that Mr.
Kletzing just said.

MR.'NOMELLXNI: Q0 Okay, but you do pelieve then
that the accuracy of the measurements of the Sacramento
River flow is very important?

A Well, those measurements as recorded by the 'USGS

are the bases, fundamental bases for the entire study.

Q And those measureménts are very important?

A very.

Q and what would the range of accuracy be of those
measureménts?
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A As I recall from the USGS records, and I have the
USGS reports with me and I can look'it up if you wish, the
classification that the USGS gives for the accuracy of
those particular stream-gaging stations --

Q Okay, can you give it to me for the Sacramento at
some point near the Delta?

A This is the Sacramento River below Wilkins Slough
near Grimes, agd the record is excellent, which would wean
in USGS terminology plus or minus five pércent.

0 Okay. What about somewhere down near Sacramento,
what would that measurement‘be?

A Sacramento at Sacramento, the record is good above

8,000 cubic feet per second and fair below.

Q Do you know what the flows were in July and August
of 197772
A The mean flow in July at Sacramento is given as

8,248 second-feet, and for August it is 7,687.

Q Okay, so good would be what range?
A aAbove 8,000,
Q I mean what percentage accuracy‘ is the good

rating? You said excellent was five.

A Good, I think that classification is plus or minus
ten percent.

Q What about fair?

A Fair is plus or minus 15 percent, I think that's

right. The USGS has a classification system, if I can find
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it. In the USGS terminology excellent means that about 95
percent of the daily discharge§ are within five percent;
good means within ten percent; and fair means within 15
percent. Then they have a further classification of poor,
which means that the daily discharges are of less than
fair accuracy.

Q .Okayﬂ Then if the inflow into the Delta for the
month of Augus; were within 15 percent on the Sacramento
River, what do you think the overall acduracy of this
analysis that you have reviewed by the department is in
view of the 15 percent possibility on just the Sacramento
River flow alone?

A Yoﬁ mean on the basis of those'calculations or the
overall analysis?

Q The overail analysis has got a lot of other
calculations in it that have substantial variance; do they
not?

A " 1 believe I quoted in my opinion in the prior
deposition and I am not sure what I said at that time, but
my opinion as of the moment, which may 5r may not be
exactly the same as I quoted before, is that we are
probably dealing overall considering all of  the
measurements that enter into the calculation, probably
plus or minus 15 percent.

O How can you say that focusing in on August now,

where we have a 15-percent possible variance in the
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measurement of the river flow alone?

A That's very close to being == that's only a little
ways below what they classify as good.

Q Wouldn't we, in terms of evaluating the accuracy
of the study, wouldn't we have to think of the possibility
that there is a 15-percent error here and in some other
calculations there is 3‘15~percent~error? Wouldn't they
compound? Woulén't they add up?

A Not necessarily. Any one of them is plus or mipus.
0 I mean in terms of setting a range of the
accuracy, wouldn't we have, you know, a compounding of
these numbers?

A You might have a compounding under certain
circumstanées; nonetheless, where you had a good record
you would weight that in proportion to the contribution
from thatvséurce and where you had an excellent record you
would weight that in accordance with the contribution.

Q The Sacramento River 1is a fairly significant
source to the Delta in July and August of a critical year;

is it not?

A That is correct.
6] So we would weight that fairly high?
A Well, certainly, because that's where the major

portion of the flow is.
Q Okay. So, if we had a 1l5-percent possible error in

the measurement of the Sacramento River and we had, let's
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say, a 60-percent posgible error in the evapotranspiration
crop figure for, let's say, corn in August of 1977,
wouldn't we in analyzing the accuracy of the determination
of the damage resulting from' that watering of the corn

have to consider that those two errors do add?

A No, I don't believe they would add necessarily
because one at any given time might be plus and the other
one might be minus; Thése are the limits within which 35
percent of the measurements fall, from the mean five
percent plus, from the mean five percent minus.
Ninety-five percent of the measurements fall within that
range.

Q | So why wouldn't we have a range that runs from
zero to 15 percent for error of the Sacramento River flow?
Wouldn't that be a fair way to characterize that?

A » No, using the terminology of the USGS, as I said,
here»is the mean, here is a difference of five percent
minutes, less a difference of five peicent plus, and the
records fall within that range. That does not mean that
every measurement of the Sacramento River at Sacramento is
necessarily five percent off t+he mean. That isn't the way
it is recorded.

Q Does that mean it could be off completely: in
other words, both the extreme, the mean and the other are
all wrong?

A No.

I
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0 How do vyou check the measurements of the
Sacramento River?

A There are several methods of checking that. There
is a measurement -- the USGS measures it together with the
Depar£ment of Water Resources.

0 How do we know it's right? How do you check it?

A ‘ There is no good absolute way of checking
streamflow medsureménts.

0 So this variable that you gave us is simply an
expression of the :eiationship of the readings to fhe
mean?

A . Yes, it falls within that range. Ninety-five
percent of the measurements fall within that range. Some
of them might be exactly on the mean, and it's‘possible.

Q What daes}that tell1us about the accuracy of the
measurements? You have convinced me, I think, that it
doesn't tell wus anything about the ‘accuracy of the
measurements, |

A No, it doesn't.

0 So we don't know whether the measurement is
accurate or not because there's no other way of checking
it?

).} We do know that the USGS in their measurements and
the department use the best techniques and methodolagies
that are available for that particular purpose at this

particular time.
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Q Do you know whether they, in fact, employed that
methodology in July and August in'1977?

A No, I do not.

o) Do they use a physical measuring device of some

kind in connection with their measurements?

A Yes.
Q Do you:.know what they use?
A As far as I know, they are still using the old

current meter,

Q- You mean the old worn-ocut current meter?

A I used the "old" in the sense that current meters
of that type havé been used for hany many years.,

Q You mean propeller current mete;s?

A Yes, in effect, except it doesn't look like a
propeller. It's activated by cups on a wheel rotating on a
vertical axis.

0 And those things work perfectly all the time ~-

according to Russ, he's your reliable source, I imagine,

on that subject?

A They work all right if they are calibrated
regularly,
0 And if they are not, what kind of error can we get

involved in?
A Well, you can get involved in substantial crror if
the cups are bent or the vertical shafts are bent, or

something of that nature, but I do believe that the USGS
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uses the best technology there is available.
Q And like other humans they,are always perfect in
everything they do all the time; right?
MR. KLETZING: You didn't go around and bend those

cups; did you, Dan?

| MR. NOMELLINI: I, frankly, didn't know what to
bend until just a minuté ago.
A The cﬁp§ can be bent.

VMR. NOMELLINI: Q How do we know that wasn't the
case here? You are very comfortable relying on this
énformation?

A Well, let me answer in this way, and I do not
intend to be facetious, those are the records we have.
Q For better or for worse. I agree there's some
merits using the only records we have. I understand that.
I know that may be the only thing.

Has any attempt been made by you to determine the
reliability of that particular record?
A No, but as I say, the USGS is the expert’in the
world on that sort of thing. My own inclinaéion is to rely
on those records.
0 For lack of a better, I may very well rely on
them, too, but that still doesn't say that they are
accurate and, therefore, the range of five percent, ten
percent, fifteen percent really didn't help us at all in

determining the accuracy of this analysis.
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A No, it really doesn't.
0 Okay.
A It's just a measure of the possible distribution

of measures.
Q Okay. Now let's go back to the question I think I
asked you before, what do you think the range of accuracy

is of measurements of the Sacramentc River flow?

A At Sacramento?
Qo - Yes, at Sacramento.
A Knowing the characteristics of +the flow at

Sacramento, I would say that the accuracy is within 15
percent.

(0] Do you know whether or not a éross“section at the
gaging station is taken each time there's a measurement?
A In effect, yes, because the depths of water at the
point where the velocity is measured is also measured at
the time.

o How was this test actually conducted? Is it from a
cable or bglt, or what do they do in the Sagramento River,
and I am talking about at Sacramento in July and August.

A The water stage recorder 1is located on the left
bank a thousand feet upstream from the I Street Bridge and
half a mile downstream from the American River. To answer
your question, there are two measurements made. Number one
is the height of the water, the water stage which is

recorded on a water-stage recorder, and periodically there
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are actual measurements of the discharge made with a
current meter, and that is felated.to the water stage at
that time, so that the net result of all of the
measurements and the stage is that you get a rating curve.
Q A Okay. Let's say we take August of 1977, and we
want the flow. We have got the average flow for the month.

Were there instantaneous daily flows measured at

®

Saéramento?l

A ' I do not believe so. It would not be normal
practice. |

Q So how often would they go out and measure during

the course of this month to determine this monthly flow?
A They might not measure it -at all during that
particular month, that is the actual n@asurement of the

quantity of water passing. I do not know whether they do

or not.
0 You are our expert, you know.
A Well, I have not gone to the USGS and gone through

the records of their measurements, which is the only wéy

you could tell.

g Is there - a continuous recorder at the gaging
station?

A Yes.

0 So the elevation would be recorded continucusly?
A That is correct.

0 And you don't know how often they go out there
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with a flow meter?
A I am just going to look to see how many

measurements they made during the year.

Q At that Sacramento station?

A Yes.

Q Okay.

A In th%s particular report they do not include the

number of actuél streamflow measurements that were made.

Q All right, and that report is what -- USGS Survey
Water Data Report CA77-4?

A Yes.

0 “ a1l right. I gather then that my concern for
change in channel configuration is a r;alistic concern; is
it not?

A I do not know how much the channel changes at the
I Street Bridge. In some high velocity streams there may
be a substantial change during high flows, but I do not
know. |

0 We would have to know how often thgy have checked
that at that station to really get an idea as to what that
possible variance would be; would we not?

A Yes., You would have to procure the actual
streamflow measurement records made by the USGS and the
data that were actually physically measured, and that
would be the depth of the water at points across the

channel and the velocity at those points.
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Q The thing that was crossing my mind is I know
there's significant boating traffic, in July and August on
tha ‘Sacramento River and physically how they would do this
dn‘a regular basis without substantial interference in the
process was something that had me baffled, and I know you
engineers are very ingenious in your methods. However, how
do you think. they did it if they did do it in those
months? ’

A As I recall, the actual measurement point by point
is made at the I Street Bridge and, of course, if the
hydrographers see a boat approaching, they pull their
current meter up and get out of the way. Where the
measurements are made from an overheéd cable, it gets a
little more difficult. |

Q Okay. With regard to the questions of quantity
versus quality, I believe you answered in response to
Les's questions after he ‘said éo put quality aside; in
other words, quality is not a factor, did the project

provide water to Delta water users in July and August of

19772
A In our opinion, and based upon our analysis, yes.
Q Okay, but based on your analysis, would wet water

have been there anyway?
A Wet water would have beem there anyway, as we have
defined wet water.

Q Okay. So, if we just strike water quality, let's
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forget about water quality, the farmer in the Delta in
July and August of 1977 would have had water regardless of
the project?

A He could have pumped wet water.

Q Okay. And with the project you are saying he had a
mixture of water?

A That is right.

Q Probably. You don't‘know, in fact, that farmer A
actually had a mixted quantity of water; do you?

A Based upon our analysis there was a mixture of
project water and wet water throughout the Delta.

0 Okay, but if we ignore water quality, isn't
project water wet water? We are igﬁoring water gquality
now. Russ said ignore water quality and I think he
confused you in his questioning is why I am pursuing this
in detail. He says to ignore water quality. Isn't the
project water wet water?

A The only way I can answer that, Mr. Nomellini, is
to say that there weré substantial gquantities of project
water flowing into the Delta and, in our opinion, the
water that was, in fact, diverted and used was a mixture
of what we have termed natural flow and project water
during July and August,

Q Okay. With the assumption that4we are ignoring
water quality, isn't project water just wet water?

A I'm not sure I understand your question.
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Q Okay. If we are going to ignore water quality as a
basis for a hypothetical question, is project water wet
water? The term "wet wafer“ came from you, Harvey. You
said the Delta would have wet water without the projects.

A That 1is correct.

Q Okay, wet water.
A There .would have been water in the channels.
Q All right. Now with the projects operating, but

ignoring water quality --

A There would be water in the tunnels.
0] Okay, but it wouldn't be wet water?
A Not as we have been using that term.
Q Okay. Ignoring water quality, tell me the

difference between project water and wet water.

A As I have used the term "wet water,” for lack of a
water ﬂerm,, that refers to water which occurs in the
channels absent any contributiomn from the projects.

Q Okay. If we ignore water quality, there wouldn't
be any quality difference between project water and wet
water; would there? .

A That is correct. If you completely ignore any
a8peét of quality, water in that case would be water.

Q Okay, we are jﬁst playing the logical game here.
We are going to ignore water quality. Russ wanted you to
ignore Qater guality earlier and I want you to ignore

water quality now. If we ignore water quality, what
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benefit is derived By a Delta farmer from pumping wet
water versus project water?

A Under the hypothesis that has been stated where we
are ignoring any aspect of quality, any value to quality
whatsoever, then water is water.

0 So, if we ignore water quality, there is no issue
of damage in this particular case in July and August of
1877; is ther;?

A Under the assumption that has been made here, that
quality is of no | concern whatsocever, under  that
assumption, logically I would have to agree with you.

0 Okay. So you were right earlier when I asked you
the question, is it not true that gqguantity only enters the
picture for this particular case in July and August of
1877 considering the quality changes as the result of
project flows that quantity only enters the picture as a
method of calculation of the damage.

A 'I think that is correct.

0O Now with regard to incidental benefit from water
released for other purposes, do you believé that there is
an obligation for payment for the incidental benefits
received from State Water Project releases to enhance fish
and wildlife, if without that release the water would have
been of usable quality anyway?

B I'm not sure that I can answer that question

categorically. May I go back and give my rationale again
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on this whole problem?

Q - Sure. And if you need explanation, the first time
we took your deposition you felt that incidental benefit
from a release for some other purpose was not compensable
in any respect, and that is a non-reimbursable type of
thing.

Then you came back and today you have qualified
that and I tﬁéught what you are saying is that if it makes
the difference between usability of water quality to the
farmer in the Deité, then maybe thefe should be some kind
of compensation.

All I am trying to do is understand your testimony
because to me it sounds like there has been a change. I'm
not sure if there is. I just want to understand what you

are saying.

A Well, may I go back a little bit?
0] Yes.
A What I said was subsequent to the 23rd of

September, based upon the discussion at that time I felt
it necessary to go back and review the statutes and all of
the policies that have led up to this, and there are a
number of them.

O Okay, what did you review specifically?

A I reviewed the Central Valley Project Act.

0 In the Water Code?
A

In the Water Code. There is a provision there
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which requires the department to establish rates for water
and power which will repay the project. There's the
Davis-Dolwig Act which says that fish and wildlife
enhancement, not mitigation, not protection, but
enhancement, those allocated to that, those allccated to
recreation are to be non-reimbursable, and the Delta
Protection Act, all of which are in effect imbedded in the
state wwater écntracts for water, and those contracts were
approved by the courts in the Marquardt case before bonds
could be issued.

Now, getting back to what I envision as a basis on
which payment would be requested, in the first place the
Delta lands including Byron-Bethany laﬁds, have some basic
rights. The riparians have a right to their allocated
share of the natural flow, then that goes to the
appropriatcps. That fixes the amount to which they have an
inherent right, the aggregate being the natural flow that
comes in plus a portion of that for the Delta outflow.

Now over and above that, there could be this case:
Here 1is Oroville, here is the Delta ogtflow, water is
released. We will draw two arrows and say I am going to
use blue and green water for this. Blue water will be
released down and flow out in order to maintain salinity
control. Primarily here we are talking about fish and
wildlife and recreation.

Green water will be released in addition to that
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in order té meet the needs of the Delta lands over and
above what they have a basic right to in the natural flow.
And the fact that in thbse cases where additional
water has to be released to flow down for diversion by the
Delta lands, in my opinion, that reimbursable.
Q With regard to the blue water, let's assume we
have a diverter right on the Sacramento River on the route
to the ocean..Adding the blue water into the green water
and the water that was theré before, the wet water, that,
in effect, dilutes whatever salt would be there; does it
not?
A Well, we are in this case concerned with the salt
that could migratg upwards through Suisun Bay.
Q> Okay. Well, I mean, isn't there an improvement in
the water quality that is related to the blue water for
the quy thatvis on the Sacramento River?
A The improvement in quality for anybody along the
Sacramento, I think is very small because that is
excellent water to start with.
0 Okay, let's say it's small. Theré would be no
obligation for compensation in that particular case; would

there, for the blue water?

A No, because he is diverting under his riparian
right.
8] Okay. If the difference was large, he wouldn't

have to compensate‘fof the blue water; would he?
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A That would be a matter of policy.

Q Let's assume it's large, but it doesn't make any
difference in terms of usability of the water.

A That improvement and quality has no beneficial

effect on it.

Q I am asking you.

A It might not. I doubt that it would --

0 Let's'assume it has a beneficial impact.

A It if increases the productivity, then I think

there should be some éffgrt made to get some compensation
for it.

Q Even though it was released for whét the
legislature said was a non-reimbursable function.

A Remember, I said for the purposes of illustration

T used two colors of water, one which was released

'specifically for the benefit of enhancement of fish and

wildlife.

) | That's the blue water.

A The green water comes out of the outlet from
Oroville, flows on down and is diverted ~-- maybe some of

it is diverted along the river.

Q Did you make any analysis of whether or not crop
production in the Delta area in July and August of 1877 by
these defendants was improved because of the release of
State Water Project water?

A I have not because that was the function of Dr.
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Henderson.

Q But you do think that's a relevant consideration,
I gather?
A I think any benefit that is over and above that to

which they are entitled under their riparian rights or

their appropriative rights -~ and this is a personal

opinion, let me interject ~- should be compensable.

0O '~ Just 1like when I come over and pave your front
lawn.

A Well, I do not agree that those two situations are

quite comparable.

0] The difference being what?

A The difference being primarily that the statutes
require repayment for the project. ‘

o If there was a statute that sais when I come over

and pave your yard, you have to pay me?

A If there were such a statute --
Q Then you would think that's fine?
A I might object to it during the course of the

passage of the act.

0 But you think that would be fine once it's passed?
.\ If that's what the statute says, then we
supposedly would have to live up to it.

Q End your legal wisdom would not see any
caﬁstiﬁutional difficulty with that type of approach?

A There might be.
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Q So you naw‘ have changed your testimony bn
incidental benefit from water released specifically for
some other purpose to one as saying, yes, you have to pay
for water if you get a benefit out of it?

A In my opinion, that is correct.

Q So it doesn't make any difference whether it is
released for another purpose of specifically for your
purpose in yodr new opinion?

A That's correct.

0 And it doesn't make any difference whether it was

released for non-reimbursable function; right?

A Right.

Q So you and Russ Kletzing afe now birds of a
feather.

A I'm not sure that Mr. Kletzing would like that
analogy.

MR. KLETZING: I think he haé you almost convinced
of thét.

MR. NOMELLINI: He has me convinced he spent some
time talking to you and changed his testimony based on it.
A May I assure you that my conciusion on this is
arrived by myself from an aﬁalysis of the history of the
statutes and all of the policies that have  been
implemented, some of which I formulated myself.

MR, NOMELLINI: Okay. Well, you did have an

entirely different position when we took your deposition
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which was also under ‘oath and which was done, you know, in
an atmosphere where Mr. Kletzing questioned you at that
time on this very same subject. Okay.

So there's no difference between blue water and
green water?
A Well, it all comes out of the same --
Q I mean, in your example you pay for blue water and
you pay for g%een water, and the question is whether or
not you benefited from'it.
A The qguestion is does the State and/or the Bureau,
as the case may be, have to release excess water to
satisfy the demands of the Délta water users which are
greater than their basic rights to the,natural flow.
Q Okay. They don't use any more water than they
would otherwise use provided the water was usable in the
first place; do they?
A Well, I think -~
0] Letls --

MR. KLETZING: Let him answer the question.

MR. NOMELLINI: Q Okay, go ahead.
A I think that if the water in the channels were éf
usable quality that there would be enough in the channels
to satisfy the riparian rights and the appropriative
rights and, therefore, they would not need any project
water.

0 And they shouldn't have to pay then?
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A If that's the case.
0 Okay. Now let's analyze that. The water is usable.
They have enough to safisfy their quantity needs and
gquality needs. It's usable.
A Okay.
Q And you are saying they don't use any more water
just because the quality is improved.
A I wo&ld say that if there had been a quality
improvement so that that water be;ame more valuable by
reason of increased crop production or some other reason,
then ideally and 1logically, those particular farmers
should pay for those benefits received.
Q Even though they don't use any’more water?
A If +the quality is significantly improved andv
results in greater crop production than if it hadn’'t been
improved, then ideally and logically they should
compensate the State for it, or the Bureau, as the case
may be. |

In this case, however, the Bureau has not asked
for compensation.
0] Well, any time the State wants to improve that
quality, those people ought to pay for it; is that what
you are saying?
A I doubt very much the State will ever be in the
position of releasing water more or less on its own

initiative solely to improve quality for the Delta so long

BBID Exh. 294




Vit

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19 |

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

93

Y

as the water is usable otherwise, and there was no threat
of saline water intrusion. |

Q What difference does that make if the farmer
benefits? If he gets greater production, what difference
does it make what the threat of salinity intrusion is?

A It doesn't.

Q So it. doesn't make any difference. So any time
there is a quélity improvement, if that's of some benefit
to the farmer, then he ought to pay for it?

A As I interpret the agreements which were reached
with the North Delta ﬁater Agency, that, in effect, is
Qhat is what they are paying for, is a better quality of
water. '

Q Well, that has a limit. They are paying for a
minimum water quality; aren't they? |

A They are paying' a fixed fee per acre as I
understand it, because the State has guaranteed to release
sufficient water at that time so that the chloride
concentration at Emmaton would not exceed 14000 milligrams
per liter. |

O What happens if it is a lot better than that? Do
they pay more money? Let's say it gets all the way down
because of releases from the State down to 500 parts per
million at Emmaton, are they going to pay more money under
your understanding?

A 1f that were to happen, as I said, logically that
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would be the case. From a practical standpoint, I don't
believe the State will ever release more water than is
necessary to meet the water quality objectives that have
been established according to law.

Q Well, they might voluntarily want to improve their
water quality at the pumps and maybe the water quality
standards are going to be lower than that.

A May I‘ ask, what was the second part of that
statement that you jusﬁ made?

Q That the water quality standards might be lower
than they want to provide at their pumps.

A That's probably the case, they will be, yes.

Q So I am just giving you an example of how they
would make releases higher than water quality standards.

A There's a practical reason why this may well never
been done because it will be extremely difficult to
administer. |

Q Do you think it is okay in this particular case?

A We are basing this, as I said, upon our estimate
of the amount of additional water which waé placed in the
Delta and which was diverted and used by the Delta water
users  over énd above their basic riparian and
apprapriétive rights as to the natural flow.

0 Which is based on the assumption that the‘quality
would have been unusable --

A That's our opinion.

BBID Exh. 294




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

i7

18

18

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

35

RS

Q -~ in the absence of project water.
A That's our opinion that 4t would be wunusable
starting about in June,’ maybe a little earlier and
continuing through July and August. |
Q Okay. Then you think that water quality benefits
should be compensated so long as it produces a benefit in
terms of profit or greater yield to the farmer except
where it is i;possible to do so, like in the North Delta
Water Agency?
A I believe that there is a feasodable/ equitable
manner for the Delta Qater users to compensate the State
and I will limit this to the State at the moment, for the
benefits that they have received, and T think following up
on the type of analysis that we have made for this case
where we have attempted to quantify the amount of project
water that flowed into the pDelta and was diverted, ap‘
amount in excess of the basic right to the natural flow,
is the lcgical’equitable way of getting at it, and as I
interpret what was done with respect to the North Delta
Wwater Agency, that, in essence, is the‘ way that was
approached there.

MR. KLETZING: Are we going to get to Dwight
Russell this afternoon?

MR. NOMELLINI: I don't know.

MR. KLETZING: Is Jerry Orlob coming?

MR. WHITRIDGE: He is going to be here about
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three.

MR. NOMELLINI: @ Would you agree then that all
improvement of water quality need not be compensated for?
A In equity, that would be true. Let's assume that
the water in the Delta channels contained 100 milligrams
per liter of chlorides, just to use that one parameter,
there is no point in increasing that. That's as_good as
vou need for a%y reasonable use. So there has to be limits
on this.

Qr So, if we improved it from 100 to 60-parts—per-

million chlorides --

A I don't believe --
e There shouldn't be any compensation?
A I don't believe that that degree of increase under

those czrcumstances would convey any partlcular benefit.

Q Okay. What about, let's say the Contra Costa Water
District, which services industry and urban areas, what
kind of parameters are we going to go put on that for
compensation to the State for water gquality improvement?

A None. We have not at any time cansidered that the
fe&eral contractors would be obligated to the State.

0 Why not?

A They are the federal contractors, of which Contra
Costa Water District is one and they are paying for the

federal Central Valley Project, the contractors plus the

power users.
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Q But that shouldn't make any difference. They are
paying for the water just like the farmer in the Delta
bought his riparian land and has an entitlement to water.
Now somebody is putting water in there that improves that
water quality.

A Under a particular set of circumstances in July
and Augqust of 1977.

0 Well, ’okay. We are talking equity now. We are
talking about improving water quality that benefits them,
and for that industry over there I cculd‘imagine that 60
parts per million could make a big difference choridewise
in one of those industrial processes.

A Yes. | !

Q So they ought to pay for their respective benefits
under this?

A They are paying for water and there is/part of
tha£ payment that goes for paying for the federal Central
vValley Project costs.

Q Yes, but that's only part, that's only 75 percent
of the water in the Delta. That doesn't pay for the other

25 percent; right? This is what you have told us.

A That's very true.
0 So they ought to pay Kletzing the 25 percent?
A Your people are not being asked --

MR. KLETZING: I am not providing them any water.

T don't understand why they would pay me.
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MR. NOMELLINI: Because you improved their water
quality and they would not have been able to divert to
make that paper, RusS.

MR. KLETZING: You are equating --

MR. NOMELLINI: Without the improvement in quality
that you gave them.

MR. KLETZING: Are you equating me with the State?
I only —-- only’Lauis V can say that, not I.

MR.. NOMELLINI: Well, I view you in almost the
same 1light. Why wouldn't they pay for ‘the benefits under
your great equitable scheme of things? They only
contracted with the federal govérnment. They are probably
oniy paying ten oOr twelve dollars 'an acre-foot. The
alleged value here is $60. They are getting a real
windfall and they are getting significant benefit. Why
shouldn't they pay the State?

A Then, on that rationale, the Arvin-Edison Water
Storage District in Kern County should pay tﬁe\Stateﬁ

MR. KLETZING: Wasn't the quality at Antioch where
they dilute something like 2,000 parts per’chloride or so?
1 mean, you know, we are in kind of a never—never Yand.

y:Y Well, may I comment on this?

MR, NOMELLINI: After your testimony, I would be
interested in asking Kletzing questions on this
never-never land because I think that's where he has this

entire lawsuit, but the distinction I don't understand.
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Why should not Contrg Costa Water District pay.the State
for the benefit they get from this so-called 25 percent?
A I have to be careful not to argue with you.

MR. NOMELLINI: 0 You can argue with me. I am
easy to argue with.
A You who alsoc benefit from the federal Central
Valley Projecttare not being asked to pay for the federal
Cental Valley 'Project.
0 : That is right.
A As a practical matter of getting this, the water
usérs under each project, if they pay fér that project,
then it's about as equitable and rational an approach as

you can get. ;

Q I would much rather pay $4 than $60.
A I can't respond to that.
0 As long as something is paid to somebody, that's

okay with you?

A That is correct. I do not belie?e‘from the stand-
point of a water manager overall that the presentv
situation is not equitable, but the Bureau has elected not
to seek compenéation for such water as they may use from

their storage from the benefit of the Delta.

0 Some of us believe that there's some legal basis
to that.
A The legal basis -- well, forgive me, I'm sorry,

under the circumstances I have no basis for making a legal
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statement.

Q Now let's assume that the K Delta is entitled to

receive the water qualityqb@nefit from the federal project
without compensatiohﬁ Let's assume that's our entitlement
and that is similar; is it not, to contra Costa Water
District being entitled to receive federal water for the
modest payment that they make. It's an entitiement; is it
not, boeth aré‘entitled to have water quality benefits from
the federal government.

A If it weré_éorrect, and I have no basis for saying
that that assumption is correct, if it weré correct, then
by statute and policy of the Secretary of Interior,
subject, of coﬁrse,_to review and -- '

0] The Supreme Court of the United States.

A And whatever, if there were a policy on a sound
legal basis that the Bureau would provide its contractors,

including the share of water for fish and wildlife

enhancement and other uses without compensation, then --

] It would be the same thing?
A Yes.
o So this whole question of whether or not the Delta

water users in July and August of 1977 should pay the
State of California anything depends upon whether or not
the federal government's obligation to provide salinity
control in the Delta is non-reimbursable?

A I don't believe, Mr. Nomellini, that I said that.
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Q Okay. Let's go through it again. Assuming that the

_federal government was obligated to provide the Delta

water users with usable water quality in july and August
of 1977 without compensation due to some law, subject to
review of the highest court in the nation, let's assume
that they have adjudicated that as a fact, that there is
no obligation‘for reimbursement to the federal government,
the Delta is entitled to that water quality.

Under those circumstances, 'do you think Delta

water users should have to compensate .the State?

9]

A If your assumption were, in fact --
Q Let's assume it is, in fact, correct.
A aAll right. On that assumption, then I think there

would be a question.

Q A question?
A Yes.
¢ You are not sure? Why can't you say the same thing

like for Contra Costa Water District? You felt very
comfortable that they shouldn't have to do it, but under
my hypothetical, which I even had the Supreme Court of the
United States blessing it for you -—-

MR. KLETZING: But they are not parallel.

MR. NOMELLINI: I will get your testimony at the
next deposition when we swear you in, Russ, and I
particularly want to ask you about certain conversations.

A There's a certain degree of logic in your
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,presumptian under the conditions you have assumed.

MR. KLETZING: But you even said that Contra Costa
Water District pays for their water. The Delta doesn't.

MR. NOMELLINI: They pay taxes.

MR. KLETZING: How are they at all comparable? You
say it is modest payment. That may be your opinion. The
district doesn't think it is so modest.

L]

MR. NOMELLINI:  What difference does it make if it

has got to be provided by law? People on welfare get money

from the government, You know.

MR. KLETZING: Tﬁis is ridiculous.

EXAMINATION

BY MR. WHITRIDGE: !
0] I wanted to just go back to one thing. I think you
said Jjust a litﬁle while ago in talking about the
situation that if water became more valuable and results
inl greater Crop production, then the farmers should
compensate the State for it even if it is usable before
that and he diverts no more water; is that correct?
A 1 said ideally that should be the case. As I
recall it, I did qualify it because, as I said
subsequently, it would be very difficult to quantify that.
As a practical matter of trying to seek compensation on
that, it would be a little on the difficult side.

Q If that were the case, wouldn't it be more logical

to measurement payment by the amount of crop improvement
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BY MR. BABER:

N

than by the amount of water diverted, if they didn't
divert any more water than they otherwise would?
A Under the assumption you stated where the water in
the adjacent channel available for diversion was still
within usable limits, yes.
Q Because in that case, I assume the benefit is not
in having more water, but in having better production.
A Riqht: |
Q ~ You are paying for benefits and that's how you
have to measure your benefits?
A That is correct.
EXAMINATTION
)

Q Harvey, just a couple of questions on a 1little
different concept. The lawsuit, as I loock at it now, is
the State seeks to recover money for actually some kind of
a contract that they have with the federal government, the
COA, as opposed to the QUantity of water which was
delivered to the Delta and specifically Byron-Bethany in
July and August of 1977. ‘

Do you follow me in what I am getting at?
A I think I do.
QO From what you have been telling us today, the
State is entitled to recover 25 percent of the water
delivered to the Delta in July and August of 1977 because

of this contract they have with the federal government.
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A

A I don't believe I psed the term "contract." I
think the terms I used were that you now have a statute
and an agreement between the State and the Bureau based
upon that statute, under which the two agencies agree to
assume a cértain proportion of the responsibility for
meeting Delta needs.

Q I see., So then, regardless of whether the water
diverted by Byéon*Béthany in July and August of 1577 wou}d
have been usable without State Water Project facilities,
the State Water Project is still entitled to payment?

A _ The two agencies cooperated in providing the
releases from storage necessary to meet the Deita needs,
including the needs for salinity control.

Q Okay. I don't think that answers my specific
question, but it's in the ballpark, as they say.

Q It's as good as I can explain it at the moment.

0] But again, the State Water Proﬁect wants payment
hecause of this agreement they have wits” the  federal
government to share in salinity control 75 percent/25

percent? Is that generally right?

A T would not word it that way.
0 Okay. Give me your wording.
A T would say that the State seeks payment because

t+here was water released from Orville for the benefit of
the Delta during July and August. There was a total value

of water, part of which was released from Oroville, and
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A

pased on the agreement between the State and the Bureau,
of this total block of water we ‘are assuming that 25
percent of that in accordancé with the agreement will bhe
allocated to the State Water Projec£ and 75 percent will
be allocated to the Centfal valley Project. This 1is a
legal interpretation, so I may not be qualified to state,
but we do not seek payment because there 1is that
agreement. Thaé is merely an agreement on how we split up
the responsibility for’providing the necessary water.
MR. BABER: Okay.

EXAMINATTION

BY MR. NOMELLINI:

O Oon that same question, sO the agreement has
nothing to do with it?
A Other than as a basis for allocating
responsibility. |
Q Okay. Why wouldn't you  just look at the
contribution from Oroville to the Delta in July and August
of 1677 and evaluate that if you are not going to depend
on this agreement>at all?
A We are depending on the agreement as a basis for
allocating responsibility.

EXAMINATTION
BY MR. BABER:
Q Don't you have to prove unusability of water

diverted by these Delta users you have sued, in July and
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A You are asking my personal opinion?
Q T am asking you to be a little bit of a lawyer
here.

MR. KLETZING: I object to that question.

MR. NOMELLINI: He has been acting like a lawyer
for the last two depositions.

MR. KLéTZING: 1 objected to some of those, too.
The question is objected to, you don't have to answer
that. You don't have to answer legal questions.

MR. NOMELLINI: In your engineering opinion.

MR. BABER: Q Yes,'in your engineering opinion,
doesn't the water have to be unﬁsablé from a quality

: )

standpoint in July and August of 1977 befpre the State
Water Project is entitled to any payment or to claim any
benefits? |
A I think we have to putsin éome evidence to that
extent in order to demonstrate that there has been some
benefits accruing.
0 Now, what in the way of benefits did the State
Water Project show for July and August of 197772
A A1l we are trying to show is t+hat there was sO
much water from the combined project.
0 I mean exclusive of that, let's forget the Central
valley Project.

A May I have your guestion again, please?
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Q what in the way of benefits can the State Water
Project show that is bestowed upon the Delta users in July
and August of 1977 exclusive of the Central Valley
Project?
A Well, I think we will be ahle to show that there
was substantial benefits to the Delta water users averall.
We will be able to:sﬁow that there was water released from
Oroville thag flowed down into the Delta. That, we will
show.
o} © Okay. Now let me get into another area.

MR. NOMELLINI: But ?ou can't show that thére was
a benefit related to the flow of State Water Project water
into the Delta by itself?V !

MR. KLETZING: He doesn't have to.
A Well, what we will show is that there was benefit
and based upon overall Dbenefit and Dbased upon the
long-standing allocation of responsibility as betweenvﬁhé
Bureau of Reclamation on the one hand, and the State on
the other, that the State claims that 25 percent of the
overall benefit accrued from the State Water Project.

| EXAMINATTIOHN

BY MR. NOMELLINI:
0Q T understand that, but on the question, can you
show a benefit from the State Water Project in July and
August of '77 separated from this connection with the

federal project, albeit Russ tells you that you don't have
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to?

A We could probably, if it were necessary in the

opinion of counsel to show that. We probably could make a

pretty fair estimate of it, yes.

Q That there was a benefit?

A In nmy opinion, yes, but to be facetious for a

moment, if you.will permit me, if I didn't believe that, I

wouldn't be he;e.

4] Well,'that may have been an error on your part.
EXAMINATION

BY MR. BABER:

Q Wouldn't the benefits have to go to certain areas

within the Delta if you are talking about just the State

Water Project releases exclusive of the federal project or

Central valley Project?

A 1t would be very difficult to physically separate

the two streams of water as they flow into the Delta. They

" are thoroughly mixed by the time they get to that point.

Q 1 understand that, but I would like you to assume
for this lawsuit that you have to separate the two because
the Central Valley Project ijs not a party to this
legislation.

MR. KLETZING: That's a non sequitur.

MR. BABER: That's very much a sequitur.

MR. KiETZING: That is basically a legal argument,

but we don't think it makes any difference whether they
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&

are a party or not, and the court has so held.

"MR. NOMELLINI: That is right because you are only
going to look to the benefits of the State Water Project
water as you so represented to the court so often.

MR. KLETZING: Right, which is 25 percent of the
total, as Harvey has said. If he said it once this
afternoon, he has said it 15 times.

MR. BABER: 0 Okay, let me get into the blue
water and green water. Specifically with Byron-Bethany
Irrigation 5istrict.you have never seen the location of
the district's pumps, have you?

A No, I have not.
Q All right. I will tell you they are a mile east of

the export pumps for the State.

A A mile east,_okay.
Q In the channel.
A The intake channel from Clifton Court to that

great pumping plant.

O Right, in that huge pumping plant, which is now
awaiting installation of four more pumps,‘ I understand.
and what I am concerned about is --

MR. HNOMELLINI: Isn't that the Harvey Banks'
pumping plant? I was going to say humungus, but we will
call it Harvey O. Banks.

A It's a good pumping plant.

MR. BABER: 0 I walked through for the fist time,
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1 AY
by the way. about three months ago and checked that all

2

out, and what I am concerned about is does blue water ever
3

reach the intake channel? You define blue water as outflaow
4

water released by t+he State Water Project; right?
5 o

A That quantity of water does not reach export
6

pumps, nO. Now whether a particular blue molecule gets
7 _ :

over there, 1 cannot. say.
8 .

Q Tt could; right?
g

A It could, yes.
10

Q Okay. How about green water?
11

A our whole presumption is that to the extent that
12 ‘ '

Byron-Bethany diverted water in excess of what they had a
13 '

water right to from the natural flow, our ' presumption is
14
’ that green water did get over there.
15

Q Okay. And how does that intake channel work? It's
16 |

some mechanism of drawing the water through clifton Cour
17 '

into the export pumps so the State then can fulfill its
18 ,

contract obligations south?
19

A Hm-hmm.
20

0 Is there any detriment to the district that you
21

can foresee in July and august of +77 by the operation of
22

those pumps?
23 ~

A 1 am not aware of any at the moment. I have not,
24

however, let me be clear, made any particular study of
25

that possibility.,
26

MR. BABER: I have nothing further.
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A

EXAMINATION

BY MR. NOMELLINI:
Q Do you know, Harvey, what river iegulation is
under federal law?
A T don't. As far as I am aware, the term has never
been specifically defined. It was first used, I believe,
in the case of Hoover Dam and Lake Mead because tﬁét was
authorized f;r river regulation below Hoover Dam
downstream. I be}ieve that the Appellate Court in its
decision on the Delta water purpose said specifically that
river regulation included salinity control.
Q- Do you know if river regulation is a non—-reimbur-
sable function under federal law? ' |
A - To the extent that any costé have been allocated
to flood control,.that has been wholly a federal expense
up to the recent statute which has been passed by Congress
on the omnibus water bill. I do not know whether the
President has signed that bill yet or not.
Q But river regulation in 1877 was non-reimbursable;
wasn't it?

MR. KLETZING: That's a legal question. That whole
thing has been in the courts for years.

MR. NOMELLINI: That doesn't mean that Harvey
doesn't have a firm opinion on it.

MR. KLETZING: Well, it is still a legal question.

MR. NOMELLINI: Are you cbjecting?
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A

MR; KLETZING: I object to it.

MR. HNOMELLINI: Q Okay. Hatvey, when you were
Director of the Department of Water Resources, did you
ever have any discussion with the federal counterparts
concerning river regulation?

A " No.

Q Do you gﬁow whether or not you had assumed in your
actions that river regulation was nonwreimbursable?

A We assumed that lthe costs the federai Central
vValley Project allocated to navigation on the Sacramento

and to flood control were non~reimbursab1e.

Q And what part of the cost was allocated to
navigation? ’

A 1 do not recall.

Q Do you recall that ﬁhere was some?

A Yes.

o] And what did that comprise; I mean, what made up

the benefits to navigation?

A Improved navigation.
o I mean, was it more water in the channel?
A The requirement, as I recall it now, and I haven't

jooked at it in years, the requirement was a minimum flow
of 4,000 second-feet for névigation at Knights Landing,
and I would like to repeat I have not locked at that
particular aspect of it in 20 odd years.

0 Do you think the State is entitled to claim 25
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A

percent of any benefits derived from that federal release
from water users along the river?
A No, because as I recall the agreement between the
two agencies, it says that they assume the responsibility
for in-basin uses and it would be very difficult for the
State to provide any benefits "above the mouth of the
Feather. ;
Q How abo;t with regard £o downstream from the mouth
of the Feather, do you think the GState can claim 25
percent of the incidental benefits from that release of
federal government for river regulation?

MR. KLETZING: What release are we talking about?

MR. NOMELLINI: 4,000 cubic feet per second.

MR. KLETZING: He didn't say there was a release
of 4,000.
A Much of the time it requires no release from
storage because there is enough natural flow there other
than water released from storage.

MR. NOMELLINI: @ But you did say there was an
allocation to river regulation for'navigatién?
A There is an allocation of the costs of the federal

Central Valley Project, one element of which 1is an

allocation to navigation.

Q Okay. Isn't that an allocation of storage costs?
A Yes, essentially.
Q Okay, so there is some stored water that is
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AY

released to maintain that navigation requirement?

A As necessary at any particular time.

Q Okay. Now with regard to that release, so Russ can
understand it, is the State entitled to cléim compensation
for 25 percent of the benefit resulting from that release

downstream from the mouth of the Feather?

A No, I.don't believe so.
®
Q Okay, why not?
A Because the State is not releasing any water for

that particﬁlar purpose. Furthermore, the additional water
that those water uéers may use or may need over and above
their basic riparian right, or other users, is supplied
fromt he Central Valley Project. I don't believe, as T
recall it, that the State pro?ides any water supply below
the mouth of the Feather down to the Delta.

MR. KLETZING: I am a little confgsed. Isn'ﬁ
Knights above the mouth of the Feather?
A | Yes, I believe it is, Russ.

MR. KLETZING: And there wouldn't be any releases
at the mouth of the Feather. |

MR. NOMELLINI: @ But they come down to Xnights
Landing and get in the éacramentc River, and then come on
down below the mouth of the Feather; right?
A Thé flow maintained at Knights Landing for
navigation flows on down and goes into the Delta.

MR. KLETZING: But after Knights Landing, they can
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%

be diverted to something else.

A They may be so long as the navigation requirements
are met. The one criteria that's quoted is the requirement
of a minimum of 4,000 second-feet at Knights Landing.

MR. NOMELLINI: Q What about when that same water
gets to the Delta, assuming it does, can the State claim
25 percent of it, the benefit for 25 percent of it?

A What ;he State claims is -- let me go back. I
think it is incorrect to use the term "claim" with respect
to that. I think I have stated repeatedly --

0 | Steal 25 percent?

A -~ that what we are dealing with here 1is an
allocation of responsibility to accomplish certain things,
and that is not the same as a claim, in my opinion.

MR. KLETZING: We never used that word "stealing”
in relation to the Delta.

MR. NOMELLINI: I think you ought to change your
pleading. It would be more‘appropriate. |

MR. KLETZING: We don't say the Delta stole the
water, we just say they diverted it. ‘

MR. NOMELLINI: O With regard to that water
released for river regulation by the federal government,
assuming it enters the Delta, is the State entitled to
reimbursement from Delta water users for 25 percent of the

benefit received by reason of that flow from the federal

government?
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A If that were tﬁe only water reaching the Delta,
there had been no release for the benefit of the Delta or
that resulted in benefit for the Delta from that release
from Oroville, then I would tend ta agree with you.

Q And you would say they were not entitled to it
under those qualifiéations?

A With this hy@athetical example, right.

MR. KLETZING: Werevnavigation controls in effect
in the summer of 19777
A I don't know,!Russ.-I would have to go back. Let's
see what the situation was at Knights Landing.

Well, I thought there was a streamflow record at
Knights Landihg hepe, but I don't see it.

MR. KLETZING: That's all right.

MR. NOMELLINI: 1It's not critical to me.

MR. KLETZING: I just wanted to make it clear that
it hadn't been established anyway that they were in
effect.

A I can give you Wilkins Slough.

MR. NOMELLINI: 0 Where is that relative to
Knights Landing?

A Unfortunately, Mr. Nomellini, we don't have a map
here. The minimum flow at Wilkins Slough was 5870
second-feet in July and 4,060 in August.

MR. NOMELLINI: Q You are not suggesting that is

relevant to the question of what the flow was at Knights

BBID Exh. 294



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22 -

23

24

25

26

117

Landing; are you?
A Not until I see a map.
MR. NOMELLINI: Okay, that's fine. I have nothing
further, unless Russell wants to get into something else.
MR. BABER: I have nothing further.
MR. WHITRIDGE: I have nothing.
MR. NOMELLINI: Okay, thank you, Harvey.

3

MR. BABER: Thank you, Harvey.

HARVEY G. BANKS
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA ° )

) ss.
County of Sacramento )}
On this day of , 1986,
before me, , a Notary Public in and

for said County, personally appeared:
HARVEY O. BANKS,
known to me té be the person whose name is subscribed to
the within dépoéition{ and acknowledged that he has read,
corrected and executed the same.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand
and affixed my official seal the day and year first above

written. ‘ !

Signature of Notary

My Commission expires:
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REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
: ) ss.
County of Sacramento )

I, ALICE BOOK, Certifiea Shorthand Reporter,
hereby certify that I was duly appointed and qualified to
take the foreéoing deposition of HARVEY O. BANKS;

That acting as such reporter, I took down in
stencgraphic shorthand writing the testimony given and
proceedings had;

That I thereafter caused to be trénscribea said
stenographic shorthand writing into typewritten langhand;
that the foreqoing pages contain a full, true and correct
transcription thereof, and a full, true and correct
transcription of the testimony given and proceedings had.

Dated this 25th day of November, 1986

ALICE BOOK, CSR NO. 43
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